
1

AGENDA
  

Contact Officer: Ron Schrieber, Democratic Services officer

Tel: 01235 422524

E-mail: ron.schrieber@southandvale.gov.uk

Date: 19 January 2018

Website: www.southoxon.gov.uk www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

A MEETING OF THE

Joint Audit and Governance Committee

WILL BE HELD ON MONDAY 29 JANUARY 2018  AT 6.30 PM

MEETING ROOM 1, 135 EASTERN AVENUE, MILTON PARK, MILTON, 
OX14 4SB

Members of the Committee:
South Oxfordshire District Council
Charles Bailey
Kevin Bulmer (Co-Chair)
Toby Newman
John Walsh

Vale of White Horse District Council
Dudley Hoddinott
Simon Howell (Co-Chair)
Chris Palmer
Henry Spencer

Preferred Substitutes
South Oxfordshire District Council
Joan Bland
David Dodds
Richard Pullen
Alan Thompson

Vale of White Horse District Council
Yvonne Constance
Helen Pighills
Judy Roberts
Reg Waite
Catherine Webber

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  
These include large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For 
this or any other special requirements (such as access facilities) 
please contact the officer named on this agenda.  Please give as 
much notice as possible before the meeting.

Public Document Pack



2

1 Apologies for absence  

To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.  

2 Minutes  (Pages 5 - 10)

To adopt and sign as a correct record the Joint Audit and Governance Committee 
minutes of the meeting held on 25 September 2017 (attached).  

3 Declarations of interest  

To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on 
the agenda for this meeting.   

4 Urgent business and chairman's announcements  

To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent, and to receive any announcements from the chairman.  

5 Public participation  

To receive any questions or statements from members of the public that have 
registered to speak.  

6 External auditor's annual letters 2016/17  (Pages 11 - 66)

To consider the external auditor’s annual audit letters 2015/16 (attached).

7 External auditor's report on the certification of claims and 
returns 2016/17  (Pages 67 - 74)

To consider the external auditor’s report on the certification of claims and returns 
2016/17 (attached).

8 South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils' 
Audit Planning Report 2017/18  (Pages 75 - 112)

To consider the external auditor’s annual report (attached).



3

9 Risk management framework  (Pages 113 - 124)

To consider the report of the interim head of corporate services (attached).

10 Internal audit activity report quarter three 2017/2018  (Pages 
125 - 190)

To consider the report of the interim audit manager (attached).

11 Internal audit management report quarter three 2017/2018  
(Pages 191 - 202)

To consider the report of the interim audit manager (attached).

12 Statement of accounts 2017/18  (Pages 203 - 206)

To consider the report of the head of finance (attached).

13 Treasury management mid-year monitoring report 2017/18  
(Pages 207 - 218)

To consider the report of the head of finance (attached).

14 South Oxfordshire District Council treasury management mid-
year monitoring report 2017/18  (Pages 219 - 246)

To consider the report of the head of finance (attached).

15 Vale of White Horse District Council treasury management 
mid-year monitoring report 2017/18  (Pages 247 - 272)

To consider the report of the head of finance (attached).

16 Work programme  (Pages 273 - 274)

To review the work programme (attached).

MARGARET REED

Head of Legal and Democratic Services



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Minutes

OF A MEETING OF THE

Joint Audit and Governance Committee

HELD ON MONDAY 25 SEPTEMBER 2017 AT 6.30 PM
MEETING ROOM 1, 135 EASTERN AVENUE, MILTON PARK, OX14 4SB

Present 
Members:
South Oxfordshire District Councillors:  Charles Bailey, Kevin Bulmer, Toby Newman, 
and John Walsh
Vale of White Horse District Councillors: Dudley Hoddinott, Simon Howell 
(Chairman), and Chris Palmer

Officers: 
Sandy Bayley, Steve Culliford, Yvonne Cutler-Greaves, William Jacobs, Adrianna 
Partridge, and Mark Stone 

Also present: 
Rhona Bellis and Simon Hewings (Capita Accountancy), Andrew Brittain and David 
Guest (EY)

15 Apologies for absence 

Vale of White Horse District Councillor Henry Spencer had sent his apologies for 
absence.  

16 Minutes 

RESOLVED: to adopt as a correct record the minutes of the committee meeting held 
on 3 July 2017 and agree that the chairman signs them as such.  

17 Declarations of interest 

None

18 Urgent business and chairman's announcements 

The chairman accepted two exempt items of urgent business in order that they could 
be resolved quickly.  

19 Public participation 

None

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



2

20 Risk management strategy 

The committee considered the report of the head of corporate services, which 
proposed a joint risk management strategy to 2019.  The strategy extended to all 
operations of the two councils.  

The committee supported the strategy and noted that risk management monitoring 
reports would be submitted to the committee every six months, starting with January 
2018.  

RESOLVED: to approve the risk management strategy.  

21 Internal audit activity report -  second quarter 2017/18 

The committee considered the interim audit manager’s report on internal audit activity 
during the second quarter, 2017/18.  Five audits and three follow-up audits had been 
completed during the quarter.  None of the five audits had received a limited 
assurance rating.  

The committee noted the summary of overdue audit recommendations and that 
several recommendations related to a vacant post.  The interim audit manager 
agreed to investigate this and update the schedule accordingly.  If any overdue 
recommendations were to be written-off, the committee would be advised of these.  

Further to the minutes of the last meeting, it was noted that letters had been sent to 
Capita as requested (minute 6 refers).  

RESOLVED: to 

(a) note the internal audit activity report for the second quarter of 2017/18; and 

(b) request the interim audit manager to update the schedule of outstanding audit 
recommendations and advise the committee of any recommendation that had 
been written-off.  

22 Internal audit management report -  second quarter 2017/18 

The committee considered the interim audit manager’s report on internal audit 
management during the second quarter, 2017/18.  

The committee noted that the audit plan 2017/18 was on target for completion during 
the year.  Once the new management structure had been put in place, the audit plan 
and procedures would be reviewed.  

RESOLVED: to 

(a) note the internal audit management report for the second quarter of 2017/18; 
and 

(b) request the interim audit manager to send the internal audit report on the five 
councils’ partnership to all committee members in advance of the report being 
considered at the next committee meeting.  

Page 6

Agenda Item 2



3

23 External auditor's audit results report 2016/17 

The committee considered the external auditor’s audit results for 2016/17.  Andrew 
Brittain and David Guest of EY presented the main highlights from the report.  They 
confirmed that the audit would be completed by 30 September.  

For both councils, a number of audit differences were highlighted to the councils, the 
majority being below the reporting threshold but with one exception.  For the Vale of 
White Horse an adjustment was needed relating to Enterprise Zone business rates, 
without any change to the bottom line.  

In the value for money audit, EY identified risks with insufficient arrangements to 
allow informed decisions to take place during the transition period following the 
retirement of the chief executive in 2016, and insufficient capacity to undertake 
statutory roles.  With regard to the Five Councils’ Partnership, EY recognised that 
there had been changes in the expected savings from the contracts and that the 
councils were negotiating contract amendments.  EY was comfortable with 
arrangements and was assured that the risks were being managed.  

The committee noted that EY would issue unqualified audit reports on the financial 
statements for both South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils and 
would issue audit certificates accordingly.  

RESOLVED: to note the external auditor’s audit results for 2016/17.  

24 Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 - South Oxfordshire 

The committee considered South Oxfordshire’s Annual Governance Statement 
2016/17.  The committee approved the statement, noting that it formed part of the 
council’s statement of accounts.  

RESOLVED: to approve South Oxfordshire District Council’s Annual Governance 
Statement 2016/17 to form part of the statement of accounts.  

25 Annual governance statement 2016/17 - Vale of White Horse 

The committee considered the Vale’s Annual Governance Statement 2016/17.  The 
committee approved the statement, noting that it formed part of the council’s 
statement of accounts.  

RESOLVED: to approve Vale of White Horse District Council’s Annual Governance 
Statement 2016/17 to form part of the statement of accounts.  

26 Statement of Accounts 2016/17 

The committee considered the report of the head of finance, which set out the 
statement of accounts for South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse for 2016/17.  
The accounts had to be approved by the committee by 30 September 2017.  

In answer to questions from the committee, it was noted that:
 On occasions when final figures were not known by the year-end, the 

accounts had to include an estimate; examples included the pensions liability 
for the year and a fixed asset’s value at a given point in time 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



4

 The final year-end figure for the Enterprise Zone business rates would not be 
known until the end of the 2017/18 financial year 

The committee was content that the accounts had been prepared correctly and 
approved them for both councils.  

The committee noted that from next year, the statement of accounts would have to 
be approved by 31 July.  

RESOLVED: to 

(a) approve the statement of accounts for South Oxfordshire District Council for 
2016/17 as amended and signed by the chairman of this meeting of the 
committee and by the co-chairman from South Oxfordshire District Council; and 

(b) approve the statement of accounts for Vale of White Horse District Council for 
2016/17 as amended and signed by the chairman of this meeting.  

27 Letter of Representation to the external auditor - South 
Oxfordshire 

Tabled at the meeting was a draft letter of representation from the co-chairman to the 
external auditor, EY, as part of the process in completing the statement of accounts. 

RESOLVED: to agree that the co-chairman from South Oxfordshire District Council 
signs the letter of representation to the external auditor.  

28 Letter of Representation to the external auditor - Vale of White 
Horse 

Tabled at the meeting was a draft letter of representation from the co-chairman to the 
external auditor, EY, as part of the process in completing the statement of accounts. 

RESOLVED: to agree that the co-chairman from Vale of White Horse District Council 
signs the letter of representation to the external auditor.  

29 Treasury Outturn 2016-17 

The committee considered the head of finance’s report on the treasury management 
performance from 2016/17.  This showed that both councils had achieved a higher 
rate of return that the target income for the year.  The returns had also exceeded the 
market benchmarks.  

The committee welcomed the report and thanked the officers for their work on this.  

RESOLVED: to 

(a) note the treasury management outturn report 2016/17; and 

(b) advise Cabinet that the committee is satisfied that the treasury activities have 
been carried out in accordance with the treasury management strategy and 
policy.  

Page 8

Agenda Item 2



5

30 Work Programme 

The committee reviewed and updated its work programme, adding:
 risk management monitoring reports for the committee’s consideration every 

six months, starting in January 2018 
 statement of accounts for the committee’s approval by the end of July 2018.  

The chairman asked committee members to reserve the evening of 30 July 
2018 in their diaries for this purpose.  

31 Exclusion of the public, including the press 

RESOLVED: to exclude members of the press and public from the meeting for the 
following item of business, under Part 1 of Schedule 12A Section 100A(4) of the 
Local Government Act 1972 and as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information) (Variation) Order 2006, on the grounds that: 
(i) it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 

of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, and 
(ii) the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 

disclosing the information.  

32 Staffing matter 

The committee received a report from the chief executive.   

33 Third party payment 

The committee received a report from the chief executive.  

The meeting closed at 8.37 pm

Chairman Date

Page 9

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10

Agenda Item 2



Ernst & Young LLP

South Oxfordshire District Council
Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017

October 2017

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 6



Contents

EY  i

Contents

Executive Summary......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 2

Purpose ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 5

Responsibilities ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 7

Financial Statement Audit ........................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 10

Value for Money............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 14

Other Reporting Issues ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 18

Focused on your future................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 21

Appendix A Audit Fees ......................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 25

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) have issued a ‘‘Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the Chief Executive of each audited body and 
via the PSAA website (www.psaa.co.uk)
The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors 
and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.
The “Terms of Appointment (updated 23 February 2017)” issued by PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit 
Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and statute, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This Annual Audit Letter is prepared in the context of the Statement of responsibilities. It is addressed to the Members of the audited body, and is prepared for their sole use. We, as 
appointed auditor, take no responsibility to any third party.
Our Complaints Procedure – If at any time you would like to discuss with us how our service to you could be improved, or if you are dissatisfied with the service you are receiving, you may 
take the issue up with your usual partner or director contact. If you prefer an alternative route, please contact Steve Varley, our Managing Partner, 1 More London Place, London SE1 2AF. We 
undertake to look into any complaint carefully and promptly and to do all we can to explain the position to you. Should you remain dissatisfied with any aspect of our service, you may of 
course take matters up with our professional institute. We can provide further information on how you may contact our professional institute.

P
age 12

A
genda Item

 6

http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/pages/default.aspx


Executive Summary

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 6



Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – South Oxfordshire District Council

EY  2

Executive Summary

We are required to issue an annual audit letter to South Oxfordshire District Council (the Council) following completion of our audit procedures for the year 
ended 31 March 2017. 

Below are the results and conclusions on the significant areas of the audit process.

Area of Work Conclusion

Opinion on the Council’s:
► Financial statements

Unqualified – the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
Council as at 31 March 2017 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended 

► Consistency of other information published 
with the financial statements

Other information published with the financial statements was consistent with the Annual 
Accounts.

Concluding on the Council’s arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness

We concluded that you have put in place proper arrangements to secure value for money in your 
use of resources except for in relation to the Senior Management Restructure. The findings were 
that the Council had not followed the statutory requirements, such as not having a voluntary 
redundancy policy in place (only a compulsory redundancy policy) and not provided an appropriate 
business case to support the Committee in making its decision.
Our review of the senior staffing structure in place after the redundancies confirmed that the 
Council did not have sufficient depth to enable to Council to deliver its functions. This was also 
identified by the Council themselves as during 2016/17 an Interim Chief Operating Officer was 
employed to provide support to the existing structure. 

Area of Work Conclusion

Reports by exception:
► Consistency of Governance Statement The Governance Statement was consistent with our understanding of the Council.

► Public interest report We had no matters to report in the public interest.

► Written recommendations to the Council, which 
should be copied to the Secretary of State

We had no matters to report. 

We had no matters to report. 

P
age 14

A
genda Item

 6



Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – South Oxfordshire District Council

EY  3

► Other actions taken in relation to our 
responsibilities under the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014

Area of Work Conclusion

Reporting to the National Audit Office (NAO) on our 
review of the Council’s Whole of Government 
Accounts return (WGA). 

The Council is below the specified audit threshold of £350 million. Therefore, we did not perform 
any audit procedures on the consolidation pack.

As a result of the above we have also:

Area of Work Conclusion

Issued a report to those charged with governance 
of the Council communicating significant findings 
resulting from our audit.

Our Audit Results Report was issued on 25 September 2017.
 

Issued a certificate that we have completed the 
audit in accordance with the requirements of the 
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the 
National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of Audit 
Practice.

Our certificate was issued on 25 September 2017. 

In November 2017 we will also issue a report to those charged with governance of the Council summarising the certification work we have undertaken. 

We would like to take this opportunity to thank the Council’s staff for their assistance during the course of our work. 

Andrew Brittain

Associate Partner
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLPP

age 15

A
genda Item

 6



Purpose

P
age 16

A
genda Item

 6



Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – South Oxfordshire District Council

EY  5

Purpose 

The Purpose of this Letter
The purpose of this annual audit letter is to communicate to Members and external stakeholders, including members of the public, the key issues arising 
from our work, which we consider should be brought to the attention of the Council. 

We have already reported the detailed findings from our audit work in our 2016/17 Audit Results Report to the 25 September 2017 Joint Audit and 
Governance Committee, representing those charged with governance. We do not repeat those detailed findings in this letter. The matters reported here 
are the most significant for the Council.

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 6



Responsibilit ies

P
age 18

A
genda Item

 6



Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – South Oxfordshire District Council

EY  7

Responsibilities

Responsibilities of the Appointed Auditor
Our 2016/17 audit work has been undertaken in accordance with the Audit Plan that we issued on 23 January 2017 and is conducted in accordance with 
the National Audit Office's 2015 Code of Audit Practice, International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland), and other guidance issued by the National 
Audit Office. 

As auditors we are responsible for:

► Expressing an opinion:

► On the 2016/17 financial statements, and

► On the consistency of other information published with the financial statements.

► Forming a conclusion on the arrangements the Council has to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

► Reporting by exception:

► If the annual governance statement is misleading or not consistent with our understanding of the Council;

► Any significant matters that are in the public interest; 

► Any written recommendations to the Council, which should be copied to the Secretary of State; and

► If we have discharged our duties and responsibilities as established by thy Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and Code of Audit Practice. 

Alongside our work on the financial statements, we also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO) on you Whole of Government Accounts 
return. The Council is below the specified audit threshold of £350 million. Therefore, we did not perform any audit procedures on the return.

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 6



Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – South Oxfordshire District Council

EY  8

Responsibilities of the Council 
The Council is responsible for preparing and publishing its statement of accounts accompanied by an Annual Governance Statement. In the AGS, the 
Council reports publicly each year on how far it complies with its own code of governance, including how it has monitored and evaluated the effectiveness 
of its governance arrangements in year, and any changes planned in the coming period. 

The Council is also responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 6



Financial Statement 
Audit

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 6



Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – South Oxfordshire District Council 

EY  10

Financial Statement Audit

Key Issues
The Council’s Statement of Accounts is an important tool for the Council to show how it has used public money and how it can demonstrate its financial 
management and financial health.

We audited the Council Statement of Accounts in line with the National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice, International Standards on Auditing 
(UK and Ireland), and other guidance issued by the National Audit Office and issued an unqualified audit report on 26 September 2017.

Our detailed findings were reported to the 25 September 2017 Joint Audit and Governance Committee.

The key issues identified as part of our audit were as follows:

Significant Risk Conclusion

Management override of controls
As identified in ISA 240, management is in a unique 
position to perpetrate fraud because of its ability to 
manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and to 
prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding 
controls that otherwise seem to be operating effectively. 
We identify and respond to this fraud risk on every audit 
engagement.
In addition to the risk details outlined from our Audit Plan 
above, we have identified an additional risk that 
management could use the Movement in Reserves (MIRS) 
adjustments to add or remove items from the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) 
to alter the reserve position of the Council. Such 
adjustments would not change the outturn in the CIES but 
could inflate reserves artificially.

We have not identified any material weaknesses in controls or evidence of material 
management override.
We have not identified any instances of inappropriate judgements being applied.
We did not identify any other transactions during our audit which appeared unusual or 
outside the Council’s normal course of business.
We did not identify any issues from our testing of the MIRS adjustments note.

Revenue and expenditure recognition
Under ISA240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be 
misstated due to improper recognition of revenue.

Our testing has not identified any material misstatements from revenue and expenditure 
recognition.

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 6



Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – South Oxfordshire District Council 

EY  11

In the public sector this requirement is modified by Practice 
Note 10, issued by the Financial Reporting council, which 
states that auditors should also consider the risk that 
material misstatements may occur by manipulating 
expenditure recognition.

Overall our audit work did not identify any material issues or unusual transactions to 
indicate any misreporting of the Council’s financial position.

Other Key Findings Conclusion

Accounting for Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, Plant and Equipment represent a significant balance in the Council’s accounts 
and are subject to valuation changes, impairment reviews and depreciation charges.
Material judgemental inputs and estimation techniques are required to calculate the year-
end fixed assets balances held in the balance sheet.
The Councils engage an external expert valuer who applies a number of complex 
assumptions. Annually, assets are assessed to identify whether there is any indication of 
impairment.
As the Council’s asset base is significant, and the outputs from the valuer are subject to 
estimation, there is a risk fixed assets may be under/overstated or the associated 
accounting entries incorrectly posted. ISAs (UK and Ireland) 500 and 540 require us to 
undertake procedures on the use of management experts and the assumptions 
underlying fair value estimates.
This risk relates to assets that are revalued.

Overall we have not identified any material issues in the 
valuations based on our work performed.

Pension Valuations and Disclosures
The Code and IAS19 require the Councils to make extensive disclosures within its 
financial statements regarding the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) in which 
they are admitted bodies.
The Council’s current pension fund deficit is a material and sensitive item and the Code 
requires that this liability be disclosed on the Council’s balance sheet.
The information disclosed is based on the IAS 19 reports issued to the Councils by the 
actuary to the administering body.
Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and judgement and therefore 
management engages an actuary to undertake the calculations on their behalf. ISAs (UK 
and
Ireland) 500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures on the use of management 
experts and the assumptions underlying fair value estimates.

Assumptions used by the actuary and adopted by the 
Councils are considered to be generally acceptable. 
However, our internal pensions specialists did identify that 
the methodologies used to derive the discount rate and 
RPI inflation assumptions are not robust as they do not 
take adequate account of the specific duration of the 
Scheme’s liabilities. In future years, this could lead to 
unacceptable assumptions.

No other issues have been identified in completing our 
work.P

age 23

A
genda Item

 6



Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – South Oxfordshire District Council 

EY  12

Our application of materiality
When establishing our overall audit strategy, we determined a magnitude of uncorrected misstatements that we judged would be material for the 
financial statements as a whole. 

Item Thresholds applied

Planning materiality We determined planning materiality to be £1.4 million (2015/16: £1.3 million), which is 2% of 
gross revenue expenditure reported in the accounts.
We consider gross revenue expenditure to be one of the principal considerations for stakeholders 
in assessing the financial performance of the Council.

Reporting threshold We agreed with the Joint Audit and Governance Committee that we would report to the 
Committee all audit unadjusted differences in excess of £72k (2015/16: £67k)

We also identified the following areas where misstatement at a level lower than our overall materiality level might influence the reader.  For these areas 
we developed an audit strategy specific to these areas. The areas identified and audit strategy applied include:

 Remuneration disclosures including any severance payments, exit packages and termination benefits;

 Related party transactions; and

 Members Allowances

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the quantitative measures of materiality discussed above and in light of other relevant 
qualitative considerations.

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 6



Value for Money

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 6



Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – South Oxfordshire District Council

EY  14

Value for Money

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of 
resources. This is known as our value for money conclusion.

Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office. They comprise your arrangements to:

 Take informed decisions;
 Deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and
 Work with partners and other third parties.

Proper arrangements for 
securing value for money  

Informed 
decision making 

Working with 
partners and 
third parties

Sustainable 
resource 

deployment

P
age 26

A
genda Item

 6



Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – South Oxfordshire District Council

EY  15

We identified two significant risks in relation to these arrangements. The tables below present the findings of our work in response to the risks identified 
and any other significant weaknesses or issues to bring to your attention.

We have performed the procedures outlined in our audit plan. We identified the following significant weaknesses in the Council’s arrangements to ensure 
it took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. 

A review of the processes followed by the Councils confirmed that there was an insufficient set of arrangements in place to allow informed decisions to be 
made. This included the lack of a formal business case, to allow Committee members to make their decision on the redundancies. In addition, the 
remaining senior management structure did not have sufficient capacity to take on the roles of the staff that left. As a result the Councils employed a Joint 
Interim Chief Operating Officer during the year. However, this in itself was not deemed satisfactory to fill the gap in capacity.

We therefore issued a qualified value for money conclusion in relation to informed decision making on 25 September 2017.

Significant Risk Conclusion

Implementation of the Corporate Services 
Contract 
From the 1 August 2016, the Council began the 
implementation of the Corporate Services 
Contracts with Capita and Vinci, as part of the 
five Council Partnership arrangements.
These contracts were designed to generate 
savings of over £50m across their lifetime of 
nine years.
Given this is a significant change to the 
operational running of the Council there is a 
risk that the performance of the Councils 
reduces. 
Additionally there is a risk that the savings 
identified at the procurement stage aren’t 
being realised in practice.

We have seen evidence that the Council has internal governance arrangements for the Contracts in 
place throughout the year through a series of dedicated groups to monitor progress and respond to 
any issues identified.
The Inter Authority Agreement between the five councils plus the contracts with Capita and Vinci set 
out a number of key boards and committees to provide oversight. We identified the governance 
arrangements have subsequently been reviewed during the year and some of the governance bodies 
have not met as regularly as intended. However, we have seen evidence overall that there were 
regular meetings at an individual council level which addressed the key issues.
These groups have been used to monitor the transition of the key systems, some of which have had 
significant delays. The main reason for the delays in systems going live is the Councils insistence on 
there being a strong control environment in place.
During the last year the Council has identified some issues with the contracts which are being actively 
discussed and resolved with the suppliers. From review of the latest financial projections, these show 
a decrease in the overall savings being realised over the lifetime of the contracts. In the case of the 
Capita contract, the more innovative elements of the contract, including the procurement and 
innovation hubs, need to be re-thought due to changes in context and the five Councils’ strategies 
since the ideas were originally conceived. Capita is working proactively with the councils to reframe 
these aspects of the contract. The Council is also working with Vinci to rectify degradation in 
projected savings across the term of the contracts.
For the 2016/17 conclusion, we have taken into account that the Council has not included the 
savings linked to the innovative areas of the Capital contract within its medium term financial plan. In 
addition the Five Council Partnership is still budgeted to generate savings for the Council over the 
lifetime of the contract.

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 6



Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – South Oxfordshire District Council

EY  16

We have therefore been able to gain assurance over this significant risk. 

Senior Management Restructure
During 2016/17, as part of the transition to the 
new corporate services contracts, there have 
been significant changes to the joint senior 
management team at the Councils. The 
existing Joint Chief Executive retired and was 
replaced by David Hill. In addition two Strategic 
Directors left the Councils through voluntary 
redundancy.
Given the background of the new Corporate 
Services Contract with the accompanying 
significant organisational change and the 
seniority of these departures, there is a risk 
that the Councils have not put in place proper 
arrangements to ensure they took properly 
informed decisions and deployed resources to 
achieve planned and sustainable outcomes.

The Council engaged an external advisor (Bevan Brittan) to undertake a review of the redundancies 
that took place in 2016/17. The findings from this review were that the Council had not followed the 
statutory requirements, such as not having a voluntary redundancy policy in place (only a compulsory 
redundancy policy) and not providing an appropriate business case to support the Committee in 
making its decision.
We have corroborated these findings and can confirm that the Council had not put in place proper 
arrangements to allow them to make informed decisions.
Our review of the senior staffing structure in place after the redundancies confirmed that the Council 
did not have sufficient depth to enable the Council to deliver their functions. This was also identified 
by the Council itself as during 2016/17 an Interim Chief Operating Officer was employed to provide 
support to the existing structure. We note that the Council has set up a new interim structure in 
August 2017 with a view to recruiting new heads of service to bring them to 9 positions (up from 6).
Consequently our value for money conclusion was qualified on an “except for” basis in relation to the 
Senior Management Restructure.

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 6



Other Reporting 
Issues

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 6



Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – South Oxfordshire District Council

EY  18

Other Reporting Issues

Whole of Government Accounts
The Council is below the specified audit threshold of £350 million. Therefore, we did not perform any audit procedures on the consolidation pack.

Annual Governance Statement
We are required to consider the completeness of disclosures in the Council’s annual governance statement, identify any inconsistencies with the other 
information of which we are aware from our work, and consider whether it is misleading.

We completed this work and identified that the draft Annual Governance Statement was not prepared until August 2017 (the requirement per the Audit 
and Accounts Regulations 2015 is that the draft Annual Governance Statement is available for public inspection along with the accounts by 30 June 
2017).

Report in the Public Interest 
We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to consider whether, in the public interest, to report on any matter that comes to our 
attention in the course of the audit in order for it to be considered by the Council or brought to the attention of the public.

We did not identify any issues which required us to issue a report in the public interest.

Written Recommendations
We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to designate any audit recommendation as one that requires the Council to consider it 
at a public meeting and to decide what action to take in response. 

We did not identify any issues which required us to issue a written recommendation.

Objections Received
We did not receive any objections to the 2016/17 financial statements from member of the public. 

Other Powers and Duties
We identified no issues during our audit that required us to use our additional powers under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. P

age 30

A
genda Item

 6



Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – South Oxfordshire District Council

EY  19

Independence
We communicated our assessment of independence in our Audit Results Report to the Joint Audit and Governance Committee on 25 September 2017. In 
our professional judgement the firm is independent and the objectivity of the audit engagement partner and audit staff has not been compromised within 
the meaning regulatory and professional requirements. 

Control Themes and Observations
As part of our work, we obtained an understanding of internal control sufficient to plan our audit and determine the nature, timing and extent of testing 
performed. Although our audit was not designed to express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control, we are required to communicate to you 
significant deficiencies in internal control identified during our audit. 

We have adopted a fully substantive approach and have therefore not tested the operation of controls. 

Our audit did not identify any controls issues to bring to the attention of the Joint Audit and Governance Committee.

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 6



Focused on your 
future

P
age 32

A
genda Item

 6



Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – South Oxfordshire District Council

EY  21

Focused on your future

Area Issue Impact

Earlier deadline 
for production 
and audit of the 
financial 
statements from 
2017/18

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 introduced a 
significant change in statutory deadlines from the 2017/18 
financial year. From that year the timetable for the 
preparation and approval of accounts will be brought 
forward with draft accounts needing to be prepared by 31 
May and the publication of the audited accounts by 31 July.

These changes provide challenges for both the preparers and the 
auditors of the financial statements.
To prepare for this change the Councils have taken a number of 
steps as outlined below:
• Undertaking a critical review of the closedown process to achieve 
draft accounts production by 31 May for 2017/18.
Note that the accounts were prepared for the 30 June for 2016/17.
• Streamlined the Statement of Accounts removing all non-material 
disclosure notes
• Undertaking a review of tasks performed at year-end only (e.g fixed 
assets) to see whether work can be completed on a 
monthly/quarterly basis, reducing year-end pressure

As auditors, nationally we have:
• Issued a thought piece on early closedown
• As part of the strategic Alliance with CIPFA jointly presented 
accounts closedown workshops across England, Scotland and Wales
• Presented at CIPFA early closedown events and on the subject at 
the Local Government Accounting Conferences in July 2017

Locally we have:
• Had regular discussions through the year on the Councils 
proposals to bring forward the closedown timetable
• Together with the Councils agreed areas for early work which have 
included testing of major income and expenditure streams at month 
9

IFRS 9 Financial 
Instruments

Applicable for local authority accounts from the 2018/19 
financial year and will change:
• How financial assets are classified and measured

Although some initial thoughts on the approach to adopting IFRS 9 
have been issued by CIPFA, until the Code is issued and any 
statutory overrides are confirmed there remains some uncertainty.
However, what is clear is that the Councils will have to:

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 6



Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – South Oxfordshire District Council

EY  22

Area Issue Impact
• How the impairment of financial assets are calculated
• Financial hedge accounting
• The disclosure requirements for financial assets.

• Transitional arrangements are included within the 
accounting standard, however as the 2018/19 Accounting 
Code of Practice for Local Authorities has yet to be issued it 
is unclear what the impact on local authority accounting will 
be and whether any accounting statutory overrides will be 
introduced to mitigate any impact.

• Reclassify existing financial instrument assets
• Remeasure and recalculate potential impairments of those assets; 
and
• Prepare additional disclosure notes for material items
The Council is awaiting clarification of the exact requirements before 
investing time in the above work.

IFRS 15 
Revenue from 
Contracts with 
Customers

Applicable for local authority accounts from the 2018/19 
financial year. This new standard deals with accounting for 
all contracts with customers except:
• Leases;
• Financial instruments;
• Insurance contracts; and
• for local authorities; Council Tax and NDR income.
The key requirements of the standard cover the 
identification of performance obligations under customer 
contracts and the linking of income to the meeting of those 
performance obligations.
• There are transitional arrangements within the standard; 
however as the 2018/19 Accounting Code of Practice for 
Local Authorities has yet to be issued it is unclear what the 
impact on local authority accounting will be.

As with IFRS 9, some initial thoughts on the approach to adopting 
IFRS 15 have been issued by CIPFA. However, until the Code is 
issued there remains some uncertainty. However, what is clear is 
that for all material income sources from customers the Council will 
have to:
• Disaggregate revenue into appropriate categories
• Identify relevant performance obligations and allocate income to 
each
• Summarise significant judgements
The Councils are awaiting clarification of the exact requirements 
before investing time in the above work.

IFRS 16 Leases IFRS 16 will be applicable for local authority accounts from 
the 2019/20 financial year.
Whilst the definition of a lease remains similar to the 
current leasing standard; IAS 17, for local authorities who 
lease in a large number of assets the new standard will have 
a significant impact, with nearly all current leases being 
included on the balance sheet.
There are transitional arrangements within the standard, 
although as the 2019/20 Accounting Code of Practice for 

Until the 2019/20 Accounting Code is issued and any statutory 
overrides are confirmed there remains some uncertainty in this area.
However, what is clear is that the Councils will need to undertake a 
detailed exercise to classify all of its leases and therefore must 
ensure that all lease arrangements are fully documented.
The Councils are has yet to commence work in this area due to the 
timing of implementation.

P
age 34

A
genda Item

 6



Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – South Oxfordshire District Council

EY  23

Area Issue Impact
Local Authorities has yet to be issued it is unclear what the 
impact on local authority accounting will be or whether any 
statutory overrides will be introduced.

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 6



Audit Fees

Appendix A

P
age 36

A
genda Item

 6



Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – South Oxfordshire District Council

EY  25

Appendix A Audit Fees

Our fee for 2016/17 is detailed below and is in line with the fees reported in the Audit Plan and Audit Results Report. 

Description
Final Fee 2016/17
£

Planned Fee 2016/17
£

Scale Fee 2016/17
£

Final Fee 2015/16
£

Total Audit Fee – Code work 54,467* 48,186 48,186 51,231

Total Audit Fee – Certification of 
claims and returns

9,623** 9,623 9,623 10,972

Total Audit Fee 64,090 57,809 57,809 52,203

* The variation to the scale fee identified above is due to the following;

Additional work to address the significant risks to the Value for Money Conclusion relating to the Implementation of the Corporate Services Contract and 
the Senior Management Restructure. Details of the additional procedures performed are included in the Value for Money Section, earlier in this report and 
results in an increase to the scale fee of £6,281.

We confirm we have not undertaken any non-audit work outside of the PSAA’s requirements.

** Our work to certify the Housing Benefit claim is ongoing and we will report any additional fee due to any additional work required to quantify errors in 
the claim in our certification report.

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 6



EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

Ernst & Young LLP

© Ernst & Young LLP. Published in the UK.
All Rights Reserved. 

ED None

The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales 
with registered number OC300001 and is a member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited.

Ernst & Young LLP, 1 More London Place, London, SE1 2AF.

ey.com

P
age 38

A
genda Item

 6



Ernst & Young LLP

Vale of White Horse District Council
Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017

October 2017

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 6



Contents

EY  i

Contents

Executive Summary......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 2

Purpose ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 5

Responsibilities ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 7

Financial Statement Audit ........................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 10

Value for Money............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 14

Other Reporting Issues ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 18

Focused on your future................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 21

Appendix A Audit Fees ......................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 25

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) have issued a ‘‘Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the Chief Executive of each audited body and 
via the PSAA website (www.psaa.co.uk)
The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors 
and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.
The “Terms of Appointment (updated 23 February 2017)” issued by PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit 
Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and statute, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This Annual Audit Letter is prepared in the context of the Statement of responsibilities. It is addressed to the Members of the audited body, and is prepared for their sole use. We, as 
appointed auditor, take no responsibility to any third party.
Our Complaints Procedure – If at any time you would like to discuss with us how our service to you could be improved, or if you are dissatisfied with the service you are receiving, you may 
take the issue up with your usual partner or director contact. If you prefer an alternative route, please contact Steve Varley, our Managing Partner, 1 More London Place, London SE1 2AF. We 
undertake to look into any complaint carefully and promptly and to do all we can to explain the position to you. Should you remain dissatisfied with any aspect of our service, you may of 
course take matters up with our professional institute. We can provide further information on how you may contact our professional institute.

P
age 40

A
genda Item

 6

http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/pages/default.aspx


Executive Summary

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 6



Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Vale of White Horse District Council

EY  2

Executive Summary

We are required to issue an annual audit letter to Vale of White Horse District Council (the Council) following completion of our audit procedures for the 
year ended 31 March 2017. 

Below are the results and conclusions on the significant areas of the audit process.

Area of Work Conclusion

Opinion on the Council’s:
► Financial statements

Unqualified – the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
Council as at 31 March 2017 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended 

► Consistency of other information published 
with the financial statements

Other information published with the financial statements was consistent with the Annual 
Accounts.

Concluding on the Council’s arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness

We concluded that you have put in place proper arrangements to secure value for money in your 
use of resources except for in relation to the Senior Management Restructure. The findings were 
that the Council had not followed the statutory requirements, such as not having a voluntary 
redundancy policy in place (only a compulsory redundancy policy) and not provided an appropriate 
business case to support the Committee in making its decision.
Our review of the senior staffing structure in place after the redundancies confirmed that the 
Council did not have sufficient depth to enable to Council to deliver its functions. This was also 
identified by the Council themselves as during 2016/17 an Interim Chief Operating Officer was 
employed to provide support to the existing structure.

Area of Work Conclusion

Reports by exception:
► Consistency of Governance Statement The Governance Statement was consistent with our understanding of the Council.

► Public interest report We had no matters to report in the public interest.

► Written recommendations to the Council, which 
should be copied to the Secretary of State

We had no matters to report. 

We had no matters to report. 

P
age 42

A
genda Item

 6



Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Vale of White Horse District Council

EY  3

► Other actions taken in relation to our 
responsibilities under the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014

Area of Work Conclusion

Reporting to the National Audit Office (NAO) on our 
review of the Council’s Whole of Government 
Accounts return (WGA). 

The Council is below the specified audit threshold of £350 million. Therefore, we did not perform 
any audit procedures on the consolidation pack.

As a result of the above we have also:

Area of Work Conclusion

Issued a report to those charged with governance 
of the Council communicating significant findings 
resulting from our audit.

Our Audit Results Report was issued on 25 September 2017.
 

Issued a certificate that we have completed the 
audit in accordance with the requirements of the 
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the 
National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of Audit 
Practice.

Our certificate was issued on 25 September 2017. 

In November 2017 we will also issue a report to those charged with governance of the Council summarising the certification work we have undertaken. 

We would like to take this opportunity to thank the Council’s staff for their assistance during the course of our work. 

Andrew Brittain

Associate Partner
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLPP

age 43

A
genda Item

 6



Purpose

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 6



Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Vale of White Horse District Council

EY  5

Purpose 

The Purpose of this Letter
The purpose of this annual audit letter is to communicate to Members and external stakeholders, including members of the public, the key issues arising 
from our work, which we consider should be brought to the attention of the Council. 

We have already reported the detailed findings from our audit work in our 2016/17 Audit Results Report to the 25 September 2017 Joint Audit and 
Governance Committee, representing those charged with governance. We do not repeat those detailed findings in this letter. The matters reported here 
are the most significant for the Council.

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 6



Responsibilit ies

P
age 46

A
genda Item

 6



Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Vale of White Horse District Council

EY  7

Responsibilities

Responsibilities of the Appointed Auditor
Our 2016/17 audit work has been undertaken in accordance with the Audit Plan that we issued on 23 January 2017 and is conducted in accordance with 
the National Audit Office's 2015 Code of Audit Practice, International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland), and other guidance issued by the National 
Audit Office. 

As auditors we are responsible for:

► Expressing an opinion:

► On the 2016/17 financial statements, and

► On the consistency of other information published with the financial statements.

► Forming a conclusion on the arrangements the Council has to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

► Reporting by exception:

► If the annual governance statement is misleading or not consistent with our understanding of the Council;

► Any significant matters that are in the public interest; 

► Any written recommendations to the Council, which should be copied to the Secretary of State; and

► If we have discharged our duties and responsibilities as established by thy Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and Code of Audit Practice. 

Alongside our work on the financial statements, we also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO) on you Whole of Government Accounts 
return. The Council is below the specified audit threshold of £350 million. Therefore, we did not perform any audit procedures on the return.

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 6



Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Vale of White Horse District Council

EY  8

Responsibilities of the Council 
The Council is responsible for preparing and publishing its statement of accounts accompanied by an Annual Governance Statement. In the AGS, the 
Council reports publicly each year on how far it complies with its own code of governance, including how it has monitored and evaluated the effectiveness 
of its governance arrangements in year, and any changes planned in the coming period. 

The Council is also responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

P
age 48

A
genda Item

 6



Financial Statement 
Audit

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 6



Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Vale of White Horse District Council 

EY  10

Financial Statement Audit

Key Issues
The Council’s Statement of Accounts is an important tool for the Council to show how it has used public money and how it can demonstrate its financial 
management and financial health.

We audited the Council Statement of Accounts in line with the National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice, International Standards on Auditing 
(UK and Ireland), and other guidance issued by the National Audit Office and issued an unqualified audit report on 26 September 2017.

Our detailed findings were reported to the 25 September 2017 Joint Audit and Governance Committee.

The key issues identified as part of our audit were as follows:

Significant Risk Conclusion

Management override of controls
As identified in ISA 240, management is in a unique 
position to perpetrate fraud because of its ability to 
manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and to 
prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding 
controls that otherwise seem to be operating effectively. 
We identify and respond to this fraud risk on every audit 
engagement.
In addition to the risk details outlined from our Audit Plan 
above, we have identified an additional risk that 
management could use the Movement in Reserves (MIRS) 
adjustments to add or remove items from the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) 
to alter the reserve position of the Council. Such 
adjustments would not change the outturn in the CIES but 
could inflate reserves artificially.

We have not identified any material weaknesses in controls or evidence of material 
management override.
We have not identified any instances of inappropriate judgements being applied.
We did not identify any other transactions during our audit which appeared unusual or 
outside the Council’s normal course of business.
We did not identify any issues from our testing of the MIRS adjustments note.

Revenue and expenditure recognition
Under ISA240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be 
misstated due to improper recognition of revenue.

Our testing has not identified any material misstatements from revenue and expenditure 
recognition.

P
age 50

A
genda Item

 6



Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Vale of White Horse District Council 

EY  11

In the public sector this requirement is modified by Practice 
Note 10, issued by the Financial Reporting council, which 
states that auditors should also consider the risk that 
material misstatements may occur by manipulating 
expenditure recognition.

Overall our audit work did not identify any material issues or unusual transactions to 
indicate any misreporting of the Council’s financial position.

Other Key Findings Conclusion

Accounting for Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, Plant and Equipment represent a significant balance in the Council’s accounts 
and are subject to valuation changes, impairment reviews and depreciation charges.
Material judgemental inputs and estimation techniques are required to calculate the year-
end fixed assets balances held in the balance sheet.
The Councils engage an external expert valuer who applies a number of complex 
assumptions. Annually, assets are assessed to identify whether there is any indication of 
impairment.
As the Council’s asset base is significant, and the outputs from the valuer are subject to 
estimation, there is a risk fixed assets may be under/overstated or the associated 
accounting entries incorrectly posted. ISAs (UK and Ireland) 500 and 540 require us to 
undertake procedures on the use of management experts and the assumptions 
underlying fair value estimates.
This risk relates to assets that are revalued.

Overall we have not identified any material issues in the 
valuations based on our work performed.

Pension Valuations and Disclosures
The Code and IAS19 require the Councils to make extensive disclosures within its 
financial statements regarding the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) in which 
they are admitted bodies.
The Council’s current pension fund deficit is a material and sensitive item and the Code 
requires that this liability be disclosed on the Council’s balance sheet.
The information disclosed is based on the IAS 19 reports issued to the Councils by the 
actuary to the administering body.
Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and judgement and therefore 
management engages an actuary to undertake the calculations on their behalf. ISAs (UK 
and
Ireland) 500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures on the use of management 
experts and the assumptions underlying fair value estimates.

Assumptions used by the actuary and adopted by the 
Councils are considered to be generally acceptable. 
However, our internal pensions specialists did identify that 
the methodologies used to derive the discount rate and 
RPI inflation assumptions are not robust as they do not 
take adequate account of the specific duration of the 
Scheme’s liabilities. In future years, this could lead to 
unacceptable assumptions.

No other issues have been identified in completing our 
work.P

age 51

A
genda Item

 6



Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Vale of White Horse District Council 

EY  12

Our application of materiality
When establishing our overall audit strategy, we determined a magnitude of uncorrected misstatements that we judged would be material for the 
financial statements as a whole. 

Item Thresholds applied

Planning materiality We determined planning materiality to be £1.2 million (2015/16: £1.1 million), which is 2% of 
gross revenue expenditure reported in the accounts.
We consider gross revenue expenditure to be one of the principal considerations for stakeholders 
in assessing the financial performance of the Council.

Reporting threshold We agreed with the Joint Audit and Governance Committee that we would report to the 
Committee all audit unadjusted differences in excess of £62k (2015/16: £58k)

We also identified the following areas where misstatement at a level lower than our overall materiality level might influence the reader.  For these areas 
we developed an audit strategy specific to these areas. The areas identified and audit strategy applied include:

 Remuneration disclosures including any severance payments, exit packages and termination benefits;

 Related party transactions; and

 Members Allowances

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the quantitative measures of materiality discussed above and in light of other relevant 
qualitative considerations.

P
age 52

A
genda Item

 6



Value for Money

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 6



Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Vale of White Horse District Council

EY  14

Value for Money

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of 
resources. This is known as our value for money conclusion.

Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office. They comprise your arrangements to:

 Take informed decisions;
 Deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and
 Work with partners and other third parties.

Proper arrangements for 
securing value for money  

Informed 
decision making 

Working with 
partners and 
third parties

Sustainable 
resource 

deployment

P
age 54

A
genda Item

 6



Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Vale of White Horse District Council

EY  15

We identified two significant risks in relation to these arrangements. The tables below present the findings of our work in response to the risks identified 
and any other significant weaknesses or issues to bring to your attention.

We have performed the procedures outlined in our audit plan. We identified the following significant weaknesses in the Council’s arrangements to ensure 
it took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. 

A review of the processes followed by the Councils confirmed that there was an insufficient set of arrangements in place to allow informed decisions to be 
made. This included the lack of a formal business case, to allow Committee members to make their decision on the redundancies. In addition, the 
remaining senior management structure did not have sufficient capacity to take on the roles of the staff that left. As a result the Councils employed a Joint 
Interim Chief Operating Officer during the year. However, this in itself was not deemed satisfactory to fill the gap in capacity.

We therefore issued a qualified value for money conclusion in relation to informed decision making on 25 September 2017.

Significant Risk Conclusion

Implementation of the Corporate Services 
Contract 
From the 1 August 2016, the Council began the 
implementation of the Corporate Services 
Contracts with Capita and Vinci, as part of the 
five Council Partnership arrangements.
These contracts were designed to generate 
savings of over £50m across their lifetime of 
nine years.
Given this is a significant change to the 
operational running of the Council there is a 
risk that the performance of the Councils 
reduces. 
Additionally there is a risk that the savings 
identified at the procurement stage aren’t 
being realised in practice.

We have seen evidence that the Council has internal governance arrangements for the Contracts in 
place throughout the year through a series of dedicated groups to monitor progress and respond to 
any issues identified.
The Inter Authority Agreement between the five councils plus the contracts with Capita and Vinci set 
out a number of key boards and committees to provide oversight. We identified the governance 
arrangements have subsequently been reviewed during the year and some of the governance bodies 
have not met as regularly as intended. However, we have seen evidence overall that there were 
regular meetings at an individual council level which addressed the key issues.
These groups have been used to monitor the transition of the key systems, some of which have had 
significant delays. The main reason for the delays in systems going live is the Councils insistence on 
there being a strong control environment in place.
During the last year the Council has identified some issues with the contracts which are being actively 
discussed and resolved with the suppliers. From review of the latest financial projections, these show 
a decrease in the overall savings being realised over the lifetime of the contracts. In the case of the 
Capita contract, the more innovative elements of the contract, including the procurement and 
innovation hubs, need to be re-thought due to changes in context and the five Councils’ strategies 
since the ideas were originally conceived. Capita is working proactively with the councils to reframe 
these aspects of the contract. The Council is also working with Vinci to rectify degradation in 
projected savings across the term of the contracts.
For the 2016/17 conclusion, we have taken into account that the Council has not included the 
savings linked to the innovative areas of the Capital contract within its medium term financial plan. In 
addition the Five Council Partnership is still budgeted to generate savings for the Council over the 
lifetime of the contract.

P
age 55

A
genda Item

 6



Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Vale of White Horse District Council

EY  16

We have therefore been able to gain assurance over this significant risk. 

Senior Management Restructure
During 2016/17, as part of the transition to the 
new corporate services contracts, there have 
been significant changes to the joint senior 
management team at the Councils. The 
existing Joint Chief Executive retired and was 
replaced by David Hill. In addition two Strategic 
Directors left the Councils through voluntary 
redundancy.
Given the background of the new Corporate 
Services Contract with the accompanying 
significant organisational change and the 
seniority of these departures, there is a risk 
that the Councils have not put in place proper 
arrangements to ensure they took properly 
informed decisions and deployed resources to 
achieve planned and sustainable outcomes.

The Council engaged an external advisor (Bevan Brittan) to undertake a review of the redundancies 
that took place in 2016/17. The findings from this review were that the Council had not followed the 
statutory requirements, such as not having a voluntary redundancy policy in place (only a compulsory 
redundancy policy) and not providing an appropriate business case to support the Committee in 
making its decision.
We have corroborated these findings and can confirm that the Council had not put in place proper 
arrangements to allow them to make informed decisions.
Our review of the senior staffing structure in place after the redundancies confirmed that the Council 
did not have sufficient depth to enable the Council to deliver their functions. This was also identified 
by the Council itself as during 2016/17 an Interim Chief Operating Officer was employed to provide 
support to the existing structure. We note that the Council has set up a new interim structure in 
August 2017 with a view to recruiting new heads of service to bring them to 9 positions (up from 6).
Consequently our value for money conclusion was qualified on an “except for” basis in relation to the 
Senior Management Restructure.

P
age 56

A
genda Item

 6



Other Reporting 
Issues

P
age 57

A
genda Item

 6



Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Vale of White Horse District Council

EY  18

Other Reporting Issues

Whole of Government Accounts
The Council is below the specified audit threshold of £350 million. Therefore, we did not perform any audit procedures on the consolidation pack.

Annual Governance Statement
We are required to consider the completeness of disclosures in the Council’s annual governance statement, identify any inconsistencies with the other 
information of which we are aware from our work, and consider whether it is misleading.

We completed this work and identified that the draft Annual Governance Statement was not prepared until August 2017 (the requirement per the Audit 
and Accounts Regulations 2015 is that the draft Annual Governance Statement is available for public inspection along with the accounts by 30 June 
2017).

Report in the Public Interest 
We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to consider whether, in the public interest, to report on any matter that comes to our 
attention in the course of the audit in order for it to be considered by the Council or brought to the attention of the public.

We did not identify any issues which required us to issue a report in the public interest.

Written Recommendations
We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to designate any audit recommendation as one that requires the Council to consider it 
at a public meeting and to decide what action to take in response. 

We did not identify any issues which required us to issue a written recommendation.

Objections Received
We did not receive any objections to the 2016/17 financial statements from member of the public. 

Other Powers and Duties
We identified no issues during our audit that required us to use our additional powers under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. P

age 58

A
genda Item

 6



Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Vale of White Horse District Council

EY  19

Independence
We communicated our assessment of independence in our Audit Results Report to the Joint Audit and Governance Committee on 25 September 2017. In 
our professional judgement the firm is independent and the objectivity of the audit engagement partner and audit staff has not been compromised within 
the meaning regulatory and professional requirements. 

Control Themes and Observations
As part of our work, we obtained an understanding of internal control sufficient to plan our audit and determine the nature, timing and extent of testing 
performed. Although our audit was not designed to express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control, we are required to communicate to you 
significant deficiencies in internal control identified during our audit. 

We have adopted a fully substantive approach and have therefore not tested the operation of controls. 

Our audit did not identify any controls issues to bring to the attention of the Joint Audit and Governance Committee.

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 6



Focused on your 
future

P
age 60

A
genda Item

 6



Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Vale of White Horse District Council

EY  21

Focused on your future

Area Issue Impact

Earlier deadline 
for production 
and audit of the 
financial 
statements from 
2017/18

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 introduced a 
significant change in statutory deadlines from the 2017/18 
financial year. From that year the timetable for the 
preparation and approval of accounts will be brought 
forward with draft accounts needing to be prepared by 31 
May and the publication of the audited accounts by 31 July.

These changes provide challenges for both the preparers and the 
auditors of the financial statements.
To prepare for this change the Councils have taken a number of 
steps as outlined below:
• Undertaking a critical review of the closedown process to achieve 
draft accounts production by 31 May for 2017/18.
Note that the accounts were prepared for the 30 June for 2016/17.
• Streamlined the Statement of Accounts removing all non-material 
disclosure notes
• Undertaking a review of tasks performed at year-end only (e.g fixed 
assets) to see whether work can be completed on a 
monthly/quarterly basis, reducing year-end pressure

As auditors, nationally we have:
• Issued a thought piece on early closedown
• As part of the strategic Alliance with CIPFA jointly presented 
accounts closedown workshops across England, Scotland and Wales
• Presented at CIPFA early closedown events and on the subject at 
the Local Government Accounting Conferences in July 2017

Locally we have:
• Had regular discussions through the year on the Councils 
proposals to bring forward the closedown timetable
• Together with the Councils agreed areas for early work which have 
included testing of major income and expenditure streams at month 
9

IFRS 9 Financial 
Instruments

Applicable for local authority accounts from the 2018/19 
financial year and will change:
• How financial assets are classified and measured

Although some initial thoughts on the approach to adopting IFRS 9 
have been issued by CIPFA, until the Code is issued and any 
statutory overrides are confirmed there remains some uncertainty.
However, what is clear is that the Councils will have to:

P
age 61

A
genda Item

 6



Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Vale of White Horse District Council

EY  22

Area Issue Impact
• How the impairment of financial assets are calculated
• Financial hedge accounting
• The disclosure requirements for financial assets.

• Transitional arrangements are included within the 
accounting standard, however as the 2018/19 Accounting 
Code of Practice for Local Authorities has yet to be issued it 
is unclear what the impact on local authority accounting will 
be and whether any accounting statutory overrides will be 
introduced to mitigate any impact.

• Reclassify existing financial instrument assets
• Remeasure and recalculate potential impairments of those assets; 
and
• Prepare additional disclosure notes for material items
The Council is awaiting clarification of the exact requirements before 
investing time in the above work.

IFRS 15 
Revenue from 
Contracts with 
Customers

Applicable for local authority accounts from the 2018/19 
financial year. This new standard deals with accounting for 
all contracts with customers except:
• Leases;
• Financial instruments;
• Insurance contracts; and
• for local authorities; Council Tax and NDR income.
The key requirements of the standard cover the 
identification of performance obligations under customer 
contracts and the linking of income to the meeting of those 
performance obligations.
• There are transitional arrangements within the standard; 
however as the 2018/19 Accounting Code of Practice for 
Local Authorities has yet to be issued it is unclear what the 
impact on local authority accounting will be.

As with IFRS 9, some initial thoughts on the approach to adopting 
IFRS 15 have been issued by CIPFA. However, until the Code is 
issued there remains some uncertainty. However, what is clear is 
that for all material income sources from customers the Council will 
have to:
• Disaggregate revenue into appropriate categories
• Identify relevant performance obligations and allocate income to 
each
• Summarise significant judgements
The Councils are awaiting clarification of the exact requirements 
before investing time in the above work.

IFRS 16 Leases IFRS 16 will be applicable for local authority accounts from 
the 2019/20 financial year.
Whilst the definition of a lease remains similar to the 
current leasing standard; IAS 17, for local authorities who 
lease in a large number of assets the new standard will have 
a significant impact, with nearly all current leases being 
included on the balance sheet.
There are transitional arrangements within the standard, 
although as the 2019/20 Accounting Code of Practice for 

Until the 2019/20 Accounting Code is issued and any statutory 
overrides are confirmed there remains some uncertainty in this area.
However, what is clear is that the Councils will need to undertake a 
detailed exercise to classify all of its leases and therefore must 
ensure that all lease arrangements are fully documented.
The Councils are has yet to commence work in this area due to the 
timing of implementation.

P
age 62

A
genda Item

 6



Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Vale of White Horse District Council

EY  23

Area Issue Impact
Local Authorities has yet to be issued it is unclear what the 
impact on local authority accounting will be or whether any 
statutory overrides will be introduced.

P
age 63

A
genda Item

 6



Audit Fees

Appendix A

P
age 64

A
genda Item

 6



Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Vale of White Horse District Council

EY  25

Appendix A Audit Fees

Our fee for 2016/17 is detailed below and is in line with the fees reported in the Audit Plan and Audit Results Report. 

Description
Final Fee 2016/17
£

Planned Fee 2016/17
£

Scale Fee 2016/17
£

Final Fee 2015/16
£

Total Audit Fee – Code work 53,410* 47,129 47,129 49,705

Total Audit Fee – Certification of 
claims and returns

12,488** 12,488 12,488 11,616

Total Audit Fee 65,898 59,617 59,617 61,321

* The variation to the scale fee identified above is due to the following;

Additional work to address the significant risks to the Value for Money Conclusion relating to the Implementation of the Corporate Services Contract and 
the Senior Management Restructure. Details of the additional procedures performed are included in the Value for Money Section, earlier in this report and 
results in an increase to the scale fee of £6,281.

We confirm we have not undertaken any non-audit work outside of the PSAA’s requirements.

** Our work to certify the Housing Benefit claim is ongoing and we will report any additional fee due to any additional work required to quantify errors in 
the claim in our certification report.

P
age 65

A
genda Item

 6



EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

Ernst & Young LLP

© Ernst & Young LLP. Published in the UK.
All Rights Reserved. 

ED None

The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales 
with registered number OC300001 and is a member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited.

Ernst & Young LLP, 1 More London Place, London, SE1 2AF.

ey.com

P
age 66

A
genda Item

 6



Ernst & Young LLP

Certification of claims and
returns annual report 2016-17
South Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White
Horse District Council

December 2017

Page 67

Agenda Item 7



The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales with registered number OC300001 and is a member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited.
A list of members’ names is available for inspection at 1 More London Place, London
SE1 2AF, the firm’s principal place of business and registered office.

The Members of the Joint Audit & Governance Committee
South Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White
Horse District Council
135 Eastern Avenue
Milton Park
Milton
OX14 4SB

December 2017
Ref: HB1

Direct line: 07976 515115
Email: Abrittain@uk.ey.com

Dear Members

Certification of claims and returns annual report 2016-17
South Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District
Council

We are pleased to report on our certification and other assurance work. This report summarises the
results of our work on South Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District Council (the
Councils) 2016-17 claim.

Scope of work
Local authorities claim large sums of public money in grants and subsidies from central government and
other grant-paying bodies and must complete returns providing financial information to government
departments. In some cases these grant-paying bodies and government departments require
appropriately qualified auditors to certify the claims and returns submitted to them.

From 1 April 2015, the duty to make arrangements for the certification of relevant claims and returns and
to prescribe scales of fees for this work was delegated to the Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd
(PSAA) by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government.

For 2016-17, these arrangements required only the certification of the housing benefits subsidy claim. In
certifying this we followed a methodology determined by the Department for Work and Pensions and did
not undertake an audit of the claim.

Summary
Section 1 of this report outlines the results of our 2016-17 certification work.

We checked and certified the housing benefits subsidy claims with a total value of £28,867,478 (South
Oxfordshire District Council) and £28,005,500 (Vale of White Horse District Council). We met the
submission deadline.

For South Oxfordshire District Council our certification work found errors which the Council corrected.
The amendments did not have an impact on the grant due.

Ernst & Young LLP
Apex Plaza
Forbury Road
Reading
RG1 1YE

Tel: + 44 118 928 1599
Fax: + 44 118 928 1101
ey.com

Tel: 023 8038 2000

Page 68

Agenda Item 7

mailto:Abrittain@uk.ey.com


Fees for certification and other returns work are summarised in section 2. The housing benefits subsidy
claim fees for 2016-17 were published by the Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) in March
2016 and are available on the PSAA’s website (www.psaa.co.uk).

We welcome the opportunity to discuss the contents of this report with you at the 29 January Joint Audit
and Governance Committee.

Yours faithfully

Andrew Brittain
Associate Partner
Ernst & Young LLP
Enc

Page 69

Agenda Item 7



Contents

EY ÷ i

Contents
1. Housing benefits subsidy claim ................................................................................. 1
2. 2016-17 certification fees............................................................................................ 2
3. Looking forward .......................................................................................................... 3

Page 70

Agenda Item 7



Housing benefits subsidy claim

EY ÷ 1

1. Housing benefits subsidy claim

1.1 South Oxfordshire District Council

1.2 Vale of White Horse District Council

Local Government administers the Government’s housing benefits scheme for tenants and
can claim subsidies from the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) towards the cost of
benefits paid.

Scope of work Results

Value of claim presented for
certification

£28,867,478

Amended/Not amended Amended – minor amendments made to the
claim to adjust for errors identified. This had no
impact on the subsidy paid.

Qualification letter No

Fee – 2016-17
Fee – 2015-16

£9,623
£10,972

Scope of work Results

Value of claim presented for
certification

£28,005,500

Amended/Not amended Not amended

Qualification letter No

Fee – 2016-17
Fee – 2015-16

£12,488
£11,616

Page 71

Agenda Item 7



2016-17 certification fees

EY ÷ 2

2. 2016-17 certification fees

The PSAA determine a scale fee each year for the audit of claims and returns.  For 2016-17,
these scale fees were published by the Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA’s) in
March 2016 and are available on the PSAA’s website (www.psaa.co.uk).

Claim or return 2016-17 2016-17 2015-16

Total Housing benefits subsidy claim
Actual fee

£
Indicative fee

£
Actual fee

£

South Oxfordshire DC 9,623 9,623 10,972

Vale of White Horse DC 12,488 12,488 11,616

Page 72

Agenda Item 7



Looking forward

EY ÷ 3

3. Looking forward

2017/18

From 1 April 2015, the duty to make arrangements for the certification of relevant claims and
returns and to prescribe scales of fees for this work was delegated to (PSAA) by the
Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government.

The indicative certification fee for 2017/18 for South Oxfordshire District Council is £10,972
and for Vale of White Horse District Council £11,616. This was set by PSAA and is based on
final 2015/16 certification fees.

Details of individual indicative fees are available at the following web address:
https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-fees/201718-work-programme-and-scales-of-fees/individual-
indicative-certification-fees/

We must seek the agreement of PSAA to any proposed variations to these indicative
certification fees. We will inform the Head of Finance before seeking any such variation.

2018/19

From 2018/19, the Councils will be responsible for appointing their own reporting accountant
to undertake the certification of the housing benefit subsidy claim in accordance with the
Housing Benefit Assurance Process (HBAP) requirements that are being established by the
DWP.  DWP’s HBAP guidance is under consultation and is expected to be published around
January 2018.

We would be pleased to undertake this work for you and will provide a competitive quotation
for this work.

We currently provide HB subsidy certification to 106 clients, through our specialist
Government & Public Sector team. We provide a quality service, and are proud that in the
PSAA’s latest Annual Regulatory and Compliance Report (July 2017) we score the highest of
all providers, with an average score of 2.6 (out of 3).

As we also expect to be appointed by PSAA in December 2017 as your statutory auditor we
can provide a comprehensive assurance service, making efficiencies for you and building on
the knowledge and relationship we have established with your Housing Benefits service.

Page 73

Agenda Item 7

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-fees/201718-work-programme-and-scales-of-fees/individual-indicative-certification-fees/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-fees/201718-work-programme-and-scales-of-fees/individual-indicative-certification-fees/


EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

Ernst & Young LLP

© Ernst & Young LLP. Published in the UK.
All Rights Reserved.

The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales
with registered number OC300001 and is a member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited.

Ernst & Young LLP, 1 More London Place, London, SE1 2AF.

ey.com

Page 74

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire
and Vale of White
Horse District
Councils

Audit planning report
Year ended 31 March 2018

29 January 2018

P
age 75

A
genda Item

 8



2

Private and Confidential 29/01/2018

Dear Joint Audit and Governance Committee Members

Audit Planning Report

We are pleased to attach our Audit Plan which sets out how we intend to carry out our responsibilities as auditor. Its purpose is to provide the
Joint Audit and Governance Committee with a basis to review our proposed audit approach and scope for the 2017/18 audit in accordance with
the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice, the Statement of
Responsibilities issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) Ltd, auditing standards and other professional requirements. It is also to
ensure that our audit is aligned with the Committee’s service expectations.

This plan summarises our initial assessment of the key risks driving the development of an effective audit for the Councils, and outlines our
planned audit strategy in response to those risks.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Joint Audit and Governance Committee and management, and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss this report with you on 29/01/2018 as well as understand whether there are other matters which you
consider may influence our audit.

Yours faithfully

Andrew Brittain

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Enc

Joint Audit & Governance Committee
South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils
135 Eastern Avenue
Milton Park
Milton, OX14 4SB

P
age 76

A
genda Item

 8



3

Contents

In April 2015 Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the via the PSAA website (www.PSAA.co.uk).
The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors and audited
bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.
The “Terms of Appointment (updated February 2017)” issued by the PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code
of Audit Practice (the Code) and in legislation, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This report is made solely to the Joint Audit and Governance Committee and management of the councils in accordance with the statement of responsibilities. Our work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the Audit Committee, and management of WBC those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Joint Audit and Governance Committee and management of councils for this report or for the opinions we have formed. It should not be provided to any third-
party without our prior written consent.

Overview of our
2017/18 audit
strategy

01 Audit risks02 Audit
materiality04 Scope of our

audit05

Appendices09Audit team06 Audit
timeline07 Independence08

Value for
Money Risks03

V
F
M

P
age 77

A
genda Item

 8

http://www.psaa.co.uk/


4

Overview of our 2017/18 audit
strategy01 01

P
age 78

A
genda Item

 8



5

Overview of our 2017/18 audit strategy

Audit risks and areas of focus

Risk / area of focus Risk identified Change from PY Details

Risk of fraud due to management
override

Fraud risk No change,
required on all

audits

As identified in ISA 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud
because of its ability to manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and
prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that would
otherwise appear to be operating effectively.

Risk of fraud in revenue recognition Fraud risk No change,
required on all

audits

Under ISA240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to
improper recognition of revenue. In the public sector, this requirement is
modified by Practice Note 10.

The following ‘dashboard’ summarises the significant accounting and auditing matters outlined in this report. It seeks to provide the Joint Audit and
Governance Committee with an overview of our initial risk identification for the upcoming audit and any changes in risks identified in the current year.

P
age 79

A
genda Item

 8



6

Overview of our 2017/18 audit strategy

Materiality – Vale of White Horse District Council

Risk / area of focus Risk identified Change from PY Details

Planning
materiality

£1.24m
Performance

materiality

£932k
Audit

differences

£62k

Materiality has been set at £1.24m, which represents 2% of the prior years gross expenditure on provision of services.

Performance materiality has been set at £932k, which represents 75% of materiality.

We will report all uncorrected misstatements relating to the primary statements (comprehensive income
and expenditure statement, balance sheet, movement in reserves statement, cash flow statement,
housing revenue account and collection fund) greater than £62k.  Other misstatements identified will be
communicated to the extent that they merit the attention of the Joint Audit and Governance
Committee.

The following ‘dashboard’ summarises the significant accounting and auditing matters outlined in this report. It seeks to provide the Joint Audit and
Governance Committee with an overview of our initial risk identification for the upcoming audit and any changes in risks identified in the current year.

Materiality – South Oxfordshire District Council

Planning
materiality

£1.45m
Performance

materiality

£1.09m
Audit

differences

£68k

Materiality has been set at £1.45m, which represents 2% of the prior years gross expenditure on provision of services.

Performance materiality has been set at £1.09m, which represents 75% of materiality.

We will report all uncorrected misstatements relating to the primary statements (comprehensive income
and expenditure statement, balance sheet, movement in reserves statement, cash flow statement,
housing revenue account and collection fund) greater than £68k.  Other misstatements identified will be
communicated to the extent that they merit the attention of the Joint Audit and Governance
Committee.

P
age 80

A
genda Item

 8



7

Overview of our 2017/18 audit strategy

Audit scope

This Audit Plan covers the work that we plan to perform to provide you with:

§ Our audit opinion on whether the financial statements of Vale of White Horse District Council and South Oxfordshire District Council (the Councils) give a true and
fair view of the financial position as at 31 March 2018 and of the income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

§ Our conclusion on the Councils’ arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

We will also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO), to the extent and in the form required by them, on the Councils’ Whole of Government Accounts
(WGA) return.

Our audit will also include the mandatory procedures that we are required to perform in accordance with applicable laws and auditing standards.

When planning the audit we take into account several key inputs:

§ Strategic, operational and financial risks relevant to the financial statements;
§ Developments in financial reporting and auditing standards;
§ The quality of systems and processes;
§ Changes in the business and regulatory environment; and,
§ Management’s views on all of the above.

By considering these inputs, our audit is focused on the areas that matter and our feedback is more likely to be relevant to the Councils.

Audit team changes

Key changes to our team.

Manager
Malcolm Haines has taken over the role as Manager. Malcolm is very experienced in the audit of local
authority and NHS accounts. Based at our Reading office, his current portfolio includes local councils and
clinical commissioning groups across Berkshire, Hampshire and West Sussex.P

age 81

A
genda Item

 8



8

Audit risks02 01

P
age 82

A
genda Item

 8



9

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks
What will we do?

Our approach will focus on:
• Testing the appropriateness of journal entries recorded in the general

ledger and other adjustments made in the preparation of the financial
statements.

• Reviewing accounting estimates for evidence of management bias.
• Evaluating the business rationale for significant unusual transactions.
• Reviewing capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment to

ensure it meets the relevant accounting requirements to be capitalised..

What is the risk?

As identified in ISA (UK and Ireland) 240,
management is in a unique position to
perpetrate fraud because of its ability to
manipulate accounting records directly or
indirectly and prepare fraudulent financial
statements by overriding controls that
otherwise appear to be operating effectively. We
identify and respond to this fraud risk on every
audit engagement.
For local authorities, the potential for the
incorrect classification of revenue spend as
capital is a particular area where there is a risk
of management override.

Management Override

Risk of Fraud in Revenue
Recognition

What is the risk?

Under ISA240 there is a presumed risk that
revenue may be misstated due to improper
recognition of revenue.
In the public sector, this requirement is modified
by Practice Note 10, issued by the Financial
Reporting Council, which states that auditors
should also consider the risk that material
misstatements may occur by the manipulation of
expenditure recognition.

What will we do?

We will
• Review and test revenue and expenditure recognition policies.
• Review and discuss with management any accounting estimates on

revenue or expenditure recognition for evidence of bias.
• Develop a testing strategy to test material revenue and expenditure

streams.
• Review and test revenue cut-off at the period end date.
• Review capital spend for correct classification.

P
age 83

A
genda Item

 8



10

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus

What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

Introduction of new General Ledger We note that the Councils were planning to implement a new general ledger system during 2017/18. This
creates audit risks around the transfer of data and functionality of the new system, both of which have an
obvious potential impact on the production of the year-end financial statements. However, our most
recent meetings with the Councils indicate that this may not now happen until after 1 April 2018, thus
creating an audit risk for the next financial year. However, we will continue to monitor the situation and,
should the ledger be introduced in the remainder of 2017/18, we will issue a supplement to this Plan to
account for the risk.

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
PPE represent a significant balance in the Councils’
accounts and are subject to valuation changes, impairment
reviews and depreciation charges.
Material judgemental inputs and estimation techniques are
required to calculate the year-end fixed assets balances
held in the balance sheet.
The Councils engage an external expert valuerwho applies
a number of complex assumptions. Annually, assets are
assessed to identify whether there is any indication of
impairment.
As the Councils’ asset bases are significant, and the outputs
from the valuer are subject to estimation, there is a risk
fixed assets may be under/overstated or the associated
accounting entries incorrectly posted.  ISAs (UK and
Ireland) 500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures
on the use of management experts and the assumptions
underlying fair value estimates.
This risk relates to assets that are revalued.

Our approach will focus on:
• Consideration of the work performed by the Councils’ valuer, BrutonKnowles, including the adequacy of

the scope of the work performed, professional capabilities and the results of their work.
• Review and sample testing over the key asset information used by Bruton Knowles in performing their

valuation;
• Consideration of the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that assets have been valued within a 5 year

rolling programme as required by the Code. We have also considered if there are any specific changes to
assets that have occurred and that these have been communicated to the valuer;

• Review of the desktop review and valuations performed by management’s internal valuerover assets
not subject to external valuation in 2017/18 to confirm that the remaining asset base is not materially
misstated;

• Considered changes to useful economic lives as a result of the most recent valuation;
• Considered whether asset categories held at cost have been assessed for impairment and are materially

correct; and
• Testing that the accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial statements, including

the treatment of impairments.

We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures and therefore may be key audit matters we will include in our audit report.

P
age 84

A
genda Item

 8



11

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus

What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

Pension Liability Valuation

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the
Councils to make extensive disclosures within its financial statements
regarding their membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme
administered by Oxfordshire County Council.

The Councils’ pension fund deficit is a material estimated balance and the
Code requires that this liability be disclosed on the Councils’ balance
sheets. At 31 March 2017 this totalled £59.4 million for South
Oxfordshire District Council and £45.5 million for Vale of White Horse
District Council.

The information disclosed is based on the IAS 19 report issued to the
Councils by the actuary to the County Council.

Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and judgement
and therefore management engages an actuary to undertake the
calculations on their behalf. ISAs (UK and Ireland) 500 and 540 require us
to undertake procedures on the use of management experts and the
assumptions underlying fair value estimates.

We will:
• Liaise with the auditors of Oxfordshire Pension Fund, to obtain assurances over the

information supplied to the actuary in relation to both Councils;
• Assess the work of the Pension Fund actuary (Barnett Waddingham) including the

assumptions they have used by relying on the work of PWC - Consulting Actuaries
commissioned by the National Audit Office for all Local Government sector auditors,
and considering any relevant reviews by the EY actuarial team; and

• Review and test the accounting entries and disclosures made within the Councils’
financial statements in relation to IAS19.

We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures and therefore may be key audit matters we will include in our audit report.

P
age 85

A
genda Item

 8



12

Value for Money Risks03 01V
F
M

P
age 86

A
genda Item

 8



13

Value for Money

Background

We are required to consider whether the Councils have put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources. This is known as our value for money conclusion.

For 2017/18 this is based on the overall evaluation criterion:

“In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people”

Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office. They comprise
your arrangements to:

§ Take informed decisions;
§ Deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and
§ Work with partners and other third parties.

In considering your proper arrangements, we will draw on the requirements of the CIPFA/SOLACE framework
for local government to ensure that our assessment is made against a framework that you are already required
to have in place and to report on through documents such as your annual governance statement.

We are only required to determine whether there are any risks that we consider significant, which the Code of
Audit Practice defines as:

“A matter is significant if, in the auditor’s professional view, it is reasonable to conclude that the matter would
be of interest to the audited body or the wider public”

Our risk assessment supports the planning of sufficient work to enable us to deliver a safe conclusion on
arrangements to secure value for money and enables us to determine the nature and extent of further work
that may be required. If we do not identify any significant risks there is no requirement to carry out further
work.

Our risk assessment has therefore considered both the potential financial impact of the issues we have
identified, and also the likelihood that the issue will be of interest to local taxpayers, the Government and other
stakeholders. This has resulted in the identification of no significant risks noted on the following page which we
view as relevant to our value for money conclusion.

V
F
M

Proper arrangements for
securing value for money

Informed
decision making

Working with
partners and
third parties

Sustainable
resource

deployment

P
age 87

A
genda Item

 8



14

Value for Money

Value for Money Risks

V
F
M

What is the significant value for money risk? What arrangements does the
risk affect? What will we do?

Implementation of the Corporate Services Contracts

From the 1 August 2016, the two Councils began the implementation of the
Corporate Services Contracts with Capita (Lot 1) and Vinci (Lot 2)
respectively, as part of the five Council Partnership arrangements.
The contracts intended to deliver savings of more than 10% with and initial
expectation of savings up to £50m for the five Councils across their lifetime
of nine years, but the Councils are now in the process of renegotiating both
Lot 1 and Lot 2 due to issues with the way the contracts were constructed
and the implications for the practical implementation of them.
Given the likely significant changes to the two contracts there is a risk that
both the services and financial performance of the Councils would be
negatively impacted if renegotiation results in contracts that are difficult to
implement or do not deliver the intended benefits.

Senior Management restructure
During 2016/17, as part of the transition to the new corporate services
contracts, there were significant changes to the joint senior management
team at the Councils. In 2016/17 our Value for Money (VFM) opinion was
qualified due to uncertainties over the process undertaken in connection
with the redundancies of two strategic directors. Moving into 2017/18, the
councils still has a number of Director and Senior Management vacancies,
which are currently filled on an interim basis. Until the new structure is
permanent and embedded there will be a continued risk to the Councils’
operational structure and decision-making processes.

Deploy resources in a
sustainable manner/ Work with
partners and other third parties

Take informed decisions

Our approach will focus on:
► a review of the governance process and
contracted terms in place over both Lot 1 and Lot 2
contracts, to ensure that all significant respects, the
councils had proper arrangements to achieve
sustainable outcomes.
► reviewing the performance of the corporate
service contracts against KPI’s to identify whether
expected savings are being realised as well as good
operational performance being maintained or
improved.

Our approach will focus on:
► reviewing the current revised senior staffing
structure to ensure that there is appropriate
expertise in place to deliver the functions of the
Councils.
► reviewing the processes undertaken by the
Councils for the departure of the Chief Executive to
confirm that these were in line with local policy and
mandatory requirements.

P
age 88

A
genda Item

 8



15

Audit materiality04 01

P
age 89

A
genda Item

 8



16

Materiality

For planning purposes, materiality for 2017/18 has been set at 2% of the Councils’ prior year gross
expenditure on provision of services. It will be reassessed throughout the audit process.
The rationale for this is that for a public sector entity, the expectations of users (including regulators)
of the entity are focused on the measurement of expenditure and cost of services. Therefore gross
expenditure is the appropriate basis for determining materiality for public sector bodies.
We have provided supplemental information about audit materiality in Appendix D.

Audit materiality

Gross expenditure
on provision of services

£72m Planning
materiality

£1.45m

Performance
materiality

£1.09m Audit
differences

£68k

Materiality

Planning materiality – the amount over which we anticipate
misstatements would influence the economic decisions of a
user of the financial statements.

Performance materiality – the amount we use to determine
the extent of our audit procedures, which represents 75% of
planning materiality.

Audit difference threshold – we propose that misstatements
identified below this threshold are deemed clearly trivial. We
will report to you all uncorrected misstatements over this
amount relating to the comprehensive income and expenditure
statement, balance sheet, housing revenue account and
collection fund that have an effect on income or that relate to
other comprehensive income (OCI).

Other uncorrected misstatements, such as reclassifications and
misstatements in the cashflow statement and movement in
reserves statement or disclosures, and corrected
misstatements will be communicated to the extent that they
merit the attention of the Joint Audit and Governance
Committee, or are important from a qualitative perspective.

Key definitions

We request that the Joint Audit and Governance
Committeeconfirm its understanding of, and agreement to,
these materiality and reporting levels.

Gross expenditure
on provision of services

£62m Planning
materiality

£1.24m

Performance
materiality

£932k Audit
differences

£62k

South Oxfordshire District Council

Vale of White Horse District Council

P
age 90

A
genda Item

 8



17

Scope of our audit05 01

P
age 91

A
genda Item

 8



18

Objective and Scope of our Audit scoping

Under the Code of Audit Practice our principal objectives are to review and report on the Councils’ financial statements and arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources to the extent required by the relevant legislation and the requirements of the Code.

We issue an audit report that covers:

1. Financial statement audit

Our objective is to form an opinion on the financial statements under International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We also perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards, the Code and other regulations. We outline below the procedures we
will undertake during the course of our audit.

Procedures required by standards
• Addressing the risk of fraud and error;
• Significant disclosures included in the financial statements;
• Entity-wide controls;
• Reading other information contained in the financial statements and reporting whether it is inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements; and
• Auditor independence.

Procedures required by the Code
• Reviewing, and reporting on as appropriate, other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual Governance; and
• Reviewing and reporting on the Whole of Government Accounts return, in line with the instructions issued by the NAO

2. Arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness (value for money)

We are required to consider whether the Councils have put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy

P
age 92

A
genda Item

 8



19

Audit Process Overview

Our audit involves:

• Identifying and understanding the key processes and internal controls; and
• Substantive tests of detail of transactions and amounts.

Analytics:

We will use our computer-based analytics tools to enable us to capture whole populations of your financial data, in particular journal entries and payroll. These tools:
• Help identify specific exceptions and anomalies which can then be subject to more traditional substantive audit tests; and
• Give greater likelihood of identifying errors than random sampling techniques.
We will report the findings from our process and analytics work, including any significant weaknesses or inefficiencies identified and recommendations for
improvement, to management and the Joint Audit and Governance Committee.

Internal audit:

We will regularly meet with Internal Audit and review audit plans and the results of their work. We will reflect the findings from these reports, together with reports
from any other work completed in the year, in our detailed audit plan, where they raise issues that could have an impact on the financial statements.

We do not intend placing direct reliance on the work of internal audit for the testing of controls, and our plan is to undertake a fully substantive audit.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy (continued)

P
age 93

A
genda Item

 8



20

Audit team06 01

P
age 94

A
genda Item

 8



21

Audit team

Use of specialists
When auditing key judgements, we are often required to rely on the input and advice provided by specialists who have qualifications and expertise not possessed by the
core audit team. The areas where either EY or third party specialists provide input for the current year audit are:

Area Specialists

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) Bruton Knowles

Pensions disclosure/IAS 19 entries Barnett Waddingham and EY Pensions team

In accordance with Auditing Standards, we will evaluate each specialist’s professional competence and objectivity, considering their qualifications, experience and
available resources, together with the independence of the individuals performing the work.

We also consider the work performed by the specialist in light of our knowledge of the Councils’ business and processes and our assessment of audit risk in the particular
area. For example, we would typically perform the following procedures:

• Analyse source data and make inquiries as to the procedures used by the specialist to establish whether the source data is relevant and reliable;

• Assess the reasonableness of the assumptions and methods used;

• Consider the appropriateness of the timing of when the specialist carried out the work; and

• Assess whether the substance of the specialist’s findings are properly reflected in the financial statements.

P
age 95

A
genda Item

 8



22

Audit timeline07 01

P
age 96

A
genda Item

 8



23

Audit timeline

Below is a timetable showing the key stages of the audit and the deliverables we have agreed to provide to you through the audit cycle in 2017/18.
From time to time matters may arise that require immediate communication with the Joint Audit and Governance Committee and we will discuss them with the Joint
Audit and Governance Committee Chairs as appropriate. We will also provide updates on corporate governance and regulatory matters as necessary.

Timeline

Timetable of communication and deliverables

Jan Mar JulOct Feb MaySep Dec Apr Jun AugNov
Planning Substantive testingWalkthroughs

+Interim Audit

Planning

Risk assessment and setting of scopes

Audit Plan

Reporting our
independence, risk

assessment, planned
audit approach and the

scope of our audit

Walkthroughs +Interim
Audit

Walkthrough of key
systems and processes and

early substantive testing

Interim Audit
Joint Audit and

Governance
Committee Update

Reporting our interim work
and any control

observations and progress
of our work on significant

risks

Annual Audit Letter

The Annual Audit Letter
will be provided following
completion of our audit

procedures

Audit Results Report

Reporting our conclusions on
key judgements and estimates

and confirmation of our
independence

Year End Audit

Work begins on our year
end audit. This is when we

will complete any
substantive testing not
completed at interim

P
age 97

A
genda Item

 8



24

Independence08 01

P
age 98

A
genda Item

 8



25

Independence

The FRC Ethical Standard and ISA (UK) 260 “Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance”, requires us to communicate with you on a timely basis
on all significant facts and matters that bear upon our integrity, objectivity and independence. The Ethical Standard, as revised in June 2016, requires that we
communicate formally both at the planning stage and at the conclusion of the audit, as well as during the course of the audit if appropriate.  The aim of these
communications is to ensure full and fair disclosure by us to those charged with your governance on matters in which you have an interest.

In addition, during the course of the audit, we are required to communicate with you whenever any significant judgements are made about threats to objectivity and
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place, for example, when accepting an engagement to provide non-audit services.
We also provide information on any contingent fee arrangements , the amounts of any future services that have been contracted, and details of any written proposal to
provide non-audit services that has been submitted.
We ensure that the total amount of fees that EY and our network firms have charged to you and your affiliates for the provision of services during the reporting period,
analysed in appropriate categories, are disclosed.

Required communications

Planning stage Final stage

► The principal threats, if any, to objectivity and
independence identified by Ernst & Young (EY)
including consideration of all relationships between
the you, your affiliates and directors and us;

► The safeguards adopted and the reasons why they
are considered to be effective, including any
Engagement Quality review;

► The overall assessment of threats and safeguards;
► Information about the general policies and process

within EY to maintain objectivity and independence.
► Where EY has determined it is appropriate to apply

more restrictive independence rules than permitted
under the Ethical Standard [note: additional
wording should be included in the communication
reflecting the client specific situation]

► In order for you to assess the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm and each covered person,
we are required to provide a written disclosure of relationships (including the provision of non-audit
services) that may bear on our integrity, objectivity and independence. This is required to have regard to
relationships with the entity, its directors and senior management, its affiliates, and its connected parties
and the threats to integrity or objectivity, including those that could compromise independence that these
create.  We are also required to disclose any safeguards that we have put in place and why they address
such threats, together with any other information necessary to enable our objectivity and independence to
be assessed;

► Details of non-audit services provided and the fees charged in relation thereto;
► Written confirmation that the firm and each covered person is  independent and, if applicable, that any

non-EY firms used in the group audit or external experts used have confirmed their independence to us;
► Written confirmation that all covered persons are independent;
► Details of any inconsistencies between FRC Ethical Standard and your  policy for the supply of non-audit

services by EY and any apparent breach of that policy;
► Details of any contingent fee arrangements for non-audit services provided by us or our network firms;

and
► An opportunity to discuss auditor independence issues.

Introduction

P
age 99

A
genda Item

 8



26

Independence

We highlight the following significant facts and matters that may be reasonably considered to bear upon our objectivity and independence, including the principal threats,
if any.  We have adopted the safeguards noted below to mitigate these threats along with the reasons why they are considered to be effective. However we will only
perform non –audit services if the service has been pre-approved in accordance with your policy.

Self interest threats

A self interest threat arises when EY has financial or other interests in the Councils.  Examples include where we receive significant fees in respect of non-audit services;
where we need to recover long outstanding fees; or where we enter into a business relationship with you.  At the time of writing, there are no long outstanding fees.
We believe that it is appropriate for us to undertake permissible non-audit services and we will comply with the policies that you have approved.
None of the services are prohibited under the FRC's ES or the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 and the services have been approved in accordance with
your policy on pre-approval. The ratio of non audit fees to audits fees is not permitted to exceed 70%.
At the time of writing, there are no non-audit fees in 2017/18. No additional safeguards are required.
A self interest threat may also arise if members of our audit engagement team have objectives or are rewarded in relation to sales of non-audit services to you.  We
confirm that no member of our audit engagement team, including those from other service lines, has objectives or is rewarded in relation to sales to you, in compliance
with Ethical Standard part 4.
There are no other self interest threats at the date of this report.

Overall Assessment

Overall, we consider that the safeguards that have been adopted appropriately mitigate the principal threats identified and we therefore confirm that EY is independent
and the objectivity and independence of Andrew Brittain, your audit engagement partner and the audit engagement team have not been compromised.

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

P
age 100

A
genda Item

 8



27

Independence

Self review threats

Self review threats arise when the results of a non-audit service performed by EY or others within the EY network are reflected in the amounts included or disclosed in
the financial statements.
There are no self review threats at the date of this report.

Management threats

Partners and employees of EY are prohibited from taking decisions on behalf of management of the Councils.  Management threats may also arise during the provision of
a non-audit service in relation to which management is required to make judgements or decision based on that work.
There are no management threats at the date of this report.

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

Other threats

Other threats, such as advocacy, familiarity or intimidation, may arise.
There are no other threats at the date of this report.

P
age 101

A
genda Item

 8



28

Independence

EY Transparency Report 2017

Ernst & Young (EY) has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and ensure that the highest standards of objectivity, independence
and integrity are maintained.
Details of the key policies and processes in place within EY for maintaining objectivity and independence can be found in our annual Transparency Report which the firm
is required to publish by law. The most recent version of this Report is for the year ended 1 July 2017 and can be found here:
http://www.ey.com/uk/en/about-us/ey-uk-transparency-report-2017

Other communications

P
age 102

A
genda Item

 8



29

Appendices09 01

P
age 103

A
genda Item

 8



30

Appendix A

Fees

Planned fee
2017/18

Scale fee
2017/18

Final Fee
2016/17

£ £ £

Total Fee – Code work 47,129 47,129 47,129*
Other 0 0 0
Total audit 47,129 47,129 47,129
Certification of Housing Benefit
claim 11,616 11,616 12,488

Total other non-audit services 0 0 0
Total fees 58,745 58,745 59,617

The duty to prescribe fees is a statutory function delegated to Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local
Government.

PSAA has published a scale fee for all relevant bodies. This is defined as the fee required by auditors to meet statutory responsibilities under the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 in accordance with the NAO Code.

All fees exclude VAT

The agreed fee presented is based on the following assumptions:

► Officers meeting the agreed timetable of deliverables;

► Our accounts opinion and value for money conclusion being
unqualified;

► Appropriate quality of documentation is provided by the Councils; and

► The Councils have an effective control environment.

If any of the above assumptions prove to be unfounded, we will seek a
variation to the agreed fee. This will be discussed with the Councils in
advance.

Fees for the auditor’s consideration of correspondence from the public
and formal objections will be charged in addition to the scale fee.

Planned fee
2017/18

Scale fee
2017/18

Final Fee
2016/17

£ £ £

Total Fee – Code work 48,186 48,186 48,186*
Other 0 0 0
Total audit 48,186 48,186 48,186
Certification of Housing Benefit
claim 10,972 10,972 9,623

Total other non-audit services 0 0 0
Total fees 59,158 59,158 57,809

Vale of White Horse District Council

South Oxfordshire District Council

* We are currently waiting for PSAA to consider a scale fee variation of
£6,281 to the 2016/17 fee based on extra work performed to achieve
assurance over the significant Value for Money risks identified in the
2016/17 audit of both councils. If this is approved then the actual fee
will rise to £53,410 and £54,467 respectively. We will report to
Committee accordingly.

P
age 104

A
genda Item

 8



31

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Terms of engagement Confirmation by the Joint Audit and Governance Committee of acceptance of terms of
engagement as written in the engagement letter.

The statement of responsibilities serves as the
formal terms of engagement between the
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.

Our responsibilities Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter The statement of responsibilities serves as the
formal terms of engagement between the
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.

Planning and audit
approach

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and the
significant risks identified.
When communicating key audit matters this includes the most significant risks of material
misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) including those that have the greatest effect on
the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit and directing the efforts of
the engagement team

Audit planning report

Significant findings from
the audit

• Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures

• Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit
• Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management
• Written representations that we are seeking
• Expected modifications to the audit report
• Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process

Audit results report

Appendix B

Required communications with the Joint Audit and Governance
Committee
We have detailed the communications that we must provide to the Joint Audit and Governance Committee.

P
age 105

A
genda Item

 8



32

Appendix B

Required communications with the Joint Audit and Governance
Committee (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Going concern Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern, including:
• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty
• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation and

presentation of the financial statements
• The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

Audit results report

Misstatements • Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion, unless prohibited by
law or regulation

• The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods
• A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected
• Corrected misstatements that are significant
• Material misstatements corrected by management

Audit results report

Fraud • Enquiries of the Joint Audit and Governance Committee to determine whether they have
knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity

• Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that a
fraud may exist

• A discussion of any other matters related to fraud

Audit results report

Related parties • Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related parties
including, when applicable:

• Non-disclosure by management
• Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions
• Disagreement over disclosures
• Non-compliance with laws and regulations
• Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity

Audit results report

P
age 106

A
genda Item

 8



33

Appendix B

Required communications with the Joint Audit and Governance
Committee (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Independence Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all individuals
involved in the audit, objectivity and independence
Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of
independence and objectivity such as:
• The principal threats
• Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness
• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards
• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain

objectivity and independence

Audit Planning Report and Audit Results Report

External confirmations • Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations
• Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures

Audit results report

Consideration of laws and
regulations

• Audit findings regarding non-compliance where the non-compliance is material and
believed to be intentional. This communication is subject to compliance with
legislation on tipping off

• Enquiry of the Joint Audit and Governance Committee into possible instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the financial
statements and that the Joint Audit and Governance Committee may be aware of

Audit results report

Internal controls • Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit Management letter/audit results report

P
age 107

A
genda Item

 8



34

Appendix B

Required communications with the Joint Audit and Governance
Committee (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Group audits • An overview of the type of work to be performed on the financial information of the
components

• An overview of the nature of the group audit team’s planned involvement in the work to
be performed by the component auditors on the financial information of significant
components

• Instances where the group audit team’s evaluation of the work of a component auditor
gave rise to a concern about the quality of that auditor’s work

• Any limitations on the group audit, for example, where the group engagement team’s
access to information may have been restricted

• Fraud or suspected fraud involving group management, component management,
employees who have significant roles in group-wide controls or others where the fraud
resulted in a material misstatement of the group financial statements

Audit planning report
Audit results report

Representations Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those charged with
governance

Audit results report

Material inconsistencies
and misstatements

Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which
management has refused to revise

Audit results report

Auditors report • Key audit matters that we will include in our auditor’s report
• Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report

Audit results report

Fee Reporting • Breakdown of fee information when the  audit plan is agreed
• Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit
• Any non-audit work

Audit planning report
Audit results report

Certification work Summary of certification work undertaken Certification report

P
age 108

A
genda Item

 8



35

Appendix C

Additional audit information

Our responsibilities  required
by auditing standards

• Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

• Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Councils’ internal control.

• Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

• Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting.
• Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the

financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
• Obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the

Councils to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. Reading other information contained in the financial
statements, including the board’s statement that the annual report is fair, balanced and understandable,  the Joint Audit and
Governance Committee reporting appropriately addresses matters communicated by us to the Joint Audit and Governance
Committee and reporting whether it is materially inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements; and

• Maintaining auditor independence.

Other required procedures during the course of the audit

In addition to the key areas of audit focus outlined in section 2, we have to perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards and
other regulations. We outline the procedures below that we will undertake during the course of our audit.

P
age 109

A
genda Item

 8



36

Appendix C

Additional audit information (continued)
Purpose and evaluation of materiality

For the purposes of determining whether the accounts are free from material error, we define materiality as the magnitude of an omission or misstatement that,
individually or in the aggregate, in light of the surrounding circumstances, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial
statements. Our evaluation of it requires professional judgement and necessarily takes into account qualitative as well as quantitative considerations implicit in the
definition. We would be happy to discuss with you your expectations regarding our detection of misstatements in the financial statements.

Materiality determines:
• The locations at which we conduct audit procedures to support the opinion given on the Group financial statements; and
• The level of work performed on individual account balances and financial statement disclosures.

The amount we consider material at the end of the audit may differ from our initial determination. At this stage, however, it is not feasible to anticipate all of the
circumstances that may ultimately influence our judgement about materiality. At the end of the audit we will form our final opinion by reference to all matters that could
be significant to users of the accounts, including the total effect of the audit misstatements we identify, and our evaluation of materiality at that date.

P
age 110

A
genda Item

 8



37

EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

Ernst & Young LLP
© Ernst & Young LLP. Published in the UK.
All Rights Reserved.

The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales
with registered number OC300001 and is a member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited.

Ernst & Young LLP, 1 More London Place, London, SE1 2AF.

ey.com

P
age 111

A
genda Item

 8



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee

Report of the Interim Head of Corporate Services
Author: Yvonne Cutler Greaves
Telephone: 01235 422493
Textphone: 18001 01235 422510
E-mail: Yvonne.cutlergreaves@southandvale.gov.uk
SODC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Jane Murphy
E-mail: jane.murphy@southoxon.gov.uk
Telephone: 07970 932054
VWHDC cabinet member responsible: Councillor 
Edward Blagrove
Telephone: 07958 700461
E-mail: edward.blagrove@whitehorsedc.gov.uk
To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee
DATE: 29 January 2018

Risk management framework

Recommendation

That members review and comment on the progress with implementation of the risk 
management framework 

Purpose 

1. The joint audit and governance committee approved the council’s risk 
management strategy and framework on 25 September 2017. This report outlines 
the risk management activity in the last three months and members are asked to 
review and comment on progress to date.

2. The contact officer is Yvonne Cutler Greaves, Risk and Insurance Officer for South 
Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) and Vale of White Horse District Council 
(VWDC), telephone 01235 422493.

Page 113

Agenda Item 9

mailto:jane.murphy@southoxon.gov.uk
mailto:edward.blagrove@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


Strategic Objectives 

3. Managing the business effectively.

Current progress

4. Eight risk champions across the councils have been identified and briefed on their 
role. They are now actively working with their appropriate heads of service to 
manage risks within their service areas through the service area risk registers.

5. Two risk forums have been held and at the first forum an external speaker from 
Zurich Municipal presented emerging national risks and their relevance to the 
councils. At the second forum risk champions reviewed their service area risk 
registers and links to the corporate risk registers.

6. The corporate risk registers are being drafted and the senior management team 
have reviewed and evaluated the gross risk score and have identified the risk 
owners supported by the risk and insurance officer and following the risk 
management policy and guidance. The registers reflect that due to management 
restructure changes, risk owners are given as a head of a particular service area 
and are not currently named.

7. The risk and insurance officer is actively involved in supporting key programmes of 
work; i.e.: GDPR; Wessex leisure centre; Berinsfield project.

Next steps 

8. To complete the corporate risk registers by reviewing the existing mitigation 
actions with each risk owner, identifying the ‘net’ risk score to take these actions 
into account and identify further actions required.

9. Agree a risk appetite with the senior management team which clearly illustrates the 
amount of acceptable risk within which the council and its programmes can 
operate, to enable informed decision making across all the councils providing 
integrated assurance supported by the risk framework. 

10.To undertake a quarterly review at senior management team and six-monthly 
report to joint audit and governance committee to review and comment on the 
corporate risks registers and risk appetite adopted by the senior management 
team.

11.To develop a training programme to support and raise awareness of the risk 
management framework across the councils with officers, councillors and partners 
to support an integrated assurance approach.

Financial Implications

12.There are no financial implications attached to the corporate risk registers at 
present. The effective management of risks can contribute to minimising the 
financial implications of risks materialising.

Page 114

Agenda Item 9



Legal Implications

13.The effective management of risks can contribute to minimising the legal 
implications of risks materialising.

Risks

14.The effective management of risks supports the decision-making process resulting 
in prioritised actions and directing resources to achieve maximum benefits and 
value for money for the councils and ensures compliance with the corporate 
governance reporting framework.

Other Implications

15.None

Background Papers

 South Oxfordshire District Council corporate risk register (draft)
 Vale of White Horse District Council corporate risk register (draft)

Page 115

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



South Oxfordshire District Council Corporate risk register draft January 2018

Risk rating:
Limited /no assurance/critical
Satisfactory assurance/risks
Full/substantial assurance /risks

KEY
SODC Strategic objectives

Sa All strategic objectives

Sb Provide value for money

Sc Invest in the districts future

Sd Unlock the potential of Didcot

Se Services that reflect residents needs

Draft Corporate Risk Register - South Oxfordshire District Council 
Risk 

No/Ref

Strategic 

objective 

ref

Risk 

category

Risk description / consequences Gross 

risk 

rating

Risk owner Mitigation actions Action 

owner

Net 

risk 

rating

Tolerable 

Y/N

Further mitigation actions if 

required

Review 

by when

1

Sb                                                                        Customer Poor customer insight will inhibit progress on 

targeting areas where we can raise revenues by selling 

our services to residents such as brown bin/building 

control/planning/land charges etc. missed opportunity to 

create income.

2/3

HOCS

2

Sa                                                                        Technology 

security

IT Cybersecurity breach due to naïve user behaviour 

may lead to the council systems being hacked . 

Resulting in the council being unable to operate 

effectivelyand securely and subject to loss of reputation 

as well a financial loss. 9

HOCS

3

Sb                                                                        Technology IT infrastructure not fit for purpose with no back up 

or BCP (no separate WAN line from this building) may 

result in poor customer service and loss of council 

reputation. 5

HOCS

4

Sb                                                                        Security - 

resources

Council offices site security  insufficient at  both 135 

where  the location of business lounge and staff 

entrance increases risk of intruder entering the building 

and  Crowmarsh site where there is an increased risk of 

injury of intruders resulting in high PL claims which may 

not be covered by our insurers.

2/3

HODR

5

Sb                                                     Resources Insufficient staff capacity may result in the council not 

fulfilling its regulatory and compliance requirements and 

subsequently may result in fines. Lack of prioritisation of 

activities, staff capacity pressures and  capabilities, 

resulting in inefficiencies in operations and missed 

opportunities such as alternative grant funding research 

as we firefight/react to issues rather than plan ahead.

5

Mark Stone

6

Sa                                                                        Resources Lack of senior management leadership as a result 

of management restructure and implementation, 

may result in poor/ non delivery of the council strategy 

and corporate plan objectives. 5

Mark Stone

7

Sb                                                                        Resources 

personal 

security

Poor staff morale , wellbeing and security due 

increased workloads, levels of abuse from residents on 

social media and at meetings as well as uncertainty 

over restructure, may result in stress leading to 

increased absence and low staff retention rates, with 

subsequent  work load pressures and increased cost 

implication to plug the resource gap by recruiting 

contract staff.

4

Mark Stone

Assurance Team 10 Jan 2018

P
age 117

A
genda Item

 9



South Oxfordshire District Council Corporate risk register draft January 2018

8

SC                                                        

Sd                                                     

Resources Dependency on contract staff in key operational and 

strategic areas, may disrupt progress of work with little 

time to recruit a replacement, thus leaving the council 

short of key resource in key projects resulting in delay 

and increased costs. Agency staff unfamiliarity with the 

councils policies may result in errors in protocols and 

incorrect guidance given and followed.

7

Mark Stone

9

Sb                                                                        Procedural -

Health and 

safety

Failure to fulfil our health and safety statutory 

duties including lone working procedures may result 

in injuries, fatalities, prosecutions and fines.

9

HOCS

10

Sb                                                      

Se                                                                                                          

Procedural Inconsistent approach to Third party contract 

monitoring in service teams , may result in a reduction 

in service provision and increased cost of performance. 2/3

William Jacobs

11

Sb                                                                        Procedural/         

regulatory

GDPR failure to fulfil the requirements of the new 

data protection regulations may result in fines. We have 

two leads: planning and corporate, planning is well 

ahead corporate is yet to commence. Worry that we 

may run out of time corporately.

8

HOCS

12

Sb                                                                        Procedural Poor/inconsistent level of programme and project 

management expertise and corporate methodology 

and controls resulting in poor delivery of projects, not 

realising the full benefits and understanding the risks 

and dependancies across the councils.

7

HOCS

13

Sc                                                  Financial Reduction in council finances due to  economic 

downturn , reduction in central government funding 

(including DCLG grant income) results in in councils 

inability to undertake its duties at a time of increased 

demands (homelessness and an aging 

poulation)resulting in reduction in service level to our 

residents, innovative initiatives and projects going 

forward.
9

William Jacobs

14
Sc                                                   Financial Failure to identify areas of cost reduction may 

impact overall future council finances. 1
William Jacobs

15

Sc                                                      Financial Failure to maximise opportunities to realise areas of 

revenue growth may impact overall future council 

finances.

8

William Jacobs

16
Sb                                                      

Se                                                                                                           

Programmes Failure to deliver  5CP contract, results in a reduction 

in quality of service (separate risk register).
5

Andrew Down

17

Sc                                                       

Se                                                   

Programmes Failure to deliver Berinsfield development: due to 

lack of funding or inability to release land to purchase 

for development results in council loss of reputation. 

Project is impacted by NICS.(see separate risk 

register).
5

HODR

18

Sc                                                       

Se                                                   

Programmes Enterprise zone pace of expansion is not quick 

enough to realise the business rate income over 25 

years to cover the cost of borrowing against projected 

incomes. Impacted by NICS. Council fails to attract 

more business or retain business in the zones thus 

impacting on business rate income.
6

Andrew Down

19

Sd                                                   Programmes Didcot Garden town: failure to realise future funding to 

expand/expansion delayed and loss of reputation to 

deliver such projects for the community (separate risk 

register). 6

Andrew Down

20
Sc                                                    Programmes Failure to capitalise and influence national 

initiatives that benefit the districts. 8
Andrew Down

Assurance Team 10 Jan 2018

P
age 118

A
genda Item

 9



South Oxfordshire District Council Corporate risk register draft January 2018

21
Sb                                                                                                            Programmes Failure to capitalise on new building and 

refurbishment programmes may result in increased 

costs and loss of reputation. 5

Mark Stone

22

Se                                                                        Democratic 

process

Changes in the political landscape including snap 

elections, potential creation of unitary authority or 

devolution in Oxfordshire may impact the operational 

delivery of the councils' corporate objectives.

2/3

Margaret Reed

23

Sb                                                                        Democratic 

process

Lack of informed and consistent decision making 

across the councils  will result in slow adoption of 

local plans,more planning appeals losses and increased 

costs. 5

Margaret Reed

24
S/V Corporate plan Failure to deliver on the corporate plan objectives 

(council lottery) results in reputational damage and 

service not fit for purpose. 4

Mark Stone

25

Se                                                                        Customer 

service

Failure to to maintain a consistent standard of 

customer service results in stagnant customer 

service intiatives and long term service reduction and 

thus reputational damage. 5

HOCS

26

Sb                                                      

Sc                                                                                                       

Property Lack of asset management of council owned land 

and property portfolios results  in underinvestment in 

property across the councils , reducing the ability to 

maximise incomes  as well as lack of understanding as 

to where maintanence and insurance liabilities 

responsibilities lie (Council/Parishes etc).

5

HODR

27

Se                                                                        Safeguarding Failure to deliver council safeguarding 

responsibilities may result in loss of reputation if a 

safeguarding incident occurs in our districts and we 

have not followed the stipulated procedures and 

protocols of reporting. 5

HOHE

28

Sb                                                                        Procedures lack of clarity on the procurement process,roles and 

responsibilities results in un informed and inconsistent 

procurement of services which may result in increased 

long term costs and services compromised.

4

William Jacobs

29

Sc                                                      

Sd                                  

Se                                                                                                       

Economic Failure to address or remove barriers to Small and 

Medium Enterprises (SME) growth may result in 

SME's  closing, moving out of the district, or not 

starting. This may result in a loss of potential business 

rates and redcued consumer spending in our market 

towns.

2/3

HODR

30

Sc                                                      

Sd                                  

Se                                                                                                       

Economic

 Insufficient support (including the EU funding 

shortfall) is provided to key research sites including 

Culham Science Centre(CSC)/Hydrology base at 

Howbery park  so the research is not commercialised to 

its full potential and businesses at the site relocate out 

of the district, resulting in a loss of employment. 

2/3

HODR

31

Sc                                                      

Sd                                  

Se                                                                                                       

Economic Failure to deliver the actions on the BIS plan may 

result in  businesses not engaging with the councils 

leading to a reduction in the districts economic 

attractiveness and competitiveness and thus reduction 

in number of businesses start ups and growth and a 

reduction in business rate revenues, higher 

unemployment in the districts.

2/3

HODR

32
Sc                                                      

Sd                                  

Se                                                                                                       

Property Failure to secure the redevelopment at key sites in 

the district  may result in a decrease in reputation and 

loss of potential funding from the redevelopment. 8

HODR

33

Sb                                                                        Contract Councils do not comply with their contractual 

obligations set down in 3rd party contracts resulting in 

inefficient operations, financial penalities and loss of 

reputation. 8

Mark Stone

Assurance Team 10 Jan 2018

P
age 119

A
genda Item

 9



South Oxfordshire District Council Corporate risk register draft January 2018

34

Sb                                                                        Property Failure to provide suitable council office 

accommodation that is fit for purpose on time resulting  

in poor staff morale,compromised service and loss of 

reputation. 8

Mark Stone

35

Sc                                                      

Sd                                  

Se                                                                                                       

Contracts
Failure to deliver services from third party 

contractors who go out of business or do not share our 

ethos results in poor service and loss of reputation.
8

Mark Stone

36

Sb                                                                        Security - 

resources
Major incident at council offices or council owned 

building may result in increased time to deal with the 

incident and associated investigations, legal 

requirement and liabilities which may result in reputation 

loss and compromised service.

2/3

HOCS

37
Sb                                                                        Financial Failure to prevent corporate fraud activity will result 

in increased cost to the councils , legal challenge and 

loss of reputation. 6

William Jacobs

Version created and revised on 10 Jan 2018

Assurance Team 10 Jan 2018

P
age 120

A
genda Item

 9



Vale of White Horse District Council Corporate risk register draft January 2018

Risk rating:
Limited /no assurance/critical
Satisfactory assurance/risks
Full/substantial assurance /risks

KEY

VWHDC Strategic objectives

Va Running an efficient council

Vb Housing and infrastructure

Vc Sustainable communities and wellbeing

Vd Building and even stronger economy

Draft Corporate Risk Register - Vale of White Horse District Council
Risk No/Ref Strategic 

objective ref
Risk 

category

Risk description / consequences Gross risk 

rating

Risk owner Mitigation actions Action 

owner

Net risk 

rating

Tolerable 

Y/N

Further mitigation actions 

if required

Review by 

when

1

                                                                       

Va

Customer Poor customer insight will inhibit progress 

on targeting areas where we can raise 

revenues by selling our services to residents 

such as brown bin/building 

control/planning/land charges etc. missed 

opportunity to create income.

2/3

HOCS

2

                                                                       

Va

Technology 

security

IT Cybersecurity breach due to naïve user 

behaviour may lead to the council systems 

being hacked . Resulting in the council being 

unable to operate effectively and securely 

and subject to loss of reputation as well a 

financial loss.

9

HOCS

3

                                                                      

Va

Technology IT infrastructure not fit for purpose with no 

back up or BCP (no separate WAN line from 

this building) may result in poor customer 

service and loss of council reputation.
5

HOCS

4

                                                                       

Va

Security - 

resources

Council offices site security insufficient at  

both 135 where the location of business 

lounge and staff entrance increases risk of 

intruder entering the building  and Abbey 

House where reception staff are at risk of 

abuse from visitors to OCC.

2/3

HODR

5

                                                                        

Va

Resources Insufficient staff capacity may result in the 

council not fulfilling its regulatory and 

compliance requirements and subsequently 

may result in fines. Lack of prioritisation of 

activities, staff capacity pressures and  

capabilities, resulting in inefficiencies in 

operations and missed opportunities such as 

alternative grant funding research as we 

firefight/react to issues rather than plan 

ahead.

5

Mark Stone

6

                                                                      

Va

Resources Lack of senior management leadership as 

a result of management restructure and 

implementation, may result in poor/ non 

delivery of the council strategy and corporate 

plan objectives.

5

Mark Stone

Assurance Team 09 Jan 2018

P
age 121

A
genda Item

 9



Vale of White Horse District Council Corporate risk register draft January 2018

7

                                                        

Vb                                                        

Vc                                                    

Vd

Resources Poor staff morale , wellbeing and security 

due increased workloads, levels of abuse 

from residents on social media and at 

meetings as well as uncertainty over 

restructure, may result in stress leading to 

increased absence and low staff retention 

rates, with subsequent  work load pressures 

and increased cost implication to plug the 

resource gap by recruiting contract staff.

4

Mark Stone

8

                                                                      

Va

Resources Dependency on contract staff in key 

operational and strategic areas, may 

disrupt progress of work with little time to 

recruit a replacement, thus leaving the 

council short of key resource in key projects 

resulting in delay and increased costs. 

Agency staff unfamiliarity with the councils 

policies may result in errors in protocols and 

incorrect guidance given and followed.

7

Mark Stone

9

                                                                        

Va

Procedural -

Health and 

safety

Failure to fulfil our health and safety 

statutory duties including lone working 

procedures may result in injuries, fatalities, 

prosecutions and fines.

9

HOCS

10

                                                                        

Va

Procedural Inconsistent approach to Third party 

contract monitoring in service teams , may 

result in a reduction in service provision and 

increased cost of performance.

2/3

William Jacobs

11

                                                    

Vb                                                    

Vc                                                         

Vd

Procedural/         

regulatory

GDPR failure to fulfil the requirements of 

the new data protection regulations may 

result in fines. We have two leads: planning 

and corporate, planning is well ahead 

corporate is yet to commence. Worry that we 

may run out of time corporately.

8

HOCS

12

                                                  

Vb                                                    

Vc                                                         

Vd

Procedural Poor/inconsistent level of programme and 

project management expertise and 

corporate methodology and controls 

resulting in poor delivery of projects, not 

realising the full benefits and understanding 

the risks and dependencies across the 

councils.

7

HOCS

13

                                                                  

Va

Financial Reduction in council finances due to  

economic downturn , reduction in central 

government funding (including DCLG grant 

income) results in in councils inability to 

undertake its duties at a time of increased 

demands (homelessness and an aging 

population)resulting in reduction in service 

level to our residents, innovative initiatives 

and projects going forward .

9

William Jacobs

14

                                                                   

Va

Financial Failure to identify areas of cost reduction 

may impact overall future council finances.
1

William Jacobs

15

                                               

Va                                                       

Financial Failure to maximise opportunities to 

realise areas of revenue growth may 

impact overall future council finances.
8

William Jacobs

16
                                                                

Va

Programmes Failure to deliver  5CP contract, results in a 

reduction in quality of service (separate risk 

register).
5

Andrew Down

Assurance Team 09 Jan 2018

P
age 122

A
genda Item

 9



Vale of White Horse District Council Corporate risk register draft January 2018

17

                                                                   

Va

Programmes Enterprise zone pace of expansion is not 

quick enough to realise the business rate 

income over 25 years to cover the cost of 

borrowing against projected incomes. 

Impacted by NICS. Council fails to attract 

more business or retain business in the 

zones thus impacting on business rate 

income.

6

Andrew Down

18

                                                                    

Va

Programmes Didcot Garden town: failure to realise future 

funding to expand/expansion delayed and 

loss of reputation to deliver such projects for 

the community (separate risk register). 6

Andrew Down

19

                                                       

Vb                                                    

Vc                                                         

Vd

Programmes Failure to capitalise and influence national 

initiatives that benefit the districts.

8

Andrew Down

20

                                                    

Vb                                                    

Vc                                                         

Vd

Programmes Failure to capitalise on new building and 

refurbishment programmes such as the 

proposed new leisure centre at 

Wantage/Abbey Gardens revamp may result 

in increased costs and loss of reputation.

5

Mark Stone

21

                                       

Vb                                                    

Vc                                                         

Vd

Democratic 

process

Changes in the political landscape due to 

imminent election may impact the 

operational delivery of the councils' corporate 

objectives. 

2/3

Margaret Reed

22

                                                  

Va                                                       

Democratic 

process

Lack of informed and consistent decision 

making across the councils  will result in 

slow adoption of local plans, more planning 

appeals losses and increased costs.

5

Margaret Reed

23

va                                       

Vb                                                    

Vc                                                         

Vd

Corporate plan Failure to deliver on the corporate plan 

objectives (council lottery) results in 

reputational damage and service not fit for 

purpose.

4

Mark Stone

24

                                                  

Va                                                       

Customer 

service

Failure to to maintain a consistent 

standard of customer service results in 

stagnant customer service initiatives and long 

term service reduction and thus reputational 

damage.

5

HOCS

25

Vc                                               Vd

Property Lack of asset management of council 

owned land and property portfolios results  

in underinvestment in property across the 

councils , reducing the ability to maximise 

incomes  as well as lack of understanding as 

to where maintenance and insurance 

liabilities responsibilities lie (Council/Parishes 

etc).

5

HODR

26

Vc                                              

Va                                                       

Safeguarding Failure to deliver council safeguarding 

responsibilities may result in loss of 

reputation if a safeguarding incident occurs in 

our districts and we have not followed the 

stipulated procedures and protocols of 

reporting.

5

HOHE

27

                                                  

Va                                                       

Procedures lack of clarity on the procurement 

process, roles and responsibilities results 

in un informed and inconsistent procurement 

of services which may result in increased 

long term costs and services compromised.

4

William Jacobs

Assurance Team 09 Jan 2018

P
age 123

A
genda Item

 9



Vale of White Horse District Council Corporate risk register draft January 2018

28

                                                       

Vb                                                    

Vc                                                         

Vd

Property 

Failure to secure the redevelopment at key 

sites in the district  may result in a decrease 

in reputation and loss of potential funding 

from the redevelopment.
8

HODR

29 Economic

Failure to address or remove barriers to 

Small and Medium Enterprises (SME) 

growth may result in SME's  closing, moving 

out of the district, or not starting. This may 

result in a loss of potential business rates 

and reduced consumer spending in our 

market towns.

2/3

HODR

30

                                                       

Vb                                                    

Vc                                                         

Vd
Economic

 Insufficient support (including the EU 

funding shortfall) is provided to key 

research sites including Culham Science 

Centre(CSC)/Hydrology base at Howbery 

park  so the research is not commercialised 

to its full potential and businesses at the site 

relocate out of the district, resulting in a loss 

of employment. 

2/3

HODR

31

                                                       

Vb                                                    

Vc                                                         

Vd

Economic

Failure to deliver the actions on the BIS 

plan may result in  businesses not engaging 

with the councils leading to a reduction in the 

districts economic attractiveness and 

competitiveness and thus reduction in 

number of businesses start ups and growth 

and a reduction in business rate revenues, 

higher unemployment in the districts.

2/3

HODR

32

                                                       

Vb                                                    

Vc                                                         

Vd

Contract Councils do not comply with their 

contractual obligations set down in 3rd 

party contracts resulting in inefficient 

operations, financial penalties and loss of 

reputation.

8

Mark Stone

33

                                                       

Vb                                                    

Vc                                                         

Vd

Property 
Failure to provide suitable council office 

accommodation that is fit for purpose on time 

resulting  in poor staff morale, compromised 

service and loss of reputation.

8

Mark Stone

34

                                                       

Vb                                                    

Vc                                                         

Vd

Contracts Failure to deliver services from third party 

contractors who go out of business or do not 

share our ethos results in poor service and 

loss of reputation.

8

Mark Stone

35

Va                                       Vb                                                    Vc                                                         Vd

Security - 

resources
Major incident at council offices or 

council owned building may result in 

increased time to deal with the incident and 

associated investigations, legal requirement 

and liabilities which may result in reputation 

loss and compromised service.

2/3

HOCS

36

Va                                       Vb                                                    Vc                                                         Vd

Financial
Failure to prevent corporate fraud activity 

will result in increased cost to the councils , 

legal challenge and loss of reputation.
6

William Jacobs

Version created and revised on 10 Jan 2018

Assurance Team 09 Jan 2018

P
age 124

A
genda Item

 9



Audit and Governance 
Committee

Report of Interim Audit Manager
Author: Sandy Bayley
Telephone: 01235 422496
Textphone: 18001 01235 422510
E-mail: sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk
SODC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Jane Murphy
Tel: 07970 932054
E-mail: jane.murphy@southoxon.gov.uk
VWHDC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Robert Sharp
Telephone: 07771 760549
E-mail: robert.sharp@whitehorsedc.gov.uk
To: Audit and Governance Committee
DATE: 29 January 2018

Internal audit activity report quarter three 
2017/2018 
Recommendation

That members note the content of the report

Purpose of report 

1. The purpose of this report is to summarise the outcomes of recent internal audit activity 
at both councils for the committee to consider.  The committee is asked to review the 
report and the main issues arising, and seek assurance that action will be/has been 
taken where necessary. 

2 The contact officer for this report is Sandy Bayley, Interim Audit Manager for South 
Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) and Vale of White Horse District Council (VWHDC), 
telephone 01235 422496.

Strategic objectives 

3. Delivery of an effective internal audit function will support the councils in meeting their 
strategic objectives.

Page 125

Agenda Item 10

mailto:jane.murphy@southoxon.gov.uk
mailto:robert.sharp@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


Background 

4. Internal audit is an independent assurance function that primarily provides an objective 
opinion on the degree to which the internal control environment supports and promotes 
the achievements of the council’s objectives.  It assists the councils by evaluating the 
adequacy of governance, risk management, controls and use of resources through its 
planned audit work, and recommending improvements where necessary. After each audit 
assignment, internal audit has a duty to report to management its findings on the control 
environment and risk exposure, and recommend changes for improvements where 
applicable.  Managers are responsible for considering audit reports and taking the 
appropriate action to address control weaknesses. 

 
5. Assurance ratings given by internal audit indicate the following:

Full assurance: There is a good system of internal control designed to meet the system 
objectives and the controls are being consistently applied. 

Substantial assurance: There is a sound system of internal control designed to meet 
the system objectives and the controls are being applied.

Satisfactory assurance: There is basically a sound system of internal control although 
there are some minor weaknesses and/or there is evidence that the level of non-
compliance may put some minor system objectives at risk.

Limited assurance: There are some weaknesses in the adequacy of the internal control 
system which put the system objectives at risk and/or the level of non-compliance puts 
some of the system objectives at risk.

Nil assurance: Control is weak leaving the system open to significant error or abuse 
and/or there is significant non-compliance with basic controls.

6. Each recommendation is given one of the following risk ratings:

High Risk: Fundamental control weakness for senior management action

Medium Risk: Other control weakness for local management action

Low Risk: Recommended best practice to improve overall control

2017/2018 Audit reports

7. As at 16 January 2018, since the last audit and governance committee meeting the 
following audits and follow up reviews have been completed:

Completed audits

Full Assurance: 1
Substantial Assurance: 0
Satisfactory Assurance: 1
Limited Assurance: 2
Nil Assurance: 0

Page 126

Agenda Item 10



Assurance 
Rating N

o.
 o

f R
ec

s

H
ig

h 
R

is
k 

R
ec

s

N
o.

 A
gr

ee
d

M
ed

iu
m

 R
is

k 
R

ec
s

N
o.

 A
gr

ee
d

Lo
w

 R
is

k 
R

ec
s

N
o.

 A
gr

ee
d

Joint
1. Property Management 
17/18

Limited 5 1 1 1 1 3 3

2. Credit Card Usage 
17/18

Limited 11 2 2 4 3 5 5

HB & CTRS 17/18 Full 1 0 0 0 0 1 1
Budgetary Control 17/18 Satisfactory 4 0 0 1 1 3 3
SODC 
None
VWHDC
None

Follow up reviews

Initial 
Assurance 
Given N

o.
 o

f R
ec

s

Im
pl

em
en

te
d

Pa
rt

ly
 

Im
pl

em
en

te
d

N
ot

 
Im

pl
em

en
te

d

O
ng

oi
ng

N
o 

lo
ng

er
 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le

Joint
Comments & Complaints 
16/17 Satisfactory 5 0 2 3 0 0

Car Parks 17/18 Satisfactory 5 5 0 0 0 0
Grounds Maintenance 
17/18 Full 1 0 0 0 1 0

3. Review of Crowmarsh 
Fire March 2015 
recommendations (R) 
and lessons learnt (LL)

N/A
19R
16LL

5R
9LL

13R
7LL

0 0
1RR
0LL

SODC
None
VWHDC
None

 
8. Appendix 1 of this report sets out the key points and findings relating to the completed 

audits which have received limited or nil assurance, and satisfactory, substantial or full 
assurance reports which members have asked to be presented to committee 

Page 127

Agenda Item 10



9. Members of the committee are asked to seek assurance from the internal audit reports 
and/or respective managers that the agreed actions have been or will be undertaken 
where necessary.  

10. A copy of each report has been sent to the appropriate service manager, the chief 
executive, the section 151 officer and the relevant member portfolio holder. In addition to 
the above arrangements, reports are published on the councils’ intranet.

11. Internal audit continues to carry out a six month follow up on all non-financial and non-
key financial audits to establish the implementation status of agreed recommendations.   
All key financial system recommendations are formally followed up as part of the annual 
assurance cycle and also within the recommendations database.

Overdue Recommendations

12. Appendix 2 of this report summarises all overdue recommendations within each service 
area.    

Financial Implications

13. There are no financial implications attached to this report.

Legal Implications

14. None.

Risks

15.  Identification of risk is an integral part of all audits.

SANDY BAYLEY
INTERIM AUDIT MANAGER

 

Page 128

Agenda Item 10



APPENDIX 1

1. Property Management 2017/2018

 1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 This report details the internal audit review of procedures, controls and 
the management of risk in relation to property management.  The audit 
has been undertaken in accordance with the 2017/2018 audit plan 
agreed with the audit and governance committee of South Oxfordshire 
District Council (SODC) and Vale of White Horse District Council 
(VWHDC).  The audit has a priority score of 18.  The audit approach is 
provided in the audit framework in Appendix 1.

1.2 The following areas have been covered during the course of this review 
to provide assurance that:

 clear policies and procedures are in place regarding the management 
of properties;

 the rents are set with reference to market rates (or as otherwise 
governed by the lease) and are subject to review on a regular basis 
and in line with the rent review provisions of the lease;

 the properties are correctly valued for accounting and insurance 
purposes and that the valuations are kept up-to-date;

 there is appropriate authorisation in place for additions, disposals, write 
offs and depreciation of properties, and that the property asset register 
is updated accordingly;

 the property asset register differentiates the responsibility for 
maintaining areas of each property;

 adequate contract management arrangements are in place and 
management reporting is sufficient.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 Arcadis manage the councils’ properties as part of the five councils’ 
partnership (5CP), which began on 1 August 2016.  However, the property 
management contract is between the councils and Vinci, and Vinci has sub-
contracted out the management and running of the properties to Arcadis.  
The contract is overseen by the property manager (5CP client).  It is noted 
that the Concerto system is used to record and manage the councils’ 
properties.

2.2 At the time of the audit review (September 2017), both SODC and VWHDC 
had the following number of properties in their portfolios:

Number of PropertiesProperty Type SODC VWHDC Total
Car Parks 17 12 31
Leisure Centres 4 5 9
Parks, Cemeteries, Allotments & Open 
Spaces

16 13 29

Public Conveniences 9 6 12
Page 129

Agenda Item 10



Civic Estate 2 2 4
Housing (inc. Mobile Home Parks) 1 7 8
Investment Properties 7 5 12
Long Leases 4 3 7
TNRP (Ex. Investments & Long Leases) 9 0 9
Community Centres 3 6 9
Surplus/Vacant 2 2 4
Total 74 61 135

3. PREVIOUS AUDIT REPORTS

3.1 Property management has previously not been subject to an internal 
audit review.

4. 2017/2018 AUDIT ASSURANCE

4.1 Limited assurance: There are some weaknesses in the adequacy of 
the internal control system which put the system objectives at risk 
and/or the level of non-compliance puts some of the system objectives 
at risk.

4.2 Five joint recommendations have been raised in this review.  One high 
risk, one medium risk and three low risk.

5. MAIN FINDINGS

5.1 Policies & procedures

5.1.1 The councils have drawn up a service specification for property 
management as part of the five councils’ partnerships (5CP), which 
states the functions that have been and have not been included as part 
of the contract, and also the service requirements.  Vinci Facilities, with 
input from Arcadis, has developed a service delivery plan (SDP) which 
has been agreed by the five councils.  The SDP describes the service 
that will be undertaken under the contractual agreement, and 
recognises the key requirements of the five councils.  It is noted that 
Vinci and Arcadis are currently reviewing the SDP.  As property 
management has been subcontracted out to Arcadis, Arcadis has also 
developed a 5CP corporate services process handbook for property 
management, which sets out processes and procedures in place for 
managing assets and property portfolios, and the roles and 
responsibilities for successfully implementing the processes.  The 
handbook was last updated in April 2017 and is currently with the 
councils for approval.  Review of the SDP and the 5CP corporate 
services process handbook confirmed that councils’ requirements, as 
stated in the service specification, are incorporated in the documents.

5.1.2 Training is provided to the estates team members that transferred 
across to Arcadis.  Each team member is given access to Arcadis’ 
Learning Academy online system, through which they can undertake 
their core training.  The estates team was also given an induction 
presentation prior the 1 August 2016 go live date, and were required to 

Page 130

Agenda Item 10



undertake a driving theory test.  The estate team (Arcadis) provided 
their qualifications and from review internal audit is satisfied the team 
has sufficient knowledge to appropriately undertake building surveying 
on behalf of the councils.

5.1.4 Area assurance: Full
No recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this 
area.

5.2 Property rents

5.2.1 The frequency of reviewing the rent varies from one property to the 
next and the frequency is included in the lease agreement with the 
tenant.  The Concerto rent review report was obtained and review 
found that there are currently 17 (14 SODC and three VWHDC) 
property rent reviews due in the last 12 months.  Review of all 17 
properties confirmed that the frequency of rent and the next rent review 
due is appropriately entered onto the system.

5.2.2 The five councils’ corporate services process handbook for property 
management in place includes the rent review process.  The process 
states that Arcadis are required to obtain the councils’ authorisation 
prior to instructing legal services to serve the rent review notice.  
Review of 17 (14 SODC and three VWHDC) properties due a rent 
review found that for:

 Nine (seven SODC and one VWHDC) properties, approval for rent 
review was obtained from the councils’, instructions were sent to legal 
services to issue rent review notices, however, seven notices were 
issued after the rent review due date, as stated on the lease 
agreement.

 Seven SODC properties that are based at Hithercroft Industrial Estate, 
approval for rent review has not been sent to the councils as Arcadis is 
currently waiting for recently vacated Unit C to be marketed and the 
valuation will be used as a benchmark for rent review for the other units 
in the estate.

 One VWHDC property, approval for rent review has not been issued as 
Arcadis is currently negotiating with the tenants regarding the repair 
works required.
It is noted that the rent review process for the 17 properties have been 
completed, however negotiations with the tenants are still ongoing, 
therefore the review to confirm that the Concerto system is updated 
after rent review could not be undertaken.

5.2.3 Tenants pay their rent periodically, i.e. annually, half yearly, quarterly or 
monthly, which is stated on the lease agreement with the councils.  A 
periodic payment spreadsheet is sent to Capita exchequer services, 
which includes the property details, tenant, annual rent and the 
payment terms.  Review of 17 (14 SODC and three VWHDC) 
properties found that:

 for one SODC invoice, the direct debit was rejected and the estates 
team (Arcadis) was notified.  It is noted that Arcadis will be contacting 
the tenant regarding the arrangement for payment.

Page 131

Agenda Item 10



5.2.4 Area assurance: Limited
Three recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this 
area. (Recs 1 and 2).

5.3 Property valuations

5.3.1 There are two types of property valuations undertaken, accounting 
valuation and insurance valuation.  Accounting valuation is to establish 
the value of the property for balance sheet purposes, while insurance 
valuation is to establish the value to rebuild the property.  The 5CP 
service specification states that both valuations will be undertaken on a 
five year cycle, however the risk and insurance officer stated that a 
verbal agreement is in place for insurance valuations to be undertaken 
on a three year cycle.  Arcadis has developed a five year schedule for 
accounting valuation which is split into the following categories:

 Year one (2016/2017) - car parks;
 Year two (2017/2018) - leisure centres, parks, cemeteries, allotments 

and open spaces;
 Year three (2018/2019) - public convenience, civic estates and housing 

(inc. mobile homes park);
 Year four (2019/2020) - investment properties and long leases;
 Year five (2020/2021) - TNRP (ex. Investments and long leases), 

community centres and surplus/vacant sites.

5.3.2 The six Oxfordshire councils have a joint four years’ framework in place 
to have to undertake property valuations on behalf of the councils, 
which started in May 2014.  It is noted that the framework consists of 
six contractors, including Bruton Knowles.  The process for undertaking 
accounting valuation starts in November each year, where approval of 
the valuation schedule is obtained from the section 151 officer, as 
required by CIPFA guidance.  The section 151 officer approved year 
one of the valuation schedule and Bruton Knowles undertook the 
2016/2017 car parks accounting valuation.  There were 35 (21 SODC 
and 14 VWHDC) car parks revalued and review found that:

 Two SODC car parks (High Street & Station Road) were initially valued 
as one car park by Bruton Knowles, which was rejected.  However, 
after the car parks were valued again as two separate car parks, the 
councils received the valuation report after accountancy (Capita) 
closed the 2016/2017 accounts, therefore the revaluation could not be 
included.  It is noted that external audit (Ernst & Young) have been 
made aware and this will be included as part of the 2017/2018 close 
down.

 Two (one SODC and one VWHDC) car parks had an issue due to 
assets split in valuation, but not split in the fixed asset register.

5.3.3 The estates team (Arcadis) undertake the insurance valuation and in 
May 2017, undertook the valuation of all of the council owed properties.  
The valuation was undertaken using the Building Cost Information 
Service (BCIS) index, which is part Royal Institution of Chartered 
Surveyors (RICS) and review of 20 (ten SODC and ten VWHDC) 
properties confirmed that the valuation amounts on the insurance 
spreadsheet agrees with the amounts on BCIS reports.

Page 132

Agenda Item 10



5.3.4 Area assurance: Satisfactory
Two recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this 
area (Recs 3 and 4).

5.4 Property asset register

5.4.1 The estates team (Arcadis) hold the property register on the Concerto 
system, while the accountancy team (Capita) maintain the fixed asset 
register.  The property valuations are recorded on the fixed asset 
register and the book value at the end of each financial year is adjusted 
to allow for any depreciation, additions, disposals or revaluations.  
Review of both the property register and the fixed asset register 
confirmed that the registers are in line with councils’ financial procedure 
rules and CIPFA guidelines.  

5.4.2 The property register was reviewed and established that since the 
capital management and accounting review, which was undertaken in 
March 2017, there have been no additions to the property portfolio and 
four properties are currently in process for disposal.  Review of the 
properties currently in progress for disposal established that the 
process undertaken is in line with the councils’ financial procedure 
rules.  As the properties are currently in the disposal process both the 
property register or fixed asset register have not been updated.  It is 
noted that regular reconciliations are not undertaken between the two 
registers to confirm that the valued land and buildings on the property 
register agree to the land and buildings on the fixed asset register.

5.4.4 Area assurance: Satisfactory
One recommendation has been made as a result of our work in this 
area. (Rec 5).

5.5 Property Maintenance

5.5.1 The lease agreements between the councils and tenants state 
responsibility for the maintenance of the properties.  The 
responsibilities are entered onto the Concerto system within the lease 
details section.  Review of 20 (ten SODC and ten VWHDC) leases 
confirmed that responsibility for maintaining the properties are clearly 
entered on the Concerto system and agree to the lease agreements.

5.5.2 Area assurance: Full
No recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this 
area.

5.6 Contract management arrangements

5.6.1 As part of the five councils’ partnership, which started on 1 August 
2016, the councils’ property management service was contracted out to 
Vinci.  It is noted that Vinci subcontracted the property management 
service to Arcadis.  A service delivery plan (SPD) has been developed 
and is in place stating the service that will be provided.

Page 133

Agenda Item 10



5.6.2 The councils manage and monitor the contract through monthly 
meetings between the councils and Arcadis, and also in place is a 
service improvement group that meets monthly and includes Vinci.  
The councils receive monthly performance reports from Vinci, however, 
the property manager (5CP client) stated that the performance 
indicators for property management are currently being reviewed.

5.6.4 Area assurance: Full
No recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this 
area.

6. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

6.1 Internal audit would like to take this opportunity to thank all staff 
involved for their assistance with the audit.

7. CATEGORISATION OF RECOMMENDATIONS

7.1 To assist management in using our reports, we have categorised our 
recommendations according to their level of priority as follows:

High risk Fundamental control weakness for 
senior management action

Recs 1

Medium risk Other control weakness for local 
management action

Rec 5

Low risk Recommended best practice to 
improve overall control

Recs 2, 3 and 4

OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

PROPERTY RENT

1. Periodic invoicing review (High Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
The periodic invoice 
spreadsheet is regularly 
reviewed, correct and agrees to 
the amount rental amount on the 
Concerto system and that the 
tenants are invoiced the 
appropriate rental amount for 
the property they lease.

Findings
The periodic invoice 
spreadsheet, which is sent to 
exchequer services, is not 
reviewed against the Concerto 
system on a regular basis.

Risk
If the periodic invoice 
spreadsheet is not regularly 

A regular review should be 
undertaken on the periodic 
invoice spreadsheet to ensure 
that all rent amounts agree to 
the amount on the Concerto 
system.

Estates Manager 
(Arcadis)

Page 134

Agenda Item 10



reviewed, there is a risk of 
tenants being invoiced 
incorrectly resulting in a financial 
risk to the councils.

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
A review will need to be undertaken to ensure the Concerto 
system matches the invoice spreadsheet.  Going forward, the 
Concerto system will have integration with the Council’s new 
finance system, Integra (once this system is implemented) which 
will negate the need for manual intervention.

Management response: Estates Manager (Arcadis)

31 December 2017

2. Rent review notifications (Low Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Rent review notifications are 
issued prior to the rent review 
due date allowing sufficient time 
to invoice for revised rents.

Findings
Review of 17 (14 SODC and 
three VWHDC) leased properties 
found that for seven properties, 
notification of rent review was 
issued after the rent review due 
date as stated on the lease 
agreement.  

Risk
If rent review notifications are 
not issued prior to the review 
due date, there is a financial risk 
to the councils as there is a 
delay in any increase in rental 
income being received.

Rent review notifications are 
issued prior to the rent review 
due date, so that delays are 
kept to a minimum due to 
negotiations with tenants.

Estates Manager 
(Arcadis)

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
To be undertaken as part of a wider review of Concerto data.

Management response: Estates Manager (Arcadis)

31 March 2018

PROPERTY VALUATIONS

3. Insurance valuations (Low Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Property insurance valuations 
are undertaken in accordance 
with the written agreement 
between the councils and the 
contractor.

Findings

a) The councils should establish 
if Arcadis will charge an 
additional fee for undertaking 
insurance property valuations 
on a more frequent basis, 
every three years, than stated 
in the contract specification.

Risk and Insurance 
Officer

Page 135

Agenda Item 10



The estates team (Arcadis) 
undertake the valuations for 
insurance purposes.  It is noted 
that verbal agreement has been 
made between the estates 
manager (Arcadis) and the risk & 
insurance officer to undertake a 
full valuation every three years.  
However, the five districts 
corporate services - service 
specification: property 
management states that 
valuations are undertaken on a 
five year cycle.

Risk
If a written agreement is not in 
place with the contractor, there 
is a risk of additional charges 
outside of the contract.

b) A formal agreement should be 
put in place between Arcadis 
and the councils if all parties 
agree to undertake insurance 
valuation on a three yearly 
basis.

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
I will liaise with Arcadis to ascertain costs.

Management response: Risk and Insurance Officer

31 March 2018

4. Splitting of Assets (Low Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
The properties on the fixed asset 
register are split as stated in the 
valuation report and the property 
register (Concerto).

Findings
Review of 35 (21 SODC car 
parks & 14 VWHDC car parks) 
property valuations undertaken 
in 2016/2017 found that:

 For one SODC car park 
(Cattlemarket, Thame), the value 
on the fixed asset register was 
greater than the value on the 
valuation report by £400,000.00.  
This is due to historically the car 
park and the actual cattlemarket 
building were valued as one 
asset, and the estates team 
(Arcadis) requested that the car 
park is valued separately.  This 
is currently classed as one on 
the fixed asset register and 
requires to be split.

 Two VWHDC car parks 
(Cattlemarket, Abingdon and 
Civic, Abingdon) are shown as 
one car park (Civic, Abingdon) 
on the fixed asset register, which 
requires to the be split.

The fixed asset register 
should be reviewed against 
the property register, 
Concerto, and assets are split 
accordingly to ensure that 
both registers agree.

Estates Manager 
(Arcadis)
Chief Accountant (Capita)

Page 136

Agenda Item 10



Risk
If property assets are merged on 
the fixed asset register, there is 
a risk of the valuation amount on 
the register being incorrect 
resulting in inaccuracy to the 
councils’ balance sheet.

Management Responses - Arcadis Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
A review will need to be undertaken to ensure the Concerto 
system matches the FAR held by Capita accountancy.  Going 
forward, the Concerto system will have integration with the 
councils’ new finance system, Integra (once this system is 
implemented) which will negate the need for manual intervention.  
The next asset valuations will be instructed in December.

Management response: Estates Manager (Arcadis)

31 December 2017

Management Responses - Capita Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
The general ledger will be reconciled to the asset register as 
provided.

Management response: Chief Accountant (Capita)

31 May 2018

PROPERTY ASSET REGISTERS

5. Property asset registers reconciliation (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
The property assets on the fixed 
asset register are reconciled to 
the property register (Concerto) 
on a regular basis.

Findings
Whilst it is noted that the fixed 
asset register only includes land 
and properties with a value and 
the property register includes all 
land and properties owned by 
the councils, a reconciliation 
between the fixed asset register 
and the property register 
(Concerto) is not undertaken.

Risk
If a reconciliation is not 
undertaken between the 
property register (Concerto) and 
the fixed asset register, there is 
a risk of one or both registers 
being inaccurate resulting in 
errors to the balance sheet.

A reconciliation should be 
undertaken between the 
accountancy (Capita) 
managed fixed asset register 
and the property register, held 
on the Concerto system, to 
confirm that the valued land 
and properties agree on both 
registers.

Staff Officer

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed 31 December 2017

Page 137

Agenda Item 10



A review will need to be undertaken to ensure the Concerto 
system matches the FAR held by Capita accountancy.  Going 
forward, the Concerto system will have integration with the 
councils’ new finance system, Integra (once this system is 
implemented) which will negate the need for manual intervention.  
The next asset valuations will be instructed in December.

Management response: Estates Manager (Arcadis)

2. Credit Card Usage – 2017/2018

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 This report details the internal audit review of procedures, controls and 
the management of risk in relation to credit card usage.  The audit has 
been undertaken in accordance with the 2017/2018 audit plan agreed 
with the audit and governance committee of South Oxfordshire District 
Council (SODC) and Vale of White Horse District Council (VWHDC).  
The audit has a priority score of 20.  The audit approach is provided in 
the audit framework in Appendix 1.

1.2 The following areas have been covered during the course of this review 
to provide assurance that:

 appropriate credit card usage policies and procedures are in place which 
are adhered to and appropriate guidance is given to applicants which 
reflect the new arrangements under the five councils’ partnership (5CP);

 use of council credit cards is restricted to relevant officers and cards are 
correctly authorised and issued;

 the usage of credit cards is correct and appropriate;
 credit card transactions are appropriately recorded and supported by 

relevant documentation;
 credit card usage is regularly and appropriately recorded and reconciled.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 Credit cards have been issued to 14 council officers. These are the head of 
finance, the finance officer (Five Council Partnership client team), the arts 
manager (Cornerstone), the café bar supervisor (Cornerstone), the leisure 
manager and nine housing needs officers. The housing needs officers have 
been issued with council credit cards in order to fulfil the council’s duties to 
provide emergency temporary accommodation.

2.2 From 1 August 2016, SODC and VWHDC accountancy services was 
outsourced to Capita, who manage the service under the Five Councils 
Partnership (5CP).  Capita accountancy team provide the system 
administration for credit card usage and input the monthly transactions 
through the financial management system Agresso. 

Page 138

Agenda Item 10



2.3 SODC have used Barclaycard credit cards since the council started 
banking with Barclays (approx. 1976).  VWHDC moved from the Co-op 
to Barclays in 2014.  The overall credit limit is £27,000 for SODC and 
£27,000 for VWHDC.

3. PREVIOUS AUDIT REPORTS

3.1 SODC
Credit card usage was last subject to an internal audit review in 
January 2014 and five recommendations were raised.  All 
recommendations were agreed.  A satisfactory assurance opinion was 
issued.  A follow up audit was undertaken in July 2015 and it was 
identified that three recommendations had been implemented.  Two 
recommendations on spending limits and register of cards have been 
revised and incorporated into this report (Recs 2 and 4).

3.2 VWHDC
Credit card usage was last subject to an internal audit review in 
January 2014 and three recommendations were raised.  Two 
recommendations were agreed and one was agreed in principle.  A 
satisfactory assurance opinion was issued.  A follow up audit was 
undertaken in July 2015 and it was identified that two recommendations 
had been implemented.  One recommendation on register of cards 
have been revised and incorporated into this report (Rec 4).

4. 2017/2018 AUDIT ASSURANCE

4.1 Limited assurance: There are some weaknesses in the adequacy of 
the internal control system which put the system objectives at risk 
and/or the level of non-compliance puts some of the system objectives 
at risk.

4.2 Eleven joint recommendations have been raised in this review.  Two 
high risk, four medium risk and five low risk.

5. MAIN FINDINGS

5.1 Policies and procedures 

5.1.1 A formal ‘use of credit card’ guidance document is available on the 
councils’ intranet for cardholders detailing the terms and conditions of 
credit card usage.

5.1.2 There have been minor changes to the process of credit card 
administration after the implementation of the Five Councils’ 
Partnership (5CP) contract on 1 August 2016.  The minor amendments 
that have been made are structural as the accountancy team is now 
managed by Capita and the finance officer (5CP) is the official VWHDC 
account holder (employed by SODC and VWHDC) and has a credit 
card.  The head of finance remains the SODC account holder.  The 
current administrators for the SODC and VWHDC Barclaycard account 
are Capita employees and require written approval from the head of 
finance prior to making any administrative changes.

Page 139

Agenda Item 10



5.1.3 Area assurance: Full
No recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this 
area.

5.2 Credit card issue and authorisation

5.2.1 Internal audit reviewed the 14 credit cards currently in use by the 
council and found that VWHDC credit cards had been suitably 
authorised prior to the issue.  The cards issued have no facility for 
cash withdrawals and do not have reward schemes.  It was not 
possible to perform the same review for SODC credit cards as the 
paperwork had been destroyed in the Crowmarsh council building fire 
that took place in January 2015.  Further review identified that no 
efforts had been made to get copies of key documents from 
Barclaycard for the council’s records.  

5.2.2 It was established there are currently no signed records of officers 
being issued with the documented guidance on the use of the cards 
and signing to accept the terms and conditions of being a credit card 
holder.  A request for information was sent to the 14 credit cardholders 
in regards to the security measures they employ on the credit cards.  
Thirteen out of the 14 credit card holders responded and confirmed that 
they are aware of the security requirements for its use and the need to 
keep the card secure.  Internal audit received no response from one of 
the credit card holders despite several requests for their security 
arrangements during the audit.  This has been escalated to the head of 
finance.  

5.2.3 Area assurance: Limited
Eight recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this 
area (Recs 1 - 8).

5.3 Credit card usage

5.3.1 In order to assess the credit card usage, internal audit conducted a 
review of 15 (seven SODC and eight VWHDC) randomly selected 
credit card transactions using the statements from May 2016 to July 
2017.  It was identified that all transactions were found to be 
appropriate although a few weaknesses were found in the 
administration of the credit cards.  Issues identified included the need 
to remind cardholders to utilise accounts payable system where 
possible and independent reviews of credit card purchases are lacking.

5.3.2 Area assurance: Satisfactory
Three recommendations have been made as a result of our work in 
this area (Recs 9 - 11).

5.4 Transactions documented and recorded

5.4.1 The individual cardholder’s Barclaycard monthly statements with the 
monthly expenditure from credit cards are downloaded online when 
they are made available, normally from the second of each month.  

Page 140

Agenda Item 10



Cardholders are required to complete a pro forma for expenditure 
items, attach receipts of purchases for VAT purposes, and send this to 
the accountant (Capita) each month.  The individual proformas and 
supporting documentation for transactions was reviewed in the audit 
tests undertaken in 5.3.1 whilst checking usage was appropriate.  

5.4.2 Area assurance: Satisfactory
No recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this 
area. Findings from this area are incorporated within recommendations 
from 5.3 of this review (Recs 9 -11).

5.5 Reconciliations

5.5.1 A monthly reconciliation is undertaken by the accountant (Capita) who 
maintains a listing of credit card expenditure in a spreadsheet.  The 
reconciliation spreadsheet records and balances the monthly credit 
card statement amounts with the journals to code the individual 
transactions, including VAT.  The balance on the Barclaycard account 
for all cardholders is detailed on monthly statements and payment is 
automatically debited to the council’s general bank account on or 
immediately after the tenth of each month. Interest or unnecessary 
charges are therefore avoided.  

5.5.2 Area assurance: Full
No recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this 
area.

6. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

6.1 Internal audit would like to take this opportunity to thank all staff 
involved for their assistance with the audit.

7. CATEGORISATION OF RECOMMENDATIONS

7.1 To assist management in using our reports, we have categorised our 
recommendations according to their level of priority as follows:

High risk Fundamental control weakness for 
senior management action

Recs 3 and 6

Medium risk Other control weakness for local 
management action

Recs 2, 8, 9 and 11

Low risk Recommended best practice to 
improve overall control

Recs 1, 4, 5, 7 and 
10

Page 141

Agenda Item 10



OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

CREDIT CARD ISSUE AND AUTHORISATION

1. SODC Barclaycard contract (Low Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
All signed contracts and 
agreements are retained and readily 
available when required.

Findings
Due to the Crowmarsh building fire 
in January 2015, SODC no longer 
have paperwork which states the 
council’s agreement with 
Barclaycard including the terms and 
conditions of the contract for credit 
cards issued.

Risk
The council may not be acting in 
accordance to the agreed terms and 
conditions of the contract.

The council should contact 
Barclaycard and request 
for SODC copies of the 
terms and conditions and 
agreement for their 
records.

Strategic Finance 
Manager

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed

Management response: Strategic Finance Manager

31 March 2018

2. Spending Limit (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
The overall account limit is at least 
as high as the total for all individual 
cards.

Findings
The individual cardholders have 
expenditure limits that total £33,000 
for SODC and £32,000 for VWHDC 
but the overall account limit is 
£27,000 for each council.

Risk
If the overall account expenditure 
limit is less than the total for the 
individual cards, then officers may 
be prohibited from making 
expenditure such as provision of 
emergency housing.  There is also 
a risk of potential charges from the 
credit card issuer for going over the 
credit limit fee.

The overall account limit 
for the credit card 
expenditure should be 
reviewed when new cards 
are approved or spending 
limits are amended to 
ensure they are set at an 
appropriate level. 

N/A

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Not Agreed N/A

Page 142

Agenda Item 10



Under normal operating circumstances the combined limit does 
not need to be as high as the individual cards. In exceptional 
circumstances, alternative arrangements could be made.

Management response: Strategic Finance Manager

3. Credit cards online access details (High Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
A register is maintained and updated 
regularly with details of the card 
numbers issued to officers.

Findings
The full details of the Barclaycard 
online access username and 
passwords are written on the lever 
arch file used to retain the bank 
statements.  The file was kept in an 
unlocked filing cabinet.  It was noted 
that the access details allow the 
administrator to solely 
activate/reactivate/deactivate 
accounts, order new/cancel credit 
cards, increase and decrease credit 
card limits from Barclaycard when 
required. 

Risk
There is a risk of unauthorised use 
which could result in potentially 
fraudulent activities.

Passwords for 
Barclaycard log-ins stored 
on the lever arch files 
should be destroyed 
immediately.  The log in 
details (excluding 
individual passwords) 
need to be stored in a 
secure place and 
accessible only to the 
appropriate account 
administrators.

Principal Accountant 
(Capita)

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed

Management response: Principal Accountant (Capita)

Implemented – 
30/09/2017

4. Administration of credit cards (Low Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
A register is maintained and 
updated regularly with details of the 
card numbers issued to officers.

Findings
Whilst there is central electronic 
listing of cards that have been 
issued, the following was identified:

 The head of finance’s card records 
for VWHDC were not included on 
the council’s credit card register;

 At the time of the audit, the Beacon 
team leader had left the council in 
June 2017 and was still appearing 
on the credit card register.

Four out of the 15 (three SODC and 
one VWHDC) credit card 
transactions had the supporting 

a) The electronic register 
maintained of the card 
numbers issued to officers 
should be updated to 
reflect the head of 
finance’s VWHDC credit 
card records and removal 
of the Beacon team 
leader.

b) All supporting 
documentation relating to 
financial transactions 
made via credit card 
should be reviewed to 
ensure they are correct 
and retained in an 
appropriate central folder.

Strategic Finance 
Manager

Page 143

Agenda Item 10



documentation sent to the 
accountant’s email (electronic) and 
saved in the accountant’s personal 
inbox only. The supporting 
documentation was not saved in the 
appropriate credit card reconciliation 
folder.

Risk
If inaccurate records are maintained 
of cards issued, there may be 
delays in obtaining relevant 
information should queries arise.
Management Response Implementation 

Date
Recommendation is Agreed

Management response: Strategic Finance Manager

31 March 2018

5. Reward incentives (Low Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Any personal rewards or incentive 
schemes offered on behalf of 
council purchases are reported and 
managed by the finance team.

Findings
The ‘use of corporate credit cards’ 
guidance states:
The council does not envisage that 
the corporate Barclaycard will attract 
any
personal reward or incentives (e.g.: 
air miles, reward points, cashback). 
Should
any incentive scheme be offered or 
received, then these are the 
property of
the councils and must be declared 
to Accountancy as soon as 
possible.
Incentive schemes from suppliers 
should not influence the use of the 
business
card, but staff can make use of 
special promotions and discounts if 
applicable.

Internal audit identified a payment 
via the credit card that had a Tesco 
club card used.  Further review of 
this purchase identified that the 
Tesco club card had been 
registered to SODC name and 
address although the club card was 
issued in the name of an officer who 
is not in the finance team.

Risk
There is a risk of misuse of council 
owned rewards by officers which 

a) All users of credit cards 
should be reminded of the 
use for purchases that 
attract any personal 
reward or incentives.

b) All reward incentives 
earned by the council 
should be kept centrally by 
the finance team with 
information shared out to 
card users of their 
availability if required, as 
stated in the council’s 
credit card guidance.

Strategic Finance 
Manager

Page 144

Agenda Item 10



can lead to potential financial loss 
and reputational damage.
Management Response Implementation 

Date
Recommendation is Agreed in Principle
The Strategic Finance Manager will discuss a review of guidance 
and procedures for credit card administration and usage with 
Capita.  However, any changes in guidance and procedures may 
need to be accommodated in the move to Target Operating 
Model by Capita.

Management response: Strategic Finance Manager

30 November 2018

6. Issued credit cards (High Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Credit card activity is monitored with 
immediate action taken where 
changes have occurred.

Findings
A review of the cards registered by 
Barclaycard as issued was 
undertaken and the following was 
identified:
SODC

 The arts manager (Cornerstone) 
had left the council in December 
2016 and Barclaycard had not been 
informed of this at the time of the 
audit.  It can be confirmed that the 
card had not been retrieved by the 
council and no transactions have 
been taken since the employee left 
the council.
VWHDC

 The Head of Housing who left 
council employment in April 2014 
was still appearing on the 
Barclaycard register as they had not 
been informed to close the account. 

Risk
There is a risk of misuse of credit 
cards by officers who have left the 
council leading to potential financial 
loss and reputational damage.

The credit card system 
administrator should be 
added to the leavers list 
sent out by HR to ensure 
that any credit card 
holders who have left the 
council have returned the 
cards and are removed 
from the system as soon 
as possible.

Client Manager - HR
(5CP)

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
The HR leavers form will be updated to prompt the line manager 
to request for any corporate credit cards issued to the officer 
when they leave the council.

Management response: Client Manager – HR (5CP)

31 March 2018

Page 145

Agenda Item 10



7. Inactive credit cards (Low Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
All cards that are no longer required 
are be returned to finance for 
destruction and updating of records 
as soon as possible.

Findings
The Barclaycard register noted that 
there were 14 SODC and 14 
VWHDC inactive cards that had 
been issued to credit card holders.  
Internal audit were informed that this 
was due to Barclaycard moving from 
using VISA credit cards to 
MASTERCARD credit cards in 2016, 
therefore every account user was 
issued with the new corporate credit 
card.  Further review also identified 
that the ‘use of corporate credit card’ 
guidance states:
The cardholder should never 
dispose of nor destroy the card 
(even if expired). Cards that are no 
longer required must be returned to 
the accountancy manager 
(technical) for destruction and 
updating of records.

The head of finance, finance officer 
(5CP) and the accountant (Capita) 
confirmed that there have been none 
of the inactive VISA cards that had 
been returned when the switch over 
of the corporate credit card 
(Barclaycard) from VISA to 
MASTERCARD took place.

It should be noted that internal audit 
performed a test on the old VISA 
card held by the head of finance to 
ensure that it had been deactivated.  
The results identified that the 
purchase was declined as the card 
was deactivated.

Risk
If inactive credit cards are not 
collected, then there is a risk of non-
compliance with the council’s credit 
card policy and procedures.

a) Attempts should be made 
to recover the inactive 
credit cards where 
possible.  

b) Credit card holders need 
to be reminded to ensure 
that all cards that are no 
longer required are 
returned to finance for 
destruction and updating 
of records as stated in the 
‘use of credit card’ 
guidance.

a) N/A

b) Strategic Finance 
Manager

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation a) is Not Agreed.

Recommendation b) is Agreed in principle
The Strategic Finance Manager will discuss a review of guidance 
and procedures for credit card administration and usage with 
Capita.  However, any changes in guidance and procedures may 
need to be accommodated in the move to Target Operating 
Model by Capita.

a) N/A

b) 30 November 2018

Page 146

Agenda Item 10



Management response: Strategic Finance Manager

8. Cardholder terms and conditions (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
All credit card holders have signed 
and agreed to the council’s terms 
and conditions for credit card usage.

Findings
There is no requirement for new 
credit cardholders to confirm receipt 
of their credit cards from the card 
issuer (Barclaycard).  There is also 
no evidence of a requirement of the 
cardholders signing to show they 
accept the terms and conditions of 
being a council credit card holder.

Six out of the 15 credit card 
transactions (four Cornerstone 
(SODC), one housing (VWHDC) 
and one Beacon (VWHDC)) tested 
were reconciled to the bank 
statement.  However, there was no 
evidence of the appropriate 
council’s pro-forma being completed 
to show the required pre-
authorisation as documented in the 
credit card guidance. 

Risk
There is a risk of misuse of credit 
cards, financial loss and 
reputational damage to the council if 
the terms and conditions of the 
approved credit cards are not 
issued to cardholders.

a) A procedure must be put 
in place to ensure 
cardholders sign to 
confirm they have received 
their credit cards and that 
they have read and 
understood the ‘use of 
corporate credit card’ 
guidance as agreement to 
the terms of usage.

b) The ‘use of corporate 
credit cards’ guidance 
should be amended to 
reflect Cornerstone and 
The Beacon’s use of 
cards, i.e. pre and post 
purchase authorisation 
requirements.

Strategic Finance 
Manager

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed in principle
The Strategic Finance Manager will discuss a review of guidance 
and procedures for credit card administration and usage with 
Capita.  However, any changes in guidance and procedures may 
need to be accommodated in the move to Target Operating 
Model by Capita.

Management response: Strategic Finance Manager

30 November 2018

CREDIT CARD USAGE

9. Appropriate use of credit card (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
All credit cards are used only for 
exceptions where the councils’ 
accounts payable system is not 
feasible. 

A reminder should be sent 
to credit card holders to 
ensure that purchases are 
made in accordance with 
the council’s credit card 
guidance, i.e. cards are 

Strategic Finance 
Manager

Page 147

Agenda Item 10



Findings
The ‘use of corporate credit cards’ 
guidance states:
Cards are only to be used in 
exceptional circumstances, where 
the usual
procedure of raising an order and 
processing the invoice is not 
feasible.
Two Cornerstone (SODC) credit 
card transactions for food supplies 
and equipment had been paid via 
the credit card which could have 
been paid via accounts payable as 
they had received an invoice with a 
30-day payment term.

Risk
If the credit card is not used 
appropriately the council may not be 
taking advantage of supplier terms 
and conditions i.e. of payment 
periods, thereby increasing the 
council’s creditworthiness.  

only used in exceptional 
circumstances where the 
usual procedure of raising 
an order and processing 
the invoice via accounts 
payable is not feasible.

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed

Management response: Strategic Finance Manager

31 December 2017

10. Credit card proforma - housing (Low Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Credit card forms are consistent and 
have sections that endure 
cardholders provide full details of 
the transactions.

Findings
The housing pro-forma used to 
document credit card purchases 
and budget codes does not ask the 
cardholder to record the purchase 
details and reason justifying the 
purchase.

Risk
If evidence of credit transactions are 
not documented appropriately, there 
is a risk of fraudulent activity taking 
place and not being easily identified.

The housing credit card 
proforma should be edited 
to include a section that 
requires description of 
purchase and reason why 
it is being made.

Housing needs manager

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
Housing will update the proforma as suggested.

Management response: Housing Needs Manager

Implemented – 
01/10/2017

Page 148

Agenda Item 10



11. Credit card transaction review (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Independent review of credit card 
transactions is undertaken by an 
appropriate officer.

Findings
Internal audit’s testing identified that 
12 out of 15 credit card purchases 
did not show evidence of an 
independent review from an 
appropriate management team 
member confirming that purchases 
are in line with departmental 
expenditure requirements. 

It should be noted that purchase 
requests made through finance 
have an independent review 
undertaken by the cardholder. 
However, where the cardholder 
commits to an expenditure there is a 
lack of independent review.

Risk
If credit transactions are not 
independently reviewed 
appropriately, then any 
inappropriate expenditure may not 
be detected until after it has been 
paid out leading to a risk of financial 
loss to the council.

A requirement should be 
introduced for senior 
management to review 
credit card expenditure to 
ensure that the 
expenditure is adequate 
and in line with the agreed 
use of the card.

Strategic Finance 
Manager/Housing Needs 
Manager

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed in Principle
The housing management team will review credit card 
expenditure when a procedure is in place.

Management response: Housing Needs Manager.

Recommendation is Agreed in principle
Procedures for credit card usage are to be reviewed and this will 
be taken into account as part of that review.

Management response: Strategic Finance Manager

31 March 2018

3. Follow Up - Review of Crowmarsh Fire March 2015

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 This report details the findings from internal audit’s follow-up review of 
the review of the councils’ response to the Crowmarsh fire 15 January 
2015. The original review was undertaken in the months following the 
incident and the final report was issued in September 2015. A follow-up 
has been undertaken in 2017/2018 at the request of the audit and 
governance committee of South Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) 

Page 149

Agenda Item 10



and Vale of White Horse District Council (VWHDC), to ensure that the 
agreed recommendations have been implemented within the 
timescales provided.  

2. INITIAL REVIEW FINDINGS

2.1 The final report made 19 recommendations and listed 16 lessons 
learnt. 

3. FOLLOW UP MAIN FINDINGS

3.1 The review found that of the 19 recommendations, five have been 
implemented and one is no longer applicable. Revised dates have 
been agreed for the remaining 13 recommendations which have been 
partly implemented. Most of the partly implemented recommendations 
will be implemented once draft continuity and emergency plans are 
approved and rolled out. 

3.2 Two of the 16 lessons learnt had been implemented at the time the 
final report was issued and seven more have been found to have been 
implemented. Revised dates are agreed for the remaining seven 
lessons learnt which will also be addressed once draft plans are 
approved.

4. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

4.1 Internal audit would like to take this opportunity to thank all staff 
involved for their assistance with the follow-up audit.

Page 150

Agenda Item 10



FOLLOW-UP OBSERVATIONS

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. Assessment of risk (Medium Risk)
Recommendation Implementation date
Each service area should undertake an exercise to assess the 
risk of potential threats occurring and the impact to business 
operations those threats, if realised, might cause.  This 
information should be used by service areas to inform their 
contingency planning, and published on the councils’ websites in 
accordance with the requirements of the Civil Contingencies Act 
2004.

30 September 2016

Follow-up observations
The new risk management strategy and framework was 
endorsed at JAGC in Sept 2017, and is now being rolled out 
across the councils.  This incorporates risk registers at a service 
team level and senior management level being regularly 
reviewed and monitored. The first risk forum was undertaken 
31/10/2017 to commence this process of review, and SMT met 
on 10/01/18 to undertake the first corporate risk register review.

Implemented

2. Identification of key services (Medium Risk)
Recommendation Implementation date
a) Each service area should list their key services, activities, 

functions, partnerships, supply chains and relationships with 
interested parties, and then for each one assess the 
likelihood and impact of disruption on service delivery and 
customers.

b) From the key services assessment, each service area should 
identify their critical activities, the risk to these critical 
activities and the resources that are required to deliver the 
activities in the event of an incident.

c) Each service area should identify the critical 
information/documents that need to be maintained and 
accessible in the event of an incident.

30 September 2016

Follow-up observations
Initial meetings have been undertaken across all service areas, 
and existing business continuity plans are in use and being 
updated. However, a new business continuity template is being 
developed as part of a new integrated assurance approach, and 
this will incorporate detailed business impact assessments.  The 
emergency planning officer has been tasked with this review, and 
it will be taken forward as part of the new corporate services 
team.

Partly Implemented

Revised Implementation 
date: 30 June 2018

3. Business continuity strategy (Medium Risk)
Recommendation Implementation date
The business continuity strategy should be reviewed and updated 
to ensure that it clearly defines the scope, aims and objectives of 
business continuity management arrangements across both 
councils.  Accountability and resources to deliver the strategy 
should be clearly defined and approved by the audit and 
governance committee.

31 March 2016

Page 151

Agenda Item 10



Follow-up observations
This is being reviewed by the emergency planning officer as a 
part of the new integrated assurance approach, and will ensure 
that partner business continuity arrangements are included.

Partly Implemented
 
Revised Implementation 
date: 30 June 2018

4. Crisis management plan (Medium Risk)
Recommendation Implementation date
The crisis management plan should be reviewed and updated to 
ensure that it clearly defines the scope, aims and objectives of 
managing a response to an incident.  Service requirements 
should be assessed, prioritised and agreed by senior 
management within the plan, and accountability, resources and 
relevant contacts to deliver the response should be clearly 
defined and record maintenance requirements documented.

30 September 2016

Follow-up observations
A revised crisis management plan has been drafted which 
includes:

 A revised crisis response framework linking in with 
Oxfordshire County Council;

 A new initial incident procedure with relevant working 
templates;

 Defined roles and responsibilities for the crisis response 
team and updated contacts; and

 Detailed emergency operation centre protocols
This is currently under review by management prior to final 
approval.

Partly Implemented
 
Revised Implementation 
date: 31 March 2018

5. Communications plan (Medium Risk)
Recommendation Implementation date
A comprehensive communications plan should be implemented 
which covers alternative methods of communications delivery 
should normal channels be disrupted, target audiences and 
contact information, key messages objectives and templates to 
collate/disseminate required information.

31 December 2016

Follow-up observations
Communication routes and methods are embedded within draft 
plans, following discussions between emergency planning and 
communications.  These will be finalised when the draft plans are 
approved and testing/training is rolled out.

Partly Implemented
 
Revised Implementation 
date: 30 June 2018

6. Temporary accommodation arrangements (Medium Risk)
Recommendation Implementation date
Suitable temporary accommodation arrangements need to be 
identified should any of the council offices not be available due to 
an incident.  The arrangements should include the provision of an 
incident room and sufficient accommodation for agreed critical 
activities and staff.  Necessary supplies, equipment and welfare 
requirements should be identified and sourced.  The relevant 
officers should be notified of the arrangements.

31 December 2016

Follow-up observations
The draft crisis management plan includes detailed emergency 
operation centre protocols, which includes activation routes, 
room layouts, technical set ups and alternative recovery sites. 

Partly Implemented
 
Revised Implementation 
date: 31 March 2018

Page 152

Agenda Item 10



This is currently under review by management prior to final 
approval.

7. Emergency finance procedures (Medium Risk)
Recommendation Implementation date
Corporate emergency finance procedures that can be 
implemented immediately during a BC incident should be 
documented and agreed.  They should include the authorisation 
of emergency purchases, security of cash and assets, the 
drawing of funds and use of credit cards and the monitoring of 
expenditure.

30 September 2016

Follow-up observations
The draft crisis management plan includes emergency finance 
procedures. This is currently under review by management prior 
to final approval.

Partly Implemented

Revised Implementation 
date: 31 March 2018

8. Business continuity template (Medium Risk)
Recommendation Implementation date
The business continuity plan template should be reviewed and 
updated to ensure that it clearly defines the scope, aims and 
objectives of managing a service area response to a business 
continuity incident over certain timeframes.  Each service area 
should assess and prioritise their service requirements, critical 
activities and documents and resource requirements, and these 
should be documented, agreed by senior management and 
updated as changes occur.  Accountability, welfare requirements 
and relevant contacts to deliver the service area response should 
be clearly defined and record maintenance requirements 
documented.

30 September 2016

Follow-up observations
Initial meetings have been undertaken across all service areas, 
and existing business continuity plans are in use and being 
updated. However, a new business continuity template is being 
developed as part of a new integrated assurance approach, 
which will be more flexible to meet varying business continuity 
incidents.  The emergency planning officer has been tasked with 
this review, and it will be taken forward as part of the new 
corporate services team.

Partly Implemented
 
Revised Implementation 
date: 30 June 2018

9. Local resilience forums (Medium Risk)
Recommendation Implementation date
The councils should have adequate representation at local 
resilience forums for business continuity, and share business 
continuity management information with local responders to 
ensure a co-ordinated and agreed response in the event of an 
incident.  

Immediate

Follow-up observations
Internal audit reviewed the minutes of the following group 
meetings and can confirm that the emergency planning officer 
attends on a regular basis: -
- OAFP - Oxford Area Flood Partnership;
- ORG - Oxford Resilience Group;
- OSFSG - Oxfordshire Strategic Flooding Sub Group;
- Oxfordshire Multi-Agency Risk and Learning Group;
- S&V Joint Agency Flood Partnership;

Implemented

Page 153

Agenda Item 10



- SAG - Safety Advisory Group;
- TVLRF - Thames Valley Local Resilience Forum

10. Co-ordination of plans (Medium Risk)
Recommendation Implementation date
The councils’ crisis management plan, business continuity plans, 
emergency plan and disaster recovery plan should be linked to 
ensure a co-ordinated council response to an incident and to 
facilitate appropriate resources being committed to the response.

30 September 2016

Follow-up observations
Since the risk and insurance officer has been appointed, and 
more recently a dedicated emergency planning officer, officers 
are now moving towards an integrated assurance approach.  A 
framework and draft plans are in place, which are currently being 
reviewed by management prior to final approval.

Partly Implemented
 
Revised Implementation 
date: 31 March 2018

11. Emergency plan (Medium Risk)
Recommendation Implementation date
The emergency plan should be reviewed and updated to ensure 
that it clearly defines the scope, aims and objectives of managing 
an emergency planning response both within the county when 
supporting Oxfordshire County Council and other local 
responders within the district and when the council would be the 
lead response authority.  Accountability, resources, welfare 
requirements and relevant contacts to deliver the response 
should be clearly defined and record maintenance requirements 
documented.

30 September 2016

Follow-up observations
The emergency planning framework has been reviewed and 
documented, which includes defining the councils’ role within a 
wider county/district incident.  A detailed emergency plan has 
been drafted to underpin the framework and is currently being 
reviewed by management prior to final approval.

Partly Implemented
 
Revised Implementation 
date: 31 March 2018

12. Testing arrangements (Medium Risk)
Recommendation Implementation date
The nature and frequency of testing the arrangements for 
business continuity, disaster recovery and emergency planning 
should be agreed by senior management and adhered to.  An 
adequate review process of the tests should be held, with 
documented lessons learnt being shared with all relevant 
officers/external parties.

30 September 2016

Follow-up observations
Full testing and training will be implemented once revised plans 
and strategies are approved.  However, aspects of the councils’ 
emergency response have been tested either in-house or as part 
of county-wide training.

Partly Implemented
 
Revised Implementation 
date: 30 September 2018

13. Disaster recovery plan (Medium Risk)
Recommendation Implementation date
The disaster recovery plan should be reviewed and updated to 
ensure that it clearly defines current DR arrangements, 
accountability, resources, welfare requirements, record 

30 September 2016

Page 154

Agenda Item 10



maintenance requirements and relevant contacts to deliver the 
response.

Follow-up observations
Disaster recovery arrangements now rest with Capita as the IT 
provider and are as set out in the 5 Councils Partnership 
contract.

Implemented

14. Training (Medium Risk)
Recommendation Implementation date
All officers that would be involved in responding strategically to an 
incident should be trained adequately in their response role, and 
updated regularly on any changes to the business continuity, 
disaster recovery and emergency planning arrangements.  

30 September 2016

Follow-up observations
Full testing and training will be implemented once revised plans 
and strategies are approved.  However, aspects of the councils’ 
emergency response have been tested either in-house or as part 
of county-wide training.

Partly Implemented
 
Revised Implementation 
date: 30 September 2018

15. Promotion (Medium Risk)
Recommendation Implementation date
There should be adequate promotion of business continuity, 
disaster recovery and emergency planning arrangements across 
both councils, supported by guidance on officer expectations and 
whom they can contact if they have concerns during an incident.  

30 September 2016

Follow-up observations
Awareness will be raised through training and testing which will 
be implemented once revised plans and strategies are approved.

Partly Implemented
 
Revised Implementation 
date: 30 September 2018

16. Awareness (Medium Risk)
Recommendation Implementation date
A range of methods should be utilised to make information 
available to the public about civil protection matters and the 
council’s arrangements to respond to civil protection incidents.

30 September 2016

Follow-up observations
The council has reviewed and provided information through the 
councils’ websites regarding what to do in an emergency and 
where to obtain further information. Furthermore, the Emergency 
Planning Officer (EPO): 

 attends town and parish forums to disseminate 
information through town and parish councils;

 visits town and parish councils;
 delivers community workshops with partners; and 
 is preparing emergency planning templates and 

handouts.

Implemented

Page 155

Agenda Item 10



17 Tenants, partners and key suppliers (Medium Risk)
Recommendation Implementation date
Arrangements should be in place to ensure that tenants, partners 
and key suppliers are notified and kept up to date at the 
commencement and throughout a council response to an 
incident, and that their own business continuity arrangements are 
up to date and adequate where there are council dependencies 
on their services.

30 September 2016

Follow-up observations
MEPC have created a resilience forum for Milton Park, and the 
first meeting was spring 2017. The 5CP suppliers have business 
continuity plans which have been reviewed by the council as part 
of the contract, and will be subject to ongoing review. Other 
partner business continuity plans are reviewed on a continuous 
basis.  The draft emergency plan includes external 
communication requirements across all service teams, partners 
and suppliers during an incident response. 

Partly Implemented
 
Revised Implementation 
date: 31 March 2018

18. Business and voluntary organisations (Medium Risk)
Recommendation Implementation date
In accordance with the Civil Contingencies Act 2004, the council 
should offer advice and assistance to business and voluntary 
organisations about business continuity management either 
directly or through Oxfordshire County Council.

30 September 2016

Follow-up observations
Workshops have been held with town and parish councils and 
the assurance manager has presented a roadshow to various 
organisations across the country on the business continuity 
management of the Crowmarsh fire. 

Implemented

19. Disaster recovery review (Medium Risk)
Recommendation Implementation date
A response review needs to be undertaken between the councils 
and Adam Continuity (DR contractor) to ensure that lessons 
learnt are fed into the disaster recovery plan review.

31 March 2016

Follow-up observations
Disaster recovery arrangements are now a part of the 5 Councils 
Partnership arrangements and are incorporated within the 5CP 
contract.

No longer applicable as a 
council action.

LESSONS LEARNT

1. CMT availability (Medium Risk)
Lesson learnt Implementation date
All members of the crisis management team should ensure that 
they are contactable at all times to prevent any delays in 
responding to an incident.  

Immediate

Follow-up observations
All members of the initial response crisis management team are 
contactable as outlined in the 'South and Vale out of hours 
workbook' where mobile phone numbers and home numbers can 
be accessed.

Implemented

Page 156

Agenda Item 10



2. Contact details report (Medium Risk)
Lesson learnt Implementation date
a) Ensure that the contact details report from HR Pro captures 

all home telephone numbers and personal mobile numbers 
for officers, and contact details for agency staff and tenants.

b) Review the circulation list to ensure that all core members of 
the crisis management team and heads of service receive the 
emergency contacts report on a monthly basis.

c) Implement a stand-alone text alert system that can be utilised 
during a response to an incident when all council systems are 
down.

31 December 2015

Follow-up observations
Following the move from OpenHR to MyView, a monthly contacts 
list is provided by Capita HR extracted from the MyView HR 
system, which is e-mailed to relevant officers. Contact details for 
agency staff and tenants are held by individual service area 
plans. A range of communication mechanisms have now been 
established, to ensure that communication is not reliant solely on 
council systems.

Implemented
 

3. DR equipment (Medium Risk)
Lesson learnt Implementation date
Ensure that all essential DR equipment is held off-site from the 
main council servers at all times.

Implemented

4. Strategic roles and responsibilities (Medium Risk)
Lesson learnt Implementation date
Strategic roles and responsibilities for the senior management 
board need to be clearly defined and adhered to during an 
incident response.  

30 September 2016

Follow-up observations
Roles and responsibilities have been clearly defined within the 
draft emergency plan, which is currently being reviewed by 
management prior to final approval.  This will be reinforced by 
training and testing.

Partly Implemented
 
Revised Implementation 
date: 31 March 2018

5. Site security and site safety (Medium Risk)
Lesson learnt Implementation date
Ensure that site security and site safety considerations are 
undertaken immediately by the crisis management team to 
incident sites, and the necessary actions implemented. 

30 September 2016

Follow-up observations
All related plans now have an element for site security following 
the lessons learnt from the incident at Crowmarsh. There is 
regular review of this by the risk and insurance officer and 
facilities management.

Implemented

6. Home-working arrangements (Medium Risk)
Lesson learnt Implementation date
An assessment of resourcing and implementing home-working 
arrangements during an incident response to be considered and 

30 September 2016

Page 157

Agenda Item 10



included in the councils’ disaster recovery plan and business 
continuity plans.

Follow-up observations
The councils’ systems now facilitate the ability for home-working 
arrangements, which can be utilised pending business 
requirements.  Following the move to the 5CP working 
arrangements, the IT infrastructure to support this was reviewed 
and laptops, surface pros and mobile phones provided where a 
business need was identified.   New business requests can be 
submitted to Capita for review and resourcing.

Implemented
 

7. Health and safety (Medium Risk)
Lesson learnt Implementation date
Ensure that all health and safety requirements are adequately 
considered during a response to an incident.

30 September 2016

Follow-up observations
Health and safety requirements have been incorporated into the 
draft plans, which are currently under management review prior 
to final approval.  There is ongoing consultation with the councils’ 
health and safety officer.

Partly Implemented
 
Revised Implementation 
date: 31 March 2018

8. Salvage (Medium Risk)
Lesson learnt Implementation date
A client briefing from the salvage contractors and insurers on 
‘what to expect during a salvage process’ would be useful to 
assist in managing staff expectations on what can be salvaged 
from incident sites. 

Immediate

Follow-up observations
A debrief was held on 18 November 2016 with the loss adjusters 
and Zurich insurers, to discuss lessons learnt from the fire and 
salvage operation. 

Implemented

9. Officer expectations (Medium Risk)
Lesson learnt Implementation date
Officer expectations need to be appropriately and consistently 
managed during the initial response to an incident and throughout 
the recovery process.

30 September 2016

Follow-up observations
This has been incorporated into the draft plans, which are 
currently under management review prior to final approval.  This 
will be reinforced through training and testing.

Partly Implemented
 
Revised Implementation 
date: 30 June 2018

10. Financial arrangements (Medium Risk)
Lesson learnt Implementation date
Templates should be established within the crisis management 
plan to assist with forecasting of any expenditure relating to an 
incident.  

30 March 2016

Page 158

Agenda Item 10



Follow-up observations
These have been incorporated into the draft plans, which are 
currently under management review prior to final approval.  

Partly Implemented
 
Revised Implementation 
date: 31 March 2018

11. Critical documents (Medium Risk)
Lesson learnt Implementation date
All critical documents should be electronically scanned and hard 
copies held in a secure environment.  

31 December 2015

Follow-up observations
The council offices now have multifunctional devices which 
incorporate a scanning feature which is utilised by all service 
areas. Critical documents returned to the council following the 
fire are now stored at an offsite secure facility.

Implemented

12. Decisions/actions log (Medium Risk)
Lesson learnt Implementation date
A decisions/actions log should be maintained and reviewed by 
the crisis management team throughout the incident response to 
ensure that response efforts are co-ordinated and aligned to 
agreed response priorities.

30 September 2016

Follow-up observations
This has been incorporated into the draft plans, which are 
currently under management review prior to final approval.  

Partly Implemented
 
Revised Implementation 
date: 31 March 2018

13. Access (Medium Risk)
Lesson learnt Implementation date
All core members of the crisis management team should have 24 
hour access to identified business continuity response locations 
to ensure that they can respond to an incident appropriately 

Immediate

Follow-up observations
All core members of the crisis management team have 
appropriate access to business continuity response locations.

Implemented
 

14. Corporate credit cards (Medium Risk)
Lesson learnt Implementation date
Corporate credit cards should be set up to allow the withdrawal 
of funds. 

Implemented

15. Officer utilisation (Medium Risk)
Lesson learnt Implementation date
Officer utilisation should be monitored and assessed throughout 
a response to an incident to ensure that resources can be 
deployed effectively.

30 September 2016

Follow-up observations
This has been incorporated into the draft plans, which are 
currently under management review prior to final approval.  It will 
be reinforced through the new integrated assurance templates.  

Partly Implemented
 

Page 159

Agenda Item 10



Revised Implementation 
date: 30 June 2018

16. Incident presence (Medium Risk)
Lesson learnt Implementation date
On-site presence at an incident site should be sufficient to direct 
local responders to relevant structural and content 

30 September 2016

Follow-up observations
This has been incorporated into the draft plans, which are 
currently under management review prior to final approval.  

Partly Implemented
 
Revised Implementation 
date: 31 March 2018

Page 160

Agenda Item 10



Appendix 2

 OVERDUE RECOMMENDATIONS IN THIS TABLE ARE THOSE OUTSTANDING BEYOND THE MOST RECENT IMPLEMENTATION DATE

Head of 

Service

Total Number 

of Open Recs

Number of 

Overdue 

Recs

% of Overdue 

Recs

Total Number 

of Open Recs

Number of 

Overdue 

Recs

% of Overdue 

Recs

Total Number 

of Open Recs

Number of 

Overdue 

Recs

% of Overdue 

Recs

Total 

Number of 

Open Recs

Number of 

Overdue 

Recs

Q2 2017/18 

% of 

Overdue 

Recs 

Q3 2017/18 

% of 

Overdue 

Recs 

% Change High Risk 

overdue

Adrianna 
Partridge
(Interim Head of 
Corporate 
Services)

1 1 100% 2 2 100% 66 26 39% 69 29 65% 42% -23% 13

Andrew Down 
(Head of 
Devolution and 
Government)

0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0% 0% 0

Liz Hayden 
(Interim Head of 
Five Councils 
Delivery)

4 3 75% 4 2 50% 70 38 54% 78 43 69% 55% -14% 10

Gerry Brough
(Acting Head of 
Development & 
Housing)

0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 100% 0% -100% 0

William Jacobs
(Head of 
Finance)

7 7 100% 3 3 100% 5 1 20% 15 11 40% 73% 33% 2

Ian Matten
(Interim Head of 
Waste, Leisure, 
parks and 
Environmental 
Health)

0 0 0% 24 24 100% 7 4 57% 31 28 90% 90% 0% 2

Margaret Reed
(Head of Legal 
& Democratic 
Services)

2 2 100% 2 2 100% 6 4 67% 10 8 75% 80% 5% 3

Adrian Duffield
(Head of 
Planning)

0 0 100% 7 7 100% 12 12 100% 19 19 90% 100% 10% 10

14 42 166 222 138 4040 8513

Report Date: 12/01/2018 15:21

Executive summary SODC VWHDC Joint Comparison of Q3 2016/17 and Q4 2016/17

Service Area

Corporate Services

Devolution and Government

Five Councils Delivery

Joint Recs Total

Development and Housing

Finance and Arts (including 
Cornerstone)

Head of Waste, Leisure, Parks and 
Environmental Health

Legal and Democratic

Planning

Total recommendations Q3 2017/18

P
age 161

A
genda Item

 10



5CP OVERDUE RECOMMENDATIONS OUTSTANDING BEYOND THE MOST RECENT IMPLEMENTATION DATE BY CONTRACTOR
SODC VWHDC Joint Total High Risk 

overdue

0 0 1 1 0

0 0 2 2 0

0 0 0 0 0

3 2 35 40 10

3 2 38 43 10

Contractor

Vinci

Arcadis

Indigo

Capita

Total  

P
age 162

A
genda Item

 10



 RECOMMENDATIONS IN THIS TABLE ARE THOSE OUTSTANDING BEYOND THE ORIGINAL IMPLEMENTATION DATE AND  INCLUDE THOSE WITH REVISED DATES AGREED

Head of 

Service

Total Number 

of Open Recs

Number of 

Overdue 

Recs

% of Overdue 

Recs

Total Number 

of Open Recs

Number of 

Overdue 

Recs

% of Overdue 

Recs

Total Number 

of Open Recs

Number of 

Overdue 

Recs

% of Overdue 

Recs

Total 

Number of 

Open Recs

Number of 

Overdue 

Recs

Q2 2017/18 

% of 

Overdue 

Recs 

Q3 2017/18 

% of 

Overdue 

Recs 

% Change High Risk 

overdue

Adrianna 
Partridge
(Interim Head of 
Corporate 
Services)

1 1 100% 2 2 100% 66 27 41% 69 30 92% 43% -49% 14

Andrew Down 
(Head of 
Devolution and 
Government)

0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0% 0% 0

Liz Hayden 
(Interim Head of 
Five Councils 
Delivery)

4 3 75% 4 2 50% 70 38 54% 78 43 83% 55% -28% 10

Gerry Brough
(Acting Head of 
Development & 
Housing)

0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 100% 0% -100% 0

William Jacobs
(Head of 
Finance)

7 7 100% 3 3 100% 5 2 40% 15 12 60% 80% 20% 2

Ian Matten
(Interim Head of 
Waste, Leisure, 
parks and 
Environmental 
Health)

0 0 0% 24 24 100% 7 5 71% 31 29 90% 94% 4% 2

Margaret Reed
(Head of Legal 
& Democratic 
Services)

2 2 100% 2 2 100% 6 4 67% 10 8 100% 80% -20% 3

Adrian Duffield
(Head of 
Planning)

0 0 #DIV/0! 7 7 100% 12 12 100% 19 19 100% 100% 0% 10

14 42 166 222 141 41Total recommendations Q3 2017/18 13 40 88

Service Area

Corporate Services

Devolution and Government

VWHDC

Five Councils Delivery

Development and Housing

Finance and Arts (including 
Cornerstone)

Head of Waste, Leisure, Parks and 
Environmental Health

Legal and Democratic

Executive summary SODC

Planning

Joint Recs Total Joint Comparison of Q3 2016/17 and Q4 2016/17

P
age 163

A
genda Item

 10



Joint recommendations exceeding the original implementation date (Excluding Private)

Rec 

ID

Audit Name Audit 

Year

Head of 

Service

Service 

Manager

Recommenda

tion Name

Risk Rating Implementati

on date

Date of 

Officer 

Update

Recommen

dation 

Status

Revised 

Implementa

tion Date
375 Elections & Election 

Payments
2016/2017 Margaret Reed 

(Head Of Legal 
And Democratic 
Services)

Steven Corrigan 
(Democratic 
Services 
Manager)

Schedule of fees 
check

Medium 16/11/16 30/11/16 Not 
Implemented

28/02/17

376 Elections & Election 
Payments

2016/2017 Margaret Reed 
(Head Of Legal 
And Democratic 
Services)

Steven Corrigan 
(Democratic 
Services 
Manager)

Town/parish 
council invoices

High 16/11/16  Not 
Implemented

28/02/17

378 Elections & Election 
Payments

2016/2017 Margaret Reed 
(Head Of Legal 
And Democratic 
Services)

Steven Corrigan 
(Democratic 
Services 
Manager)

Change of 
circumstances

Low 16/11/16  Not 
Implemented

31/07/17

379 Elections & Election 
Payments

2016/2017 Margaret Reed 
(Head Of Legal 
And Democratic 
Services)

Steven Corrigan 
(Democratic 
Services 
Manager)

Election 
calculation 
spreadsheets

Medium 16/11/16 30/11/16 Not 
Implemented

28/02/17

381 Partnership 
Performance 
Monitoring

2015/2016 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Sally Truman 
(Policy, 
Partnership & 
Engagement 
Manager)

1. Partnership 
guidance

High 30/06/16  Not 
Implemented

30/09/17

Recommendation

A check of the town/parish council¿s schedule of election fees spreadsheet 
should be undertaken prior to the issue of invoices to ensure that the 
town/parish councils are recharged all relevant costs.

Recommendation Update

The recommendation has been implemented into 
the team's processes. Will advise audit when we 
have raised an invoice. 

The calculation spreadsheet should be independently checked, reviewed 
and signed off to confirm that the calculations and apportionment of cost to 
be recharged are accurate.

Recommendation included in procedure notes

 a)The council¿s partnership guidance should be updated, implemented and 
 shared across all council services.

 

 b)The revised partnership guidance should have the following areas added 
 to the guidance:

  i.Introduction which includes framework, purpose and structure
  ii.Benefits and risks of partnership working
  iii.The formal/informal partnership definitions
  iv.Risk assessment procedure of partnerships
  v.Tools for evaluating partnership resource requirements 
  vi.Key council roles and responsibilities
  vii.Governance framework
  viii.Partnership agreement template

  ix.Partnerships checklist 
  x.Risk register template
  xi.Case studies
  xii.Further resources of help
  xiii.Where to go for further information.
 xiv.Information that should be reported regularly to the council¿s nominated 

 partnerships officer.
 

 c)Partnerships that are not in line with the council¿s objective should be 
investigated further to evaluate whether or not the partnership should be 

 discontinued.
 

  d)There should be sufficient evidence to show that the guidance is:
  i.suitably agreed and authorised;
  ii.regularly reviewed and updated by the relevant officer;
  iii.available to all relevant internal and external stakeholders;
 iv.clear in requiring identification of how partnerships can support the 

 council¿s strategic priorities.
 

This is an ongoing action - the principle is 
accepted, and any risks identified will be included 
in the risk register as and when identified.  The 
immediate action to include a general risk on the 
corporate risk register is allocated to the 
Assurance team - I therefore consider this action 
to have been completed.

A reconciliation should be undertaken between the town/parish councils¿ 
schedule of fees and the Agresso system to confirm that the correct amounts 
are invoiced to town/parish councils.

 

A record should be kept to any agreements to exceptional circumstances 
relating to staff working on elections so that checks can be undertaken 
confirming that staff are claiming the appropriate mileage.

 

P
age 164

A
genda Item

 10



382 Partnerships 
performance 
monitoring

2015/2016 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Sally Truman 
(Policy, 
Partnership & 
Engagement 
Manager)

2. Partnerships¿ 
register

High 31/03/16  Not 
Implemented

30/09/17

383 Partnerships 
performance 
monitoring

2015/2016 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Sally Truman 
(Policy, 
Partnership & 
Engagement 
Manager)

3. Public 
awareness of 
partnerships

Low 31/03/16  Not 
Implemented

30/09/17

384 Partnerships 
Performance 
Monitoring

2015/2016 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Sally Truman 
(Policy, 
Partnership & 
Engagement 
Manager)

4. Risk register Medium 30/06/16  Not 
Implemented

30/09/17

393 HR Management 2015/2016 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT & 
Technical 
Services)

3. Authorisation 
of carried forward 
leave

Low 30/06/16 27/06/16 Not 
Implemented

31/03/17

400 HR Recruitment 2015/2016 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Adrianna 
Partridge 
(Assurance 
Manager)

7. Induction 
process

Medium 01/08/16 25/08/17 Not 
Implemented

31/07/17

I am satisfied that partnerships are adequately 
managed by the relevant service teams and that 
this work would not add significant value.  As 
previously discussed this is not a high priority for 
the team given the very limited risk.

 a)Brief and non-sensitive details of the partnerships in which the council 
participates should be published on the council¿s website and kept up to 
date.

Outstanding

HR should only action requests to carry forward annual leave in excess of 5 
days, or the equivalent part time hours, when head of service approval has 
been obtained.

This recommendation has been implemented and 
all staff have been made aware of this 

 requirement. 

Reviews of new starters should be undertaken to ensure that they are 
provided with induction training on the first available session.   

The head of service ¿ HR (Capita) confirmed that 
an email will be sent to line managers reminding 
them to ensure all new starters are booked in on 
the council¿s induction course as soon as 
possible.  The head of service (HR) also noted 
that corporate induction is currently being 
reviewed by Capita as part of the new service 
implementation. Some of the induction will be on 
line as well as face to face. Full service is due to 
be in place at SODC and VWHDC by end of June 

 17.
 

I am satisfied that relevant teams are aware of 
the risks involved and are managing them - I 
understand that the risk framework is being 
relaunched imminently and I will remind HoS of 
the need to consider risks relating to partnerships 
at that time.

 a)The council needs to ensure that the risks relating to partnerships are 
 identified, recorded and reported in the council¿s corporate risk register. 

 

 b)Any changes identified and the reported outcomes needs to be updated 
 to the risk register by the nominated officer as soon as possible.

 

 c)Where an existing partnership appears to be realising risks, the council¿s 
continuing participation should be reviewed, and changed or, if deemed 

 appropriate, ended.

he council should implement a central register of all partnerships that the 
council¿s involved in and make this available to internal and external 

 stakeholders.  
 

 b)The central register should ensure that all partnerships are recorded, 
monitored, updated and controlled sufficiently by an officer assigned as 

 responsible for maintaining the register.
 

  c)The central register should include the following details:
  i.date partnership was added to register,
  ii.name of the partnership,
  iii.type of partnership (formal or informal)
  iv.lead officer,
  v.council service/section,
  vi.number/name of other partners,
  vii.purpose of partnership,
  viii.date of last annual return,

  ix.date partnership ends,
  x.key objectives,
  xi.resource requirements,
  xii.number of meetings per year.

P
age 165

A
genda Item

 10



404 Insurance 2015/2016 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Adrianna 
Partridge 
(Assurance 
Manager)

4. Risk registers High 31/03/17 12/09/17 Partly 
Implemented

31/07/17

407 Insurance 2015/2016 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Adrianna 
Partridge 
(Assurance 
Manager)

7. Working 
procedures

Low 31/12/16 22/06/17 Ongoing (Date 
of 
implementatio
n not yet 
passed)

31/07/17

410 Insurance 2015/2016 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Adrianna 
Partridge 
(Assurance 
Manager)

12. Post incident 
review

High 31/12/16 12/09/17 Partly 
Implemented

31/07/17

412 Insurance 2015/2016 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Adrianna 
Partridge 
(Assurance 
Manager)

14. Review and 
approval

Medium 31/12/16 31/07/17 Ongoing (Date 
of 
implementatio
n not yet 
passed)

31/07/17

413 Insurance 2015/2016 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Adrianna 
Partridge 
(Assurance 
Manager)

15. Reporting Medium 31/12/16 12/09/17 Ongoing (Date 
of 
implementatio
n not yet 
passed)

16/10/17

This has been presented to David Hill and is 
awaiting approval

 a)A formal mechanism to obtain and record approval for decisions should 
 be implemented.

  b)There should be management review of incidents.
 

A management reporting process should be introduced for insurance claims 
including reports on caseloads and status of claims for review.

This has been presented to David Hill and is 
 awaiting approval.

 

No formal approval but we are undertaking this 
with claims reporting to the IA team meetings . 
We will need to agree new claims reporting with 
new interim HOS. Please look on claims 
database in the insurance folder for evidence.

The councils risk registers should be updated and subject to quarterly review 
including evidence of cross reference to insurance cover.

This has been presented to David Hill and is 
 awaiting approval.

 

The risk framework has been endorsed by SMT 
and awaits approval by JAGC on 25 September 
2017.This can be found in the - assurance/ risk 
management folder/policy and guidance and 
strategy sub folders. The risk champions are 
curently collating risk registers and cross 
checking of insurable risk form part of the reviews 
with the risk and insucrane officer. The first forma 
review will take place as part of the risk forum at 
the end of October. 

Working procedures should be reviewed, updated, harmonised, version 
controlled and include requirements for review of claims and liaison with 
insurance companies and all relevant parties.

This has been presented to David Hill and is 
awaiting approval

There should be a formal post incident review to identify any corrective 
measures that may be required and to action this with the relevant service 
area.

This has been presented to David Hill and is 
 awaiting approval.

 

Though we have not had approval we are 
undertaking post incident reviews and updating 
our claims database summary folder on a case by 
case basis. Please refer to claims database 

 claims summary in the insurance folder.
 

The new incident reporting form now have 
detailed risk assessments and post incident 
reviews across the council the health and Safety 
officer works in collaboration with the insurance 
team and service team. Pleass refe to incident 
reports in theprocedures folder/claims/health and 
safety folder in insucranec for more details as 
well as the claims procedures.

P
age 166

A
genda Item

 10



415 Insurance 2015/2016 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Adrianna 
Partridge 
(Assurance 
Manager)

18. Guidance 
documentation

Medium 31/12/16 22/06/17 Ongoing (Date 
of 
implementatio
n not yet 
passed)

13/11/17

424 Review of 
Crowmarsh Fire 
September 2015

2015/2016 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

R7 - Emergency 
finance 
procedures

Medium 31/12/16 15/01/18 Partly 
Implemented

31/03/18

451 Project 
Management

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield 
(Head of 
Planning)

Sandra Wildern 
(Team Leader 
Building Control)

1. Project 
definition

Low 31/07/16 16/06/17 Not 
Implemented

31/07/17

452 Project 
Management

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield 
(Head of 
Planning)

Sandra Wildern 
(Team Leader 
Building Control)

2. Project 
Management 
Toolkit

High 01/04/17 16/06/17 Not 
Implemented

31/07/17

453 Project 
Management

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield 
(Head of 
Planning)

Sandra Wildern 
(Team Leader 
Building Control)

3. Risk 
management

Medium 01/04/17 16/06/17 Not 
Implemented

31/07/17

454 Project 
Management

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield 
(Head of 
Planning)

Sandra Wildern 
(Team Leader 
Building Control)

4. Project register High 31/07/16 16/06/17 Not 
Implemented

31/07/17

455 Project 
Management

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield 
(Head of 
Planning)

Sandra Wildern 
(Team Leader 
Building Control)

5. Authorisation 
of projects

High 31/07/16 16/06/17 Not 
Implemented

31/07/17

456 Project 
Management

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield 
(Head of 
Planning)

Sandra Wildern 
(Team Leader 
Building Control)

6. Review of 
projects

High 31/07/16 16/06/17 Not 
Implemented

31/07/17

457 Project 
Management

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield 
(Head of 
Planning)

Sandra Wildern 
(Team Leader 
Building Control)

7. Project 
documentation

Medium 31/07/16 16/06/17 Not 
Implemented

31/07/17All projects should have completed and comprehensive documentation to 
 support it and to comply with the approved methodology.

 

In discussion with Andrew Down it has been 
agreed that this corporate project has been 
paused for the time being as negotiations 
continue with CAPITA around the use of the 

 Innovation Hub / contract . 

In discussion with Andrew Down it has been 
agreed that this corporate project has been 
paused for the time being as negotiations 
continue with CAPITA around the use of the 

 Innovation Hub / contract . 

A full review and relaunch of the councils¿ project management toolkit 
should be undertaken.

In discussion with Andrew Down it has been 
agreed that this corporate project has been 
paused for the time being as negotiations 
continue with CAPITA around the use of the 

 Innovation Hub / contract . 

A consistent format for recording and evaluating risk, along with identifying 
mitigation actions should be drafted and introduced as part of the project 
management toolkit.

In discussion with Andrew Down it has been 
agreed that this corporate project has been 
paused for the time being as negotiations 
continue with CAPITA around the use of the 

 Innovation Hub / contract . 

A review of the projects register is undertaken immediately, and the correct 
status of project and project managers recorded. Furthermore a system of 
regular reviews be introduced to ensure the currency is retained.

In discussion with Andrew Down it has been 
agreed that this corporate project has been 
paused for the time being as negotiations 
continue with CAPITA around the use of the 

 Innovation Hub / contract . 

All current projects should be reviewed to ensure they have been correctly 
 approved, and obtain retrospective approval if necessary.

 

Furthermore all future projects should be approved in accordance with the 
 methodology.

 Recommendation
All current projects should be reviewed to ensure they are subject to the 

 appropriate scrutiny.
 

Furthermore all future projects should be scrutinised in accordance with the 
 methodology.

 

In discussion with Andrew Down it has been 
agreed that this corporate project has been 
paused for the time being as negotiations 
continue with CAPITA around the use of the 

 Innovation Hub / contract . 

This has been presented to David Hill and is 
 awaiting approval.

 

Start to end guidance/procedures that include relevant timescales and 
 documentation, should be developed for:-

 a)officers dealing with reported incidents, and these should be made 
 available through the intranet.

 b)members of the public, and these should be made available through the 
 councils websites.

 

The draft crisis management plan includes 
emergency finance procedures. This is currently 
under review by management prioor to final 
approval.

Corporate emergency finance procedures that can be implemented 
immediately during a BC incident should be documented and agreed.  They 
should include the authorisation of emergency purchases, security of cash 
and assets, the drawing of funds and use of credit cards and the monitoring 
of expenditure.

A full review of both the projects register and inflight register should be 
undertaken, to ensure the listings are accurate and correct against the 
councils¿ definition of a project.

In discussion with Andrew Down it has been 
agreed that this corporate project has been 
paused for the time being as negotiations 
continue with CAPITA around the use of the 
Innovation Hub / contract . 

P
age 167

A
genda Item

 10



458 Project 
Management

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield 
(Head of 
Planning)

Sandra Wildern 
(Team Leader 
Building Control)

8. Project terms 
of reference

High 31/07/16 16/06/17 Not 
Implemented

31/07/17

459 Project 
Management

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield 
(Head of 
Planning)

Sandra Wildern 
(Team Leader 
Building Control)

9. Project 
compliance with 
methodology

Medium 31/07/16 16/06/17 Not 
Implemented

31/12/17

460 Project 
Management

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield 
(Head of 
Planning)

Sandra Wildern 
(Team Leader 
Building Control)

10. Monitoring 
and reporting

Medium 31/07/16 16/06/17 Not 
Implemented

31/12/17

463 Risk Management 2016/2017 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Adrianna 
Partridge 
(Assurance 
Manager)

1. Risk 
management 
strategy review

High 23/01/17 12/09/17 Partly 
Implemented

02/10/17

 1)Amend the guidance in the toolkit to include the requirement for project 
 boards to have complete ToR, containing the following components.

 

 ¿Introduction ¿ Who has authorised the creation of this Board (the full 
council), confirmation that they have the power to create this board, and 

 whether or not they have the authority to call upon outside expert opinion.
 ¿Membership ¿ This should detail by name and job title all the members, 

 appoint the chair and deputy chair, and who will record the minutes.
 ¿Attendance ¿ What will be the quorum, both in numbers and specific 

 attendees.
 ¿Frequency of meetings ¿ How many meetings per year, or during the life of 

 the project, the timings of them, and frequency.
 ¿Calling of meeting ¿ These should be in accordance with the constitution of 

 the council including notice period, and submission of documents date.
 ¿Remit ¿ Why does the board exist, what are its powers, what decisions can 

 it make/recommend.
 ¿Reporting ¿ What is the timescale for producing the minutes/circulating 

 minutes.
  ¿Limitations of authority ¿ Any restrictions placed upon the project board.

 

 2)Amend the Didcot Leisure Facility ToR to reflect the requirements above 
 and the suspension of the project.

 3)Ensure all projects are reviewed to ensure ToR are in place and are 
 effective and robust for all current project.

 

 

In discussion with Andrew Down it has been 
agreed that this corporate project has been 
paused for the time being as negotiations 
continue with CAPITA around the use of the 

 Innovation Hub / contract . 

In discussion with Andrew Down it has been 
agreed that this corporate project has been 
paused for the time being as negotiations 
continue with CAPITA around the use of the 

 Innovation Hub / contract . 
 

 1)All current projects should be reviewed to ensure they are compliant with 
 the methodology.

 2)A system of regular checks should be introduced to ensure ongoing 
 compliance and reporting thereof.

 1)All current projects should be monitored throughout the project to ensure 
 they are compliant with the methodology.

 2)A system of regular checks should be introduced to ensure ongoing 
 monitoring and reporting is being undertaken.

In discussion with Andrew Down it has been 
agreed that this corporate project has been 
paused for the time being as negotiations 
continue with CAPITA around the use of the 

 Innovation Hub / contract . 

 a)A review of the risk management strategy should be undertaken to 
 ensure that all best practice areas are covered.

 

 b)The risk management strategy should also be version controlled stating:-
 

  ¿the author of the strategy;
  ¿the date the strategy was reviewed;
  ¿the date the strategy was approved and by whom;
  ¿the next review date due.

 

  c)After the risk management strategy is finalised, the strategy should be:-
  ¿approved by the joint audit & governance committee;
 ¿made available to the all staff via the councils¿ intranet site.

The risk management framework has been 
drafted and awaits sign off at senior level within 
the council. Within this framework is draft risk 
management strategy awaiting senior sign off. 
This can be found in the - assurance/ risk 

 management folder/  strategy sub folders.
 

The framework has been endorsed by SMT and 
awaits approval by JAGC on 25 September 
2017.This can be found in the - assurance/ risk 
management folder/policy and guidance and 

 strategy sub folders.
A risk forum will be held in October wiyth all risk 
champions to comnec full roll out of the 
framework.

P
age 168

A
genda Item

 10



464 Risk Management 2016/2017 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Adrianna 
Partridge 
(Assurance 
Manager)

2. Guidance 
notes review

Medium 31/03/17 12/09/17 Partly 
Implemented

18/12/17

466 Risk Management 2016/2017 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Adrianna 
Partridge 
(Assurance 
Manager)

4. Risk 
champions

High 31/03/17 12/09/17 partly 
Implemented

30/06/18

467 Risk Management 2016/2017 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Adrianna 
Partridge 
(Assurance 
Manager)

5. Risk 
management 
reporting

High 23/01/17 30/01/17 Partly 
Implemented

31/07/17

468 Risk Management 2016/2017 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Adrianna 
Partridge 
(Assurance 
Manager)

6. Integrated 
internal audit and 
risk management 
framework

High 31/12/16 30/01/17 Partly 
Implemented

31/07/17

 a)A review of the risk management guidance currently in place should be 
 reviewed and updated.

 

 b)Guidance should be developed on steps of undertaking risk 
assessments on projects, so that project managers can consistently evaluate 
the potential risks and develop strategies to address them to improve the 

 chances of an effective, if not faultless, project.
 

 c)A risk management impact guide should be developed to assist senior 
management and service managers, when identifying new risks and/or 
reviewing existing risks, in establishing the impact the risk has on the 
councils¿ strategic objectives.

The risk management framework has been 
drafted and awaits sign off at senior level within 
the council. Within the frame work there is  draft 
policy and guidance notes together with a risk 
management strategy are awaiting sign off. 
These can be found in the - assurance/ risk 
management folder/policy and guidance and 

 strategy sub folders.
 

The framework has been endorsed by SMT and 
awaits approval by JAGC on 25 September 
2017.This can be found in the - assurance/ risk 
management folder/policy and guidance and 

 strategy sub folders. 
A partial roll out has commenced in certain areas.

 a)Risk champions should be identified within each service area to ensure 
that their operational risk register is regularly reviewed and staff within the 

 service area are made aware of risk.
 

 b)After the risk champions have been identified within each service area, 
the risk champions should be listed on the intranet to ensure all staff are 

 made aware.
 

 c)A risk management working group is developed and should meet on a 
regular basis to discuss risk.  The working group should consist of the risk 
champions from each of the service areas.

The risk management framework has been 
drafted and awaits sign off at senior level within 
the council. This framework outlines the role of 
the risk champion together with a JD, as per the 
audit recommendations. This can be found in the - 
assurance/ risk management folder/policy and 

 guidance and strategy sub folders.
HOS have been briefed and have been asked to 
identify a suitable candidate in their service 

 teams.
Most servcie areas have a risk champion who 
ahs been briefed,they are all in thge process of 
collating service risk registers and will attend the 
fiarts risk forum meeting in October to review risk 
registers. Please refer to risk mgt folder/risk 
forum  or risk register or policy and guidance 
folrders for evidence.

The risk management framework has been 
drafted and awaits sign off at senior level within 
the council. This framework outlines the reporting 
requirements as per the audit recommendations. 
This can be found in the - assurance/ risk 
management folder/policy and guidance and 
strategy sub folders.

The risk management update report sent to audit & governance committee 
should be reviewed and updated to ensure that the committee undertakes its 
role in risk management in line CIPFA¿s audit committee guidance.

The proposed  Integrated Assurance Framework 
facilitates the joint work and integration of IA and 
Risk management. This is still in draft and awaits 

 approval by the senior team.
it can be found in the assurance 
resources/integrated assurance 
function/integrated assurance framework dated 
06/10/2016.Still await sign off by senior team.

The internal audit and risk management functions should assess how they 
can integrate their frameworks, so that greater reliance can be placed on the 
risk management assessments by internal audit, and key risks and control 
weaknesses identified by internal audit can be fed into the risk management 
process.

P
age 169

A
genda Item

 10



469 Risk Management 2016/2017 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Adrianna 
Partridge 
(Assurance 
Manager)

7. Risk register 
template

Low 31/03/17 12/09/17 Partly 
Implemented

11/12/17

472 Risk Management 2016/2017 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Adrianna 
Partridge 
(Assurance 
Manager)

10. Updating of 
risk register

High 31/03/17 12/09/17 Ongoing (Date 
of 
implementatio
n not yet 
passed)

08/01/18The risk management framework has been 
drafted and awaits sign off at senior level within 
the council. This framework outlines the reporting 
requirements as per the audit recommendations. 
This can be found in the - assurance/ risk 
management folder/policy and guidance and 

 strategy sub folders.
 

The framework has been endorsed by SMT and 
awaits approval by JAGC on 25 September 
2017.This can be found in the - assurance/ risk 
management folder/policy and guidance and 

 strategy sub folders.
 

Currently briefing HOS and collecting corporate 
risks to populate a corporate risk register linking 
the risks to the strategic objectives for both 
councils, and evaluating gross risk score prior to 
reviewing with the SMB at the risk management 
board who will agree council risk appetite and 
mitigation actions along with action owners. 
please refer to assurance / risk management 
risks register/corporate for draft copy of the 

 register.
A draft Corporate risk register has been derived 
from meeting HOS an dlinked to the counicls 
strategic objectives. It can be found in risk mgt 
folder/risks register/corporate. It has yet to be 

 reviewed by HOS before going to SMT.
Risk champions have been briefed across servcie 
teams and are collating risk registers for their 
servcec plans and corpoate objectives due for 

The strategic and operational risk registers should be updated to identify 
risks for the latest corporate priorities in corporate plan 2016-2020.

The risk management framework has been 
drafted and awaits sign off at senior level within 
the council. This framework outlines the reporting 
requirements as per the audit recommendations. 
This can be found in the - assurance/ risk 
management folder/policy and guidance and 

 strategy sub folders.
A risk register template can be viewed in the sub 
folder risk templates in the risk management 
folder, this is currently being used by HOS to 
create service area risk registers  and corporately 
for SMB. to review in the corporate risk register 

 sub folder.
 

The framework has been endorsed by SMT and 
awaits approval by JAGC on 25 September 2017. 
However the new risk register is in use across 
service teams and some projects. Please refer to 
risk mgt/risk registers folder.

A review is undertaken on the current risk register template to make it more 
user friendly for staff and members of the councils.

P
age 170

A
genda Item

 10



473 Risk Management 2016/2017 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Adrianna 
Partridge 
(Assurance 
Manager)

11. Regular 
review of risk 
register

High 31/03/17 12/09/17 Ongoing (Date 
of 
implementatio
n not yet 
passed)

11/12/17

474 Risk Management 2016/2017 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Adrianna 
Partridge 
(Assurance 
Manager)

12. Service 
areas¿ work plan

Low 31/03/17 12/09/17 Ongoing (Date 
of 
implementatio
n not yet 
passed)

11/12/17

475 Risk Management 2016/2017 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Adrianna 
Partridge 
(Assurance 
Manager)

13. Risk register 
reporting

Medium 31/03/17 12/09/17 Ongoing (Date 
of 
implementatio
n not yet 
passed)

11/12/17

This has not commenced as it is dependent upon 
the adoption of the Risk Management Policy and 

 Strategy which are in draft for approval.
However work will commence in the New Year to 
house keep the existing risk registers and 
improve access to these registers by each 

 service team.
HOS have all been briefed on compilation of the 
risks registers, new templates have been sent out 
and await draft completion with the help of newly 
appointed risk champions yet to be appointed by 
briefed HOS. Please refer to assurance/risk 
management/promotion  and reporting templates 

 folders for evidence.
 

The framework has been endorsed by SMT and 
awaits approval by JAGC on 25 September 
2017.This can be found in the - assurance/ risk 
management folder/policy and guidance and 

 strategy sub folders.
 

The risk champions for most service teams have 
been appointed and briefed. Risk regsiters are all 
in the process of being revised copies of some of 
them can be found in the risk management 
folder/risk registers. The risk forum in October will 
commence the risk register review process with 
the risk champions.OMG will be briefed on the 
responsibility of managers in this process on the 

 13 September 2017.

A process should be developed and put in place to ensure that SMB and 
service areas review their risk registers on a regular a basis so that they can 
manage any new emerging risks which could potentially prevent the councils 
from achieving their objectives.

The risk management framework has been 
drafted and awaits sign off at senior level within 
the council. This framework outlines the reporting 
requirements as per the audit recommendations. 
This can be found in the - assurance/ risk 
management folder/policy and guidance and 

 strategy sub folders.
The framework has been endorsed by SMT and 
awaits approval by JAGC on 25 September 
2017.This can be found in the - assurance/ risk 
management folder/policy and guidance and 

During the annual update of the service areas¿ work plan, risk management 
should be included as an objective for monitoring purposes.

After the service areas have reviewed their operational risk registers on a 
quarterly basis, the risk registers should be reported to the risk and 
insurance officer.

The risk management strategy and policy and 
guidance is in draft format awaits sign off at 
senior level. The risk registers for each service 
area are out of date and require updates. In the 
meantime,the risk and insurance officer has 
briefed all HOS with the new approach to risk 
reporting and has requested that all HOS identify 
a suitable risk champion to help facilitate the 
service team risks. HOS are currently identifying 
risks associated within their areas to add to a new 
draft risks register, new templates have been 
provided. The HOS briefing can be found in the 
assurance/risk management/ promotion/HOS 
briefing. The template risk registers can be found 

 in risk management/reporting templates.
The framework has been endorsed by SMT and 
awaits approval by JAGC on 25 September 
2017.A risk forum will take place in October with 
all risk champions to look at the porcess of risk 
regoister review , updates nad reporting.

P
age 171

A
genda Item

 10



476 Risk Management 2016/2017 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Adrianna 
Partridge 
(Assurance 
Manager)

14. Risk 
management 
reporting

Medium 23/01/17 12/09/17 Ongoing (Date 
of 
implementatio
n not yet 
passed)

25/09/17

481 Safeguarding 
children, young 
people & vulnerable 
adults

2016/2017 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Sally Truman 
(Policy, 
Partnership & 
Engagement 
Manager)

Risk Register Low 31/08/16  Not 
Implemented

31/07/17

483 Safeguarding 
children, young 
people & vulnerable 
adults

2016/2017 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Sally Truman 
(Policy, 
Partnership & 
Engagement 
Manager)

Procurement 
guidelines

Medium 31/08/16  Not 
Implemented

31/08/17

484 Training & 
Development

2016/2017 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Liz Hayden 
(Legal, Licensing 
And Community 
Safety Manager)

1. Repayment of 
fees

High 31/10/16 14/06/17 Not 
Implemented

30/06/17

516 Building Control 2016/2017 Adrian Duffield 
(Head of 
Planning)

Sandra Wildern 
(Team Leader 
Building Control)

Personal 
protective 
equipment risk 
assessment

High 31/01/17 16/06/17 Not 
Implemented

31/07/17

517 Building Control 2016/2017 Adrian Duffield 
(Head of 
Planning)

Sandra Wildern 
(Team Leader 
Building Control)

Customer 
feedback

High 30/04/17 16/06/17 Not 
Implemented

16/06/17

535 Treasury 
Management

2016/2017 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT & 
Technical 
Services)

3. Roles and 
responsibilities

High 30/09/17    

The risk management framework has been 
drafted and awaits sign off at senior level within 
the council. This framework outlines the reporting 
requirements as per the audit recommendations. 
This can be found in the - assurance/ risk 
management folder/policy and guidance and 

 strategy sub folders.
 

The framework has been endorsed by SMT and 
awaits approval by JAGC on 25 September 
2017.This can be found in the - assurance/ risk 
management folder/policy and guidance and 

 strategy sub folders.

Both the strategic management board and the joint audit & governance 
committee should be updated on a bi-annual basis regarding risk 
management.

Procedures relating to procurement should be updated to include 
safeguarding to ensure that prior to offering a contract to a service 
provider/supplier sufficient safeguarding checks are undertaken, if 
applicable, in order to safeguard children and vulnerable adults.

Work ongoing 

If leavers cannot repay the outstanding fees from their final salary, the leaver 
should be made a debtor and an invoice should be raised and issued to 
ensure that the outstanding amount is repaid to the councils and subject to 
recovery processes.

From second review May 2017, the 
recommendation has not been implemented and 
a revised date was agreed. Comments added by 
Sandy Bayley on behalf of Nilesh Parmar

A personal protective equipment risk assessment form should be completed 
to ensure that the surveyors have the appropriate equipment for all types of 
situations when undertaking on-site inspections, and is reviewed on an 
annual basis.

Sandra Wildern, Duncan Grainge and Sarah 
Minns to meet w/c 19/06/17 to draft a Building 
Control specific risk assessment around all 
aspects of the specific risks the team may 

   encounter and PPE requirements. 

Customer Engagement Officer (CEO) posts now 
in place. New corporate consultation system has 
been procured. CEO to work with Sandra Wildern 
to develop a customer feedback questionnaire to 
gain customer insight and aid service 

   improvement.
  

The process of issuing customer feedback forms should be started up again 
to ascertain from the customer how satisfied they are with the service 
provided.  The privacy notice should also be included onto the feedback, if 
obtaining personal information, i.e. sex, race, etc.

Roles and responsibilities for treasury management functions, including 
producing policies and reporting on contractor performance, should be 
clearly defined and include details of how the 5 councils partnership client 
team interface with the councils¿ section 151 officer.

 

The councils¿ responsibility for having regard to safeguarding while 
discharging functions should be recorded within the councils¿ risk register.

This is an ongoing action - the principle is 
accepted, and any risks identified will be included 
in the risk register as and when identified.  The 
immediate action to include a general risk on the 
corporate risk register is allocated to the 
Assurance team - I therefore consider this action 
to have been completed.

P
age 172

A
genda Item

 10



537 CSP Procurement 2016/2017 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Liz Hayden 
(Legal, Licensing 
And Community 
Safety Manager)

2. Project 
documentation

Medium 31/07/17    

538 Creditor Payments 2016/2017 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Ben Watson 
(Finance & 
Systems 
Manager)

1. Invoice 
payments

Low 31/03/17 16/06/17 Partly 
Implemented

31/12/17

540 Creditor Payments 2016/2017 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Ben Watson 
(Finance & 
Systems 
Manager)

6. Duplicate 
invoices - 
received twice

High 30/06/17    

541 Creditor Payments 2016/2017 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Ben Watson 
(Finance & 
Systems 
Manager)

8. Duplicate 
suppliers

High 31/03/17 16/06/17 Partly 
Implemented

31/12/17

542 Creditor Payments 2016/2017 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Ben Watson 
(Finance & 
Systems 
Manager)

9. Payment 
vouchers

Medium 30/04/17 16/06/17 Partly 
Implemented

31/12/17

543 Creditor Payments 2016/2017 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Ben Watson 
(Finance & 
Systems 
Manager)

10. Sundry 
supplier account 
usage

Medium 30/04/17 16/06/17 Partly 
Implemented

31/12/17

544 General Ledger 2016/2017 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Ben Watson 
(Finance & 
Systems 
Manager)

Bank 
Reconciliations

Low 30/04/17 16/06/17 Partly 
Implemented

30/09/17

545 General Ledger 2016/2017 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Ben Watson 
(Finance & 
Systems 
Manager)

Leavers' 
notification

Medium 31/07/17    

 An email should be sent to service areas reminding them to:-
  ¿check to confirm if the supplier already exists on the Agresso system, and
 ¿determine if the supplier will be used again, if so, to complete the new 

 supplier form so they can be set up onto the Agresso system,
 prior to raising a payment voucher on the sundry suppliers account.

 

The implementation date was reliant on the new 
Integra financial management system being 
rolled out.  This has been delayed so there is now 

   a revised implementation date

A clear audit trail should be in place of the timely performance and review of 
all reconciliations.

Evidence of reconciliation spreadsheet shown to 
internal audit.  The spreadsheet now shows who 
has performed the reconciliation and the date it 
has been undertaken. Simon Hewings has 
confirmed that he checks this at the monthly bank 
rec stage although this is not recorded in the 
spreadsheet.  A column will be added to the 
spreadsheet replicating what is done by the 

 person conducting the reconciliation.
 

Revised implementation date to check that this is 
now being undertaken.  Updated by FK 16.06.17

 a)A decision should be made on who is responsible in notifying the system 
administrators for FMS when members of staff with user access leaves the 

 councils.
 

 b)The system administrators for FMS should be notified when members of 
staff leave the council, so that their access is deleted off the system.

 

All relevant documentation for procurement projects should be retained, 
 including:-

 ¿project meeting minutes which are to be agreed at the next meeting and 
 included as an agenda item

  ¿all supporting evaluation records.

 

A notification should be sent to service areas to ensure that invoices are paid 
 promptly, which states:-

  ¿they remind their suppliers to send all invoices to Darlington; and
  ¿they review and approve all invoices efficiently.

The implementation date was reliant on the new 
Integra financial management system being 
rolled out.  This has been delayed so there is now 

   a revised implementation date

 a)A review should be undertaken of duplicate invoices and for any 
duplicate payments made, a refund should be requested to recoup the 

 payment as soon as possible.
 b)Regular reviews of duplicate invoices should be undertaken to prevent 

 duplicate payments from occurring.

 

Regular reviews should be undertaken on the supplier master file to ensure 
that possible duplicate suppliers are reviewed and if necessary, closed on 

 the Agresso system.

The implementation date was reliant on the new 
Integra financial management system being 
rolled out.  This has been delayed so there is now 

   a revised implementation date

Payment vouchers received to make payment through the sundry supplier 
 account should be reviewed and challenged prior to payment.

The implementation date was reliant on the new 
Integra financial management system being 
rolled out.  This has been delayed so there is now 

   a revised implementation date

P
age 173

A
genda Item

 10



546 General Ledger 2016/2017 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Ben Watson 
(Finance & 
Systems 
Manager)

User access data 
cleansing

Low 31/05/17 30/05/17 Not 
Implemented

01/08/17

548 Housing Benefit and 
Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme

2016/2017 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Paul Howden 
(Revenues & 
Benefits Client 
Manager)

2. Overpayment 
write offs

Low 30/09/17    

551 Council Tax 2016/2017 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Paul Howden 
(Revenues & 
Benefits Client 
Manager)

Discount annual 
review

Low 01/07/17    

552 Capital 
Management & 
Accounting

2016/2017 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Peter Beer 
(Strategic 
Property Team 
Leader)

1. Asset 
management 
plans

Low 01/09/17    

553 Capital 
Management & 
Accounting

2016/2017 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Peter Beer 
(Strategic 
Property Team 
Leader)

2. Concerto land 
and property 
details

Medium 01/09/17    

554 Capital 
Management & 
Accounting

2016/2017 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT & 
Technical 
Services)

3. Concerto 
system users - 
leavers

Low 30/06/17    

555 Capital 
Management & 
Accounting

2016/2017 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT & 
Technical 
Services)

4 Capital financial 
strategy

Medium 30/09/17    

562 Payroll 2016/2017 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT & 
Technical 
Services)

2a. Capita payroll 
procedures

Medium 30/06/17    

563 Payroll 2016/2017 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT & 
Technical 
Services)

2b. Capita payroll 
procedures

Medium 30/06/17    

564 Payroll 2016/2017 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT & 
Technical 
Services)

3. Agency staff 
contract 
management ¿ 
(Hays Specialist 
Recruitment Ltd)

High 31/10/17    

 2a)The payroll process reference document should be updated and also 
clarify the role of the council, Five Council Partnership (5CP) client and 

 contractors.
 

 

 2b)Capita¿s payroll handbooks should be updated to reflect changes 
resulting from the 5CP.

 

A decision must be made in regards to who is responsible for the 
management and the proactive oversight of the Hays Specialist Recruitment 
ltd contract.  This must include quarterly meetings with both parties to ensure 
that there is adequate monitoring of key performance indicators, 
performance against budgets, compatibility with council priorities and 
delivery of services (i.e. issues log).

 

Annual reviews for properties with discounts and exemptions awarded 
should be performed to ensure they are still valid.

 

 Up to date asset management plans should be in place which:-
  a)Are line with CIPFA guidance;
  b)Are subject to regular review;
  c)Are clearly dated and approved;
  d)Are publicly available;
  e)Include roles and responsibilities for asset management.

 

All of the land and property data required by the Local Government 
Transparency Code 2015 should be added to the Arcadis¿ property register 

 and published in a timely manner annually.
 

 

The system administrator for the current property and asset systems used for 
council purposes should be added to the leavers list sent out by HR to 
ensure that any Concerto system users who have left the council are 

 removed from the system as soon as possible. 
 

 

Both councils should re-introduce a Capital Finance Strategy which includes 
requirements for scheme appraisals, monitoring, evaluation and resources in 

 addition to capital funding and investment approach.
 

 

A cleansing exercise of users to the Agresso system should be undertaken 
and active users that have either left the councils or no longer require access 
should be deleted prior to transferring and setting up the users onto the new 
Integra system.

The cleansing exercise has been put on hold, as 
no date has been set on changing FMS from the 
Agresso system to the Integra system.

All write offs should be completed and electronically saved to the shared 
directory as soon as possible after the write off is complete.

 

P
age 174

A
genda Item

 10



565 Payroll 2016/2017 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT & 
Technical 
Services)

4a.  User access - 
payroll system

Low 31/03/17    

566 Payroll 2016/2017 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT & 
Technical 
Services)

4b.  User access - 
payroll system

Low 31/03/17    

567 Payroll 2016/2017 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT & 
Technical 
Services)

5. HR checks ¿ 
starters 

High 31/03/17    

569 Payroll 2016/2017 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT & 
Technical 
Services)

6b. HR/Payroll 
checks ¿ leavers

High 31/03/17    

570 Payroll 2016/2017 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT & 
Technical 
Services)

6c. HR/Payroll 
checks ¿ leavers

High 31/03/17    

571 Payroll 2016/2017 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT & 
Technical 
Services)

7. HR - 
Amendments to 
pay details

Medium 31/03/17    

572 Payroll 2016/2017 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT & 
Technical 
Services)

8a. Overtime 
payments

Medium 30/04/17    

573 Payroll 2016/2017 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Liz Hayden 
(Legal, Licensing 
And Community 
Safety Manager)

8b. Overtime 
payments

Medium 30/04/17    

575 Payroll 2016/2017 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Adrianna 
Partridge 
(Assurance 
Manager)

10. Roles and 
responsibilities

High 31/10/17 12/09/17 Ongoing (Date 
of 
implementatio
n not yet 
passed)

 

576 Payroll 2016/2017 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT & 
Technical 
Services)

11. 
Establishment 
listing 
reconciliation

Low 30/04/17    

 8b)A reminder must be sent to line managers to ensure that all overtime 
 claims:-

 ¿are completed on the council¿s current claim form which allows recording 
 of breaks;

 ¿have been checked and signed as authorised prior to being sent to Capita 
 for processing.

 

 

A review of the current council resources should be undertaken to ensure 
there is sufficient knowledge of SODC and VWHDC HR/payroll services 
requirements and employee environment.

We are currently recruiting for a strategic HR 
Business partner and an HR administrator and 
intervews are set for the week commencing 25 
September 2017. 

Discrepancies found from the reconciliation between the establishment list 
and the payroll system should be dealt with completely and efficiently to 
ensure that records held by both Capita HR and Capita payroll are accurate.

 

All starter processes should comply with the council¿s agreed policies and 
 procedures i.e.-

 a)A request to recruit form should be completed, approved and retained in 
 the personnel files prior to the vacancy being advertised for recruitment,

and the following documentary evidence should be obtained and held within 
 the personnel records:-

  b)Two references.
  c)Proof of identification. 
  d)Proof of qualifications.
  e)A signed contract of employment.

 

 

 6b)In addition, HR should ensure that all final pay calculations are checked 
and paid out correctly to the leaver.

 

 6c)All leaver processes should comply with the council¿s agreed policies 
and procedures i.e. all leaver records within the personnel files and HR 
system should be complete and documentary evidence is retained. 

 

HR must inform officers of amendments made to their pay to ensure they are 
aware of and are in agreement with the changes being processed.

 

 8a)Capita must ensure that all payments processed in the payroll system 
are checked robustly, including verification that claims are signed as 
authorised.

 4a)All leavers and inactive user accounts should be deactivated or 
removed from the payroll system as soon as possible.

 

 4b)A regular pro-active review of users on the payroll system should be 
undertaken to ensure all officers still require access.

 

P
age 175

A
genda Item

 10



583 Environmental 
Protection

2016/2017 Ian Matten 
(Interim Head of 
Waste, Leisure, 
Parks and 
Environmental 
Health)

Paul Holland 
(Environmental 
Protection 
Manager)

6. DFG customer 
satisfaction 
survey records

Low 01/09/17 12/01/18 Partly 
Implemented

31/03/18

586 Environmental 
Protection

2016/2017 Ian Matten 
(Interim Head of 
Waste, Leisure, 
Parks and 
Environmental 
Health)

Paul Holland 
(Environmental 
Protection 
Manager)

8a. Total Pest 
Control (TPC) 
contract

High 31/07/17 07/11/17 Implemented  

587 Environmental 
Protection

2016/2017 Ian Matten 
(Interim Head of 
Waste, Leisure, 
Parks and 
Environmental 
Health)

Paul Holland 
(Environmental 
Protection 
Manager)

8b. Total Pest 
Control (TPC) 
contract

High 31/07/17 07/11/17 Implemented  

609 HR Recruitment 
(Second Audit)

2015/2016 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Liz Hayden 
(Legal, Licensing 
And Community 
Safety Manager)

8. Pre-
employment 
checks (Post 1 
October 2016)

High 31/07/17    

610 HR Recruitment 
(Second Audit)

2015/2016 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Liz Hayden 
(Legal, Licensing 
And Community 
Safety Manager)

9. Service area 
recruitment 
procedure (Post 
1 October 2016)

High 30/04/17    

612 Training and 
development

2016/2017 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT & 
Technical 
Services)

2. written 
procedures

High 30/06/17    

613 Training and 
development

2016/2017 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Liz Hayden 
(Legal, Licensing 
And Community 
Safety Manager)

3. Approval of 
training

Medium 30/06/17    

652 Licensing 2017/2018 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Liz Hayden 
(Legal, Licensing 
And Community 
Safety Manager)

1a. Policies and 
Procedures

Low 30/09/17    

653 Licensing 2017/2018 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Liz Hayden 
(Legal, Licensing 
And Community 
Safety Manager)

1c. Policies and 
Procedures

Low 31/08/17    

A process should be in place to ensure that prior to the policy and 
partnerships team raising a training purchase order, checks are undertaken 
to ensure that the training is approved on OpenHR, and recorded on the 
training record accordingly.

 

 

 1a)The sexual entertainment venue licensing policy should be reviewed 
and approved by council members in accordance with agreed timescales

 

  1c)A review of the licensing policies should be undertaken to ensure that 
they reflect the Milton Park address and contact details.

 8a)The final signed contract should be obtained and retained within legal 
as soon as possible.

Signed contract obtained by Paul Holland

 8b)The TPC contract should be added to the council¿s contract register 
published on the council¿s website.

Paul Holland has obtained a signed copy of the 
contract.

HR should review the pre-employment checks process to ensure that all 
officers are given the appropriate checks required for their jobs as soon as 
possible.  

 

 All permanent and fixed term contract staff positions should be supported by 
a completed request to recruit form with sufficient evidence to show that the 
councils¿ HR recruitment and selection procedures have been completed

Written procedures should be developed providing step-by-step guidance of 
what Capita HR should be undertaking when receiving a leavers¿ 
notification form, so that course fees are recouped from leavers that have 
completed a professional qualification within two years of leaving.

This feedback is now regularly being updated.  
Issue was caused by a long term vacancy which 
has now been filled.

Feedback received from clients should be recorded and kept up to date in 
the DFG files, with reports of the responses being sent to the relevant 
officers and councillors

P
age 176

A
genda Item

 10



655 Licensing 2017/2018 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Liz Hayden 
(Legal, Licensing 
And Community 
Safety Manager)

1e. Policies and 
Procedures

Low 31/08/17    

656 Licensing 2017/2018 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Liz Hayden 
(Legal, Licensing 
And Community 
Safety Manager)

2a. Licence 
application 
records

Low 30/09/17    

657 Licensing 2017/2018 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Liz Hayden 
(Legal, Licensing 
And Community 
Safety Manager)

2b. Licence 
application 
records

Low 31/08/17    

658 Licensing 2017/2018 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Liz Hayden 
(Legal, Licensing 
And Community 
Safety Manager)

3a. Licence 
Registers

Medium 31/08/17    

659 Licensing 2017/2018 Clare Kingston 
(Head Of 
Corporate 
Strategy)

Paul Holland 
(Environmental 
Protection 
Manager)

1b. Policies and 
Procedures

Low 30/09/17 07/11/17 Partly 
Implemented

 

660 Licensing 2017/2018 Clare Kingston 
(Head Of 
Corporate 
Strategy)

Paul Holland 
(Environmental 
Protection 
Manager)

3b. Licence 
Registers

Medium 31/08/17 07/11/17 Implemented  

693 Credit Card Usage 2017/2018 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Simon Hewings 
(Chief 
Accountant)

9. Appropriate 
use of credit card

Medium 31/12/17    A reminder should be sent to credit card holders to ensure that purchases 
are made in accordance with the council¿s credit card guidance, i.e. cards 
are only used in exceptional circumstances where the usual procedure of 
raising an order and processing the invoice via accounts payable is not 

 feasible.
 

 

 

 1e)A procedure note for refunds should be documented by the licensing 
team and reflect any changes that took place when the 5CP was 
implemented.

 

 2a)Records should be kept to evidence that all checks and relevant 
licensing procedures have been undertaken in line with legislation and full 
payment has been received prior to issuing the licence.

 

 2b)Officers should be reminded to ensure appropriate evidence is retained 
showing segregation of duties are in place between the officer processing 
the licences and the officer approving and issuing the licences.

 

3a) All issued licences should be entered on the respective council¿s 
website in line with the Licences Act 2003 requirements.

 

 1b)The environmental health and licensing enforcement policy should be 
allocated to an appropriate policy owner, reviewed by the policy owner and 
approved by the council members in accordance with agreed timescales.

Enforcement Policy is now going to be reviewed 
by EH.  Scheduled for April 2018

 3b)All issued licences should be entered on the respective council¿s website 
in line with the Licences Act 2003 requirements.

This has been rectified and they can all be 
viewed online

P
age 177

A
genda Item

 10



SODC recommendations exceeding the original implementation date (Excluding Private)

Rec 

ID

Audit Name Audit 

Year

Head of 

Service

Service 

Manager

Recommenda

tion Name

Risk Rating Implementati

on date

Date of 

Officer 

Update

Recommen

dation 

Status

Revised 

Implementa

tion Date
15 Anti-Fraud and 

Corruption 
Arrangements

2014/2015 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Adrianna 
Partridge 
(Assurance 
Manager)

4. Money 
Laundering 

 Response Plan

Medium 31/03/15 26/10/16 Partly 
Implemented

31/07/17

16 Anti-Fraud and 
Corruption 
Arrangements

2014/2015 Margaret Reed 
(Head Of Legal 
And Democratic 
Services)

Steven Corrigan 
(Democratic 
Services 
Manager)

5. Awareness of 
anti-fraud and 
corruption 
arrangements 
and training 
modules.

High 30/11/14 16/06/17 Partly 
Implemented

31/07/17

18 Anti-fraud and 
Corruption 
Arrangements

2014/2015 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Adrianna 
Partridge 
(Assurance 
Manager)

5. Awareness of 
anti-fraud and 
corruption 
arrangements 
and training 
modules.

High 30/06/15 10/01/17 Partly 
Implemented

31/07/17

a) The council needs to ensure that there is sufficient visibility (i.e. 
posters/leaflets/bulletins) across all council buildings informing staff of the 
anti-fraud and corruption culture throughout the workplace.  

Campaign has been done and approval received 
from relevant officers.  Now awaiting Chief 
Executive's approval. 16.06.17 Updated by FK on 
behalf of AP.

b) An anti-fraud and corruption/money laundering training session should be 
developed and made available to councillors/officers, with appropriate 
officers identified for mandatory training.

The ML action plan identifies this needs to be 
implemented.  Due to a current lack of resources, 
the target date has been set for the end of June 

 2016 (revised implementation date: 31 Dec 15)
 

HR has implemented the recommendation by 
adding this section to the freedom of information 
and data protection training. (implemented) 

 (updated 10.06.15)
 

Corporate strategy have included anti-fraud and 
corruption training for councillors (i.e. new and re-
elected councillors) in 2015/2016. This training 
has been included in the councillor development 

 programme. (implemented) (updated 10.06.15)
 

Due to resources, the recommendation has not 
been undertaken.  The recommendation has now 
been allocated to the audit team to undertaken by 
the end of July 2017. 10.1.17 Updated by FK

A comprehensive money laundering response plan needs to be implemented 
by the S151 officer and published to all staff and council members.

Recommendation

A review of the AMLP has been undertaken and 
an action plan is in place for updating the AMLP 
which is in progress with the final action, training, 
to be delivered by 31/7/2017. Therefore a revised 
implementation date has been added.

Recommendation Update

P
age 178

A
genda Item

 10



20 Anti-fraud and 
Corruption 
Arrangements

2014/2015 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Adrianna 
Partridge 
(Assurance 
Manager)

6. Standard 
investigations 
files

Medium 31/03/15 16/06/17 Partly 
Implemented

31/07/17

24 Petty Cash 2014/2015 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Ben Watson 
(Finance & 
Systems 
Manager)

5. Petty Cash 
Replenishment 
Process

Medium 31/01/15 17/06/16 Not 
Implemented

31/07/16

55 Inter-council 
Recharges

2013/2014 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Ben Watson 
(Finance & 
Systems 
Manager)

1. Policies and 
procedures

High 31/03/14 08/06/15 Not 
Implemented

31/10/15

57 RIPA 2013/2014 Margaret Reed 
(Head Of Legal 
And Democratic 
Services)

Liz Hayden 
(Legal, Licensing 
And Community 
Safety Manager)

1. RIPA policy 
and procedure

Low 30/04/14 07/01/16 Ongoing (Date 
of 
implementatio
n not yet 
passed)

31/12/17The RIPA policy and procedure should be updated to reflect current 
 legislation and consideration should be given to including:-

 a)A requirement for members' review of RIPA activities and approval of the 
 policy as per the revised code of practice. 

  b)Reference to the use of the NAFN.
 and,

  c)Making the document available on the council's intranet.

Policy to be revised by 31 March 2016 and 
training to take place by end quarter two 
2016/2017

A standard approach for compiling investigation files and collating and 
documenting evidence should be implemented.

"Internal audit identified that this recommendation 
has not been implemented by the responsible 
officers. A new implementation date has been put 

 in place.
 

Due to resources, the recommendation has not 
been undertaken.  The recommendation has now 
been allocated to the audit team to undertaken by 

 the end of August 2016. "
 Added by FK 16/6/16

 

Due to resources, the recommendation has not 
been undertaken.  The recommendation has now 
been allocated to the audit team (Nilesh Parmar) 

 to undertaken by the end of March 2017. "
 Added by FK 10/1/17

 

Currently at draft stage. Will be completed by end 
of July 2017.  Added by FK 16/6/17

The request to replenish petty cash should be processed within creditors 
using a separate control account requiring a single coding and routing to an 
agreed officer for authorisation. Journal transfers would then be needed to 
code expenditure to the appropriate departments. 

Not a priority at present.  revised implementation 
 date changed to July 2016 

FK Update 17/6/16

(a) Establish policy and procedures on when joint purchases is allowed and 
 what inter-council recharges should then be made.

(b) Incorporate good practice guides in recharges guidance (e.g. use of time 
 allocation sheets).

(c) Incorporate a section on key issues in recharges guidance (e.g. 
 transferring items, low value purchases).

This is now being reviewed following the move to 
one office.  This will be implemented prior to the 
2015/16 budget setting process.  This will be 

 completed by 31 October 2014.
 

Update (8/6/15)  Due to staffing issues and the 
recent fire, the accountancy team have been 
divereted to other priorities and this remains an 
aspiration.  I would still not regard this as high 

 risk.

P
age 179

A
genda Item

 10



65 Community Loans 
Scheme

2013/2014 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

2. Roles and 
responsibilities

Medium 30/09/13 10/01/17 Not 
Implemented

29/12/17

197 Receipt of Income 
Arrangements

2015/2016 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Paul Howden 
(Revenues & 
Benefits Client 
Manager)

Receipt of 
Income 
Procedures

Medium 30/09/15 13/01/17 Not 
Implemented

 

254 Consultations 
(public and staff)

2015/2016 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Sally Truman 
(Policy, 
Partnership & 
Engagement 
Manager)

2a) Assessment 
of financial costs

Medium 30/04/16 23/09/16 Partly 
Implemented

28/04/17

(a) Document the end to end process (including roles and responsibilities) 
 for the administration and approval of loans.

 

(b) If there is a possibility of the 12 week turnaround time not being met in 
the processing of applications  received, there should be a reassignment of 

 roles and responsibility for:
  a)monitoring loan repayments
  b)reconciling general ledger records to loan agreements.

 

Confirmed with the Head of Finance that there 
has only been one application to date and it was 
his opinion that at the present there is no need to 
update the procedure notes.  Should applications 
increase consideration will be given to review the 

 procedure notes.
 

As at 12 January 2015 no further applications 
 have been received.

 

As at 10 June 2015 no further applications have 
 been received.

 

As at 16 June 2016 no further applications have 
 been received

 

As at 10 January 2017 no further applications 
have been received

Clear procedures for all areas of the council regarding the receiving of 
income, including unallocated income, need to be developed, approved, 
regularly reviewed, monitored, and evidenced with a named individual or role 
responsible for procedures in each service area and for updating intranet 
guidance.

Still agreed but will not be concluded by due date - 
 competing priorities

 

13 Jan 2017. This will now need to be closed 
down (or at the very least postponed) as a 
consequence of the 5 Councils contract.  Capita 
will be changing both the financial management 
and cash receipting systems and we will have 
Vinci as well as retained service areas (and 
Capita) responsible for the collection of income. 
At the time of writing this, Capita and Vinci are in 
dialogue over the arrangements for billing and 
collecting from mobile home parks, HAW and 
property.  I would therefore suggest that this 
recommendation is closed down and a further 
audit review is taken when all these changes are 
completed. In fact, due the risks these changes 
bring, I would suggest that Audit takes an active 
involvement in the change processes.  

 a)The evaluation process should include an assessment to determine the 
actual cost of the consultation, both directly and indirectly.  The proportion of 
the cost in relation to the service area should also be identified.  The cost 
should be compared to similar exercises within the council or similar local 
authorities.  These areas are considered good practice and they should be 
incorporated into a financial cost evaluation undertaken by the council.

The corporate consultation officer provided 
internal audit with a spreadsheet that was created 
to assist, monitor and track the approximate costs 
of corporate consultations undertaken (i.e. direct 
and indirect costs).  At the time of the follow up, 
internal audit can confirm that this is still work in 
progress and will be presented annually to the 
relevant director and cabinet member when 

 completed.  
 

Updated by Fiona Kaluza

P
age 180

A
genda Item

 10



527  Cornerstone
 

2016/2017 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Darren Walter 
(Arts Centre 
Director)

2. Roles and 
Responsibilities ¿ 
job descriptions

Medium 31/01/17 25/08/17 Partly 
Implemented

31/12/17

531 Cornerstone 2016/2017 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Darren Walter 
(Arts Centre 
Director)

4c. Petty Cash - 
Cornerstone

Medium 31/01/17 09/08/17 Not 
Implemented

31/08/17

532 Cornerstone 2016/2017 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Darren Walter 
(Arts Centre 
Director)

4d. Petty Cash - 
Cornerstone

Medium 31/01/17 29/08/17 Implemented 31/08/17

4c) Petty cash should be replenishments to the value of Cornerstone¿s 
agreed petty cash float (i.e. to £150)  

 4c)Internal audit identified that petty cash was 
still being replenished by £150 instead of the 
difference required to keep the petty cash float to 

 £150. Not implemented.
 

 4d)Senior management need to perform a random spot check review of the 
petty cash kept at Cornerstone at least once a year to ensure that the claims 
are appropriate, suitably documented and authorised and that the petty cash 
is being used for the intended purpose. 

 d)The admin assistant performs the 
reconciliations and these are checked by the 
team administrator.  Internal audit noted that no 
checks had been performed by the senior 
management/budget holder as prescribed in the 

 recommendation. Not implemented.
 

Checks were made by the Director and 
Accountants within Finance as part of year end 
paperwork submission.

The arts manager and the operations manager job descriptions need to be 
updated to reflect the new roles and responsibilities due to the recent 
changes in Cornerstone¿s functions.

At the time of the follow up, it was noted that an 
external review of Cornerstone's operations was 
completed in February 2017.  The review 
included recommendations for future staffing 
structures to ensure that the venue was robust 
and resourced in the right areas to support its 
development.  The proposed staffing structure 
was considered by SMT in May 2017, discussed 
with the relevant portfolio holder and is planned 
to be implemented by the end of 2017.  

P
age 181

A
genda Item

 10



VWHDC recommendations exceeding the original implementation date (Excluding Private)

Rec 

ID

Audit Name Audit 

Year

Head of 

Service

Service 

Manager

Recommenda

tion Name

Risk Rating Implementati

on date

Date of 

Officer 

Update

Recommen

dation 

Status

Revised 

Implementa

tion Date
79 Anti-fraud and 

Corruption 
Arrangements

2014/2015 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Adrianna 
Partridge 
(Assurance 
Manager)

4. Money 
Laundering 
Response Plan

Medium 31/03/15 26/10/16 Partly 
Implemented

31/07/17

80 Anti-fraud and 
Corruption 
Arrangements

2014/2015 Margaret Reed 
(Head Of Legal 
And Democratic 
Services)

Steven Corrigan 
(Democratic 
Services 
Manager)

5. Awareness of 
anti-fraud and 
corruption 
arrangements 
and training 
modules.

High 30/11/14 16/06/17 Partly 
Implemented

31/07/17

81 Anti-fraud and 
Corruption 
Arrangements

2014/2015 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Adrianna 
Partridge 
(Assurance 
Manager)

5. Awareness of 
anti-fraud and 
corruption 
arrangements 
and training 
modules.

High 31/03/15 10/01/17 Partly 
Implemented

31/07/17b) An anti-fraud and corruption/money laundering training session should be 
developed and made available to councillors/officers, with appropriate 
officers identified for mandatory training.

The ML action plan identifies this needs to be 
implemented.  Due to a current lack of resources, 
the target date has been set for the end of June 

 2016 (revised implementation date: 30 June 16)
 

HR has implemented the recommendation by 
adding this section to the freedom of information 
and data protection training. (implemented) 

 (updated 10.06.15)
 

Corporate strategy have included anti-fraud and 
corruption training for councillors (i.e. new and re-
elected councillors) in 2015/2016. This training 
has been included in the councillor development 

 programme. (implemented) (updated 10.06.15)
 

Due to resources, the recommendation has not 
been undertaken.  The recommendation has now 
been allocated to the audit team to undertaken by 
the end of July 2017. (10.1.17). Updated by FK

A comprehensive money laundering response plan needs to be implemented 
by the S151 officer and published to all staff and council members.

A review of the AMLP has been undertaken and 
an action plan is in place for updating the AMLP 
which is in progress with the final action, training, 
to be delivered by 31/7/2017. Therefore a revised 
implementation date has been added.

Recommendation UpdateRecommendation

a) The council needs to ensure that there is sufficient visibility (i.e. 
posters/leaflets/bulletins) across all council buildings informing staff of the 

 anti-fraud and corruption culture throughout the workplace.  
 

Campaign has been done and approval received 
from relevant officers.  Now awaiting Chief 
Executive's approval. 16.06.17 Updated by FK on 
behalf of AP.

P
age 182

A
genda Item

 10



84 Anti-fraud and 
Corruption 
Arrangements

2014/2015 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Adrianna 
Partridge 
(Assurance 
Manager)

6. Standard 
investigations 
files

Medium 31/03/15 10/01/17 Partly 
Implemented

31/07/17

118 Inter-council 
Recharges

2013/2014 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Bob Watson 
(Accountancy 
Manager 
(Technical))

1. Policies and 
procedures

High 31/03/14 08/06/15 Not 
Implemented

30/10/15

A standard approach for compiling investigation files and collating and 
documenting evidence should be implemented.

"Internal audit identified that this recommendation 
has not been implemented by the responsible 
officers. A new implementation date has been put 

 in place.
 

Due to resources, the recommendation has not 
been undertaken.  The recommendation has now 
been allocated to the audit team to undertaken by 

 the end of August 2016. "
 Added by FK 16/6/16

 

Due to resources, the recommendation has not 
been undertaken.  The recommendation has now 
been allocated to the audit team (Nilesh Parmar) 

 to undertaken by the end of March 2017. "
 Added by FK 10/1/17

 

Currently at draft stage. Will be completed by end 
of July 2017.  Added by FK 16/6/17

(a) Establish policy and procedures on when joint purchases is allowed and 
 what inter-council recharges should then be made.

(b) Incorporate good practice guides in recharges guidance (e.g. use of time 
 allocation sheets).

(c) Incorporate a section on key issues in recharges guidance (e.g. 
 transferring items, low value purchases).

This is now being reviewed following the move to 
one office.  This will be implemented prior to the 
2015/16 budget setting process.  This will be 

 completed by 31 October 2014.
 

Not yet had the opportunity to review policy and 
guidance (although FPR have been updated).  
Still do not consider this high risk and would 
appreciate if the rationale for this decision to 

 assess it so could be explained. 
 

As above and due to higher priority issues and 
limited resources this has yet to be implemented.

P
age 183

A
genda Item

 10



120 RIPA 2013/2014 Margaret Reed 
(Head Of Legal 
And Democratic 
Services)

Liz Hayden 
(Legal, Licensing 
And Community 
Safety Manager)

1. RIPA policy 
and procedure

Low 30/04/14 11/01/17 Partly 
Implemented

29/12/17

264 Consultations 
(public and staff) 

2015/2016 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Sally Truman 
(Policy, 
Partnership & 
Engagement 
Manager)

2a) Assessment 
of financial costs

Medium 30/04/16 23/09/16 Partly 
Implemented

28/04/17

486 West Way Botley 2016/2017 Adrian Duffield 
(Head of 
Planning)

Andrew Maxted 
(Senior Planning 
Policy Officer)

2. Planning 
consultation 
methodology

High 31/12/16 13/01/17 Implemented 31/07/17All planning consultations should be supported by comprehensive 
procedures and have an officer methodology statement to support the 
analysis of consultation responses.  This should document officer 
responsibilities for the end to end consultation process, and clearly specify 
the methodology for analysing, categorising and recording consultation 

 responses.

The methodology for processing consultation 
responses is considered robust in relation to the 
Vale Local Plan as evidenced by the Planning 
Inspector's Final Report finding the plan sound 
(including consideration of compliance with all 
legal and policy requirements - including 
appropriate handling of consultation stages). The 

 Local Plan was adopted in December 2016. 
 

The approach for handling consultation 
processing for other policy documents will be 
consistent with that followed for the Local Plan. 
This will ensure a consistent and robust approach 
is used.  

The RIPA policy and procedure should be updated to reflect current 
 legislation and consideration should be given to including:-

 a)A requirement for members' review of RIPA activities and approval of the 
 policy as per the revised code of practice

  b)Reference to the use of the NAFN
 and,

  c)Making the document available on the council¿s intranet.

Subsequent to these audit recommendations, a 
joint inspection of South and Vale was 
undertaken by the Office of Surveillance 
Commissioners in January 2015.  The 
commissioner¿s report was a generally positive 
one, with some reasonably minor updating of the 
council¿s policy being recommended.  This 
updating has yet to be formally completed, mainly 
due to competing priorities since then in the 
council¿s legal team.  This updating of the policy 
however is planned to be carried out to coincide 
with a decision as to which of the councils¿ 
senior officers should be designated as 
authorising officers for RIPA, which will require 
formal training to be undertaken.  In the 
meantime, the council¿s use of RIPA has 
remained very sparing, with no covert 
surveillance operations under RIPA having been 

 authorised or undertaken since the end of 2012.
 

 a)The evaluation process should include an assessment to determine the 
actual cost of the consultation, both directly and indirectly.  The proportion of 
the cost in relation to the service area should also be identified.  The cost 
should be compared to similar exercises within the council or similar local 
authorities.  These areas are considered good practice and they should be 
incorporated into a financial cost evaluation undertaken by the council.

The corporate consultation officer provided 
internal audit with a spreadsheet that was created 
to assist, monitor and track the approximate costs 
of corporate consultations undertaken (i.e. direct 
and indirect costs).  At the time of the follow up, 
internal audit can confirm that this is still work in 
progress and will be presented annually to the 
relevant director and cabinet member when 

 completed.  
 

Updated by Fiona Kaluza

P
age 184

A
genda Item

 10



487 West Way Botley 2016/2017 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Sally Truman 
(Policy, 
Partnership & 
Engagement 
Manager)

3. Consultation 
methodology

Medium 02/01/17 03/01/17 Partly 
Implemented

31/07/17

489 West Way Botley 2016/2017 Adrian Duffield 
(Head of 
Planning)

Andrew Maxted 
(Senior Planning 
Policy Officer)

5. Captured 
responses - 
completeness 
and accuracy

High 31/12/16 13/01/17 Implemented 31/07/17

490 West Way Botley 2016/2017 Adrian Duffield 
(Head of 
Planning)

Duncan Grainge 
(Customer 
Service Manager)

6. Scanned 
documents

Low 31/10/16   31/07/17

491 West Way Botley 2016/2017 Adrian Duffield 
(Head of 
Planning)

Andrew Maxted 
(Senior Planning 
Policy Officer)

7. Free text 
responses

Medium 31/10/16 01/11/16 Implemented 31/07/17

492 West Way Botley 2016/2017 Adrian Duffield 
(Head of 
Planning)

Andrew Maxted 
(Senior Planning 
Policy Officer)

8. Scope of 
consultation 
questions

Medium 31/10/16 01/11/16 Implemented 31/07/17All sections and options presented within a policy/report which is being 
consulted upon, should be reflected in the direct questions within a 
consultation.

A standard approach is adopted for developing 
consultation questions for Local Plan 
consultations, which includes questions on all 
aspects of the Plan (e.g. by chapter/ policy etc) 
and includes more generic questions on the 'tests 
of soundness' which relate to those aspects of 
plan preparation that will be tested by an 
independent Planning Inspector. Moving forward, 
this approach will be adopted for all policy 
documents including SPD's.   

Consideration should be given to replacing the existing Objective 
consultation system with a more user friendly system that also allows users 
of electronic devices such as iPad¿s to provide online responses.

The Corporate Consultation Officer met with the 
newly appointed Community Engagement 
Officers in planning on several occasions during 
November and December 2016 to provide 
training on the use of Smart Survey.  Both officers 
are now set up to use the application.  We 
understand the planning service intend to start 
using the new application in 2017, the timescales 
for this are for Planning staff to agree.   

There should be independent review and quality checks to ensure 
consultation responses are fully and accurately captured within the 
consultation database.

The process for managing consultation 
processing associated with the Local Plan is 
considered robust, as evidenced by the Planning 
Inspectors Final Report - published in December 
2016 confirming the plan is sound. The plan was 

 adopted in December 2016. 
 

Any future processing of consultation responses 
associated with policy documents other than the 
Local Plan will follow the same methodology as 
followed for the Local Plan. This will ensure a 
robust and consistent approach is followed for all 
policy consultations.    

Scanned images of consultation response documentation must be checked 
to ensure they are complete.

 

a) Where there is a free text response rather than an agreed/disagreed 
 answer, this should not be represented as a ¿no response¿. 

 

b) The stated count and/or percentages of responses should use only those 
respondents that did provide an answer to the agreed/disagreed sections as 
there is already an option for ¿don¿t know/no opinion¿. Hence each 

 comment may have a different total for the number of responses.
 

c) For purposes of reconciling responses the ¿no response¿ can be used 
 but this should not inform the overall outcome. 

A Consultation Statement is prepared for Local 
Plan Consultation stages which clearly identifies 
how each comment has been considered and 
informed the plan making process. This 
statement forms part of the Council's submission 
to the Secretary of State and is scrutinised 
through Examination. On this basis the approach 
is considered to be robust. Moving forward this 
approach will be adopted for all policy 
documents, including SPD's. 

P
age 185

A
genda Item

 10



493 West Way Botley 2016/2017 Adrian Duffield 
(Head of 
Planning)

Andrew Maxted 
(Senior Planning 
Policy Officer)

9. Statistical 
analysis - 
independent 
review

High 31/10/16 01/11/16 Implemented 31/07/17

494 West Way Botley 2016/2017 Adrian Duffield 
(Head of 
Planning)

Andrew Maxted 
(Senior Planning 
Policy Officer)

11. Definitions 
and explanations

Medium 31/10/16 01/11/16 Implemented 31/07/17

536 Treasury 
Management

2016/2017 William Jacobs 
(Head Of 
Finance)

Simon Hewings 
(Chief 
Accountant)

5. Benchmarking - 
VWHDC only

Medium 30/09/17    

624 The Beacon 2017/2018 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Jo Paterson 
(Partnership 
Development 
Officer (Leisure))

1a) The 
Beacon¿s 
procedures

Medium 01/09/17    

625 The Beacon 2017/2018 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Jo Paterson 
(Partnership 
Development 
Officer (Leisure))

1b) The 
Beacon¿s 
procedures

Medium 01/09/17    

626 The Beacon 2017/2018 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Jo Paterson 
(Partnership 
Development 
Officer (Leisure))

1c) The 
Beacon¿s 
procedures

Medium 01/09/17    

 Procedures should be provided to all officers which:-
 

 b)Are comprehensive to encompass all new processes and systems 
 implemented.

 

 Procedures should be provided to all officers which:-
 

 c)Have all appendices uploaded in the appropriate files and used where 
required, to ensure all policies are being followed sufficiently.

 

Consultation Statements prepared to support 
preparation of the Local Plan will always be 
subject to internal quality control/ peer review as 
the document forms part of the evidence 
submitted to the Secretary of State and subject to 
independent review at Examination. This 
approach will be adopted for all policy documents 
including SPD's.  

There should be an independent review of stated statistics within a 
consultation report, including free text analysis/summary, or more than one 
officer undertaking the analysis, to ascertain if similar conclusions could be 
drawn and/or validate the reported data analysis.

The importance of using plain language in 
consultation material is understood, although this 
sometimes needs to be balanced by the need for 
documents to comply with national policy, 
guidance and legislative requirements and be 
capable of scrutiny by an Independent Planning 
Inspector, where these requirements are 

 demonstrably met. 
 

However, supporting documents will often by 
published alongside formal planning documents 
to help explain technical processes in more detail 
and in an accessible and easy to understand 
style. These often take the form of 'Topic Papers' 
and prove helpful to Planning Inspector's as well 
as members of the public. It is suggested that this 
approach is adopted for all policy documents 
including SPD's.    

Consultation questions and documents for consultation should use clear and 
transparent language and terms with definitions or explanations where 
necessary. 

 The treasury management annual outturn reports should clearly refer to, and 
record performance against, each benchmark set out in the treasury 
management strategy.

 Procedures should be provided to all officers which:-
  a)Are up to date.

 

P
age 186

A
genda Item

 10



627 The Beacon 2017/2018 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Jo Paterson 
(Partnership 
Development 
Officer (Leisure))

1d) The 
Beacon¿s 
procedures

Medium 01/09/17    

628 The Beacon 2017/2018 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Jo Paterson 
(Partnership 
Development 
Officer (Leisure))

2. Premises 
license holders ¿ 
Bar Services

Medium 01/10/17    

629 The Beacon 2017/2018 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Jo Paterson 
(Partnership 
Development 
Officer (Leisure))

3a. Bar Services 
Records

Low 31/08/17    

630 The Beacon 2017/2018 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Jo Paterson 
(Partnership 
Development 
Officer (Leisure))

3b. Bar Services 
Records

Low 31/08/17    

631 The Beacon 2017/2018 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Jo Paterson 
(Partnership 
Development 
Officer (Leisure))

4a.  
Complimentary 
drinks 

Low 31/07/17    

632 The Beacon 2017/2018 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Jo Paterson 
(Partnership 
Development 
Officer (Leisure))

4b.  
Complimentary 
drinks 

Low 31/07/17    

635 The Beacon 2017/2018 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Jo Paterson 
(Partnership 
Development 
Officer (Leisure))

6a.  Room hires 
testing

Medium 01/09/17    

636 The Beacon 2017/2018 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Jo Paterson 
(Partnership 
Development 
Officer (Leisure))

6b.  Room hires 
testing

Medium 01/09/17    

 3b)All drinks/juice cartons opened should be labelled accurately to ensure 
that they are being used within the recommended ¿use by¿ date and 
disposed accurately.

 

 4a)All visitor complimentary drinks should be recorded appropriately.  

 4b)Staff complimentary drinks should be recorded and the financial value 
recorded in the appropriate monthly income records.

 

 6a)Payments received for room bookings must be recorded on the 
appropriate payment forms

 

  6b)Manual invoices should be numbered with the receipt number recorded 
and matched to the appropriate invoice.

 Procedures should be provided to all officers which:-
 

  d)Document the refunds procedure stating:
  ¿Why a refund would be given,
 ¿How the refund would be processed for income received via the tills (i.e. 

 cash/cheque/credit voucher)
  ¿The appropriate authorisation required for processing the transaction.

 

A contingency plan should be put in place to ensure that the bar is fully 
functional at all times when required, i.e. get additional staff trained and 
identified as premises licence holders.

 

 3a)Events that take place at the Beacon and require the bar service should 
be recorded on a monthly basis including the breakdown of income received 
at each event.

 

P
age 187

A
genda Item

 10



637 The Beacon 2017/2018 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Jo Paterson 
(Partnership 
Development 
Officer (Leisure))

6c.  Room hires 
testing

Medium 01/09/17    

638 The Beacon 2017/2018 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Jo Paterson 
(Partnership 
Development 
Officer (Leisure))

6d.  Room hires 
testing

Medium 01/09/17    

639 The Beacon 2017/2018 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Jo Paterson 
(Partnership 
Development 
Officer (Leisure))

6e.  Room hires 
testing

Medium 01/09/17    

640 The Beacon 2017/2018 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Jo Paterson 
(Partnership 
Development 
Officer (Leisure))

7a. Cash and 
banking process

Medium 01/09/17    

641 The Beacon 2017/2018 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Jo Paterson 
(Partnership 
Development 
Officer (Leisure))

7b. Cash and 
banking process

Medium 01/09/17    

642 The Beacon 2017/2018 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Jo Paterson 
(Partnership 
Development 
Officer (Leisure))

7c. Cash and 
banking process

Medium 01/09/17    

645 The Beacon 2017/2018 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Jo Paterson 
(Partnership 
Development 
Officer (Leisure))

9b. Petty cash 
process - The 
Beacon

Medium 01/09/17    

646 The Beacon 2017/2018 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Jo Paterson 
(Partnership 
Development 
Officer (Leisure))

9c. Petty cash 
process - The 
Beacon

Medium 01/09/17    

647 The Beacon 2017/2018 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Jo Paterson 
(Partnership 
Development 
Officer (Leisure))

10a. Health and 
Safety 
arrangements 

Medium 01/09/17    

 7c)The overs and unders spreadsheet should be updated accordingly and 
amended to ensure that all records are included in obtaining correct and 
accurate information in relation to overs/unders identified at the cashing up 
stage.

 

 9b)The appropriate officers who have responsibility of the petty cash 
should be advised that forms that show evidence of authorisation should be 
used.  Reference can be made to the council¿s petty cash reimbursement 
online form.

 

 9c)Reclaimable VAT is identified as part of the replenishment process and 
coded within the Agresso financial system to facilitate the council reclaiming 
amounts paid.

 

 10a)The Beacon management team should ensure that the health and 
safety audit recommendations are addressed with suitable justification to 
action points that would require additional implementation timeframes.

 

 6c)A central record should be complied and updated of the invoices that 
have been issued and details of the payment being received at the Beacon.

 

 6d)Receipt books should be used in numerical order with a register 
retained of the active receipt books being used.

 

 6e)Blank receipts for the old receipt books should be crossed and retained 
in the files to ensure they are not used.

 

 7a)The date the second officer checks the cashing up records should be 
documented on the appropriate documents.

 

 7b)The date banking is undertaken should be documented on the cashing 
up prime documents.

 

P
age 188

A
genda Item

 10



648 The Beacon 2017/2018 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Jo Paterson 
(Partnership 
Development 
Officer (Leisure))

10b. Health and 
Safety 
arrangements 

Medium 01/09/17    

649 The Beacon 2017/2018 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Jo Paterson 
(Partnership 
Development 
Officer (Leisure))

11. Incident 
reporting

Low 31/07/17    

650 The Beacon 2017/2018 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Jo Paterson 
(Partnership 
Development 
Officer (Leisure))

12. The Beacon 
assets list

Low 01/12/17    

651 The Beacon 2017/2018 Andrew Down 
(Head of HR, IT 
& Technical 
Services)

Jo Paterson 
(Partnership 
Development 
Officer (Leisure))

13. Door access 
¿ The Beacon

Low 01/07/17    

A reminder should be sent to staff on the importance of reporting incidents in 
 line with the council¿s health and safety policy.

 

 

Where possible, details of the purchase price and date of purchase should 
be entered into the inventory list sent to the council¿s insurance team to 

 assist in calculating the annual replacement value.

 

The Beacon passcodes need to be changed on a regular basis for example, 
on a six-monthly basis and/or when a Beacon employee ceases 
employment.

 

 10b)The Beacon should ensure that First Aid training is renewed in a timely 
manner.

 

P
age 189

A
genda Item

 10



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Audit and Governance 
Committee

Report of Interim Audit Manager
Author: Sandy Bayley
Telephone: 01235 422496
Textphone: 18001 01235 422510
E-mail: sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk
SODC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Jane Murphy
Tel: 07970 932054
E-mail: jane.murphy@southoxon.gov.uk
VWHDC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Robert Sharp
Telephone: 07771 760549
E-mail: robert.sharp@whitehorsedc.gov.uk

To: Audit and Governance Committee
DATE: 29 January 2018

Internal audit management report 
quarter three 2017/2018
 
Recommendation

That members note the content of the report.

Purpose of report

1. The purpose of this report is:

 to report on management issues within internal audit;

 to summarise the progress against the 2017/2018 audit plan up to 16 
January 2018; and

 to summarise the priorities for quarter four 2017/2018.

CONFIDENTIAL

Page 191

Agenda Item 11

mailto:jane.murphy@southoxon.gov.uk
mailto:robert.sharp@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


2. The contact officer for this report is Sandy Bayley, Interim Audit Manager for 
South Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District Council, 
telephone 01235 422496.

Strategic objectives

3. Delivery of an effective internal audit function will support the councils in 
meeting their strategic objectives.

Background 

4. The CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the UK 
2006 states that the head of internal audit should prepare a risk-based audit 
plan, which should outline the assignments to be carried out and the broad 
resources required to deliver the plan.

5. The CIPFA Code also states that the audit committee should approve the 
annual internal audit plan and monitor progress against the plan.  The joint 
committee approved the 2017/2018 annual internal audit plan on 20 March 
2017.

Management issues

6. Internal audit has continued to provide a significant level of resource to the five 
councils partnership during transition, including reviews of service readiness 
documentation. 

Monthly audit manager meetings continue across the five district councils to 
share transition, process and control environment information. 

An agency auditor was used to back-fill the auditor position from 4 September 
2017 to 17 November 2017 and a further 11 week appointment is planned for 
22 January 2018 to 6 April 2018. 

Progress against the 2017/2018 audit plan

7. Progress against the approved audit plan has been calculated for the quarter 
and year to date and is summarised in appendix 1 attached.

8. Performance figures to date are as follows:

Target YTD Q1 
17/18

Q2 
17/18

Q3 
17/18

Q4 
17/18

Chargeable
(identifiable client and/or specific 
IA deliverable)

76% 77.5% 76.5% 83.5% 72% 76%

Non-Chargeable 
(corporate, not IA deliverable)

7% 6% 5.5% 7% 6% 6%

Planned Lost
(i.e. leave)

15% 15% 17.5% 9.5% 18% 18%

Unplanned Lost
(i.e. study, sickness)

2% 1.5% 0.5% 0% 4% 0%

9. As at 16 January 2018 the status of audit work against the 2017/2018 audit 
plan is as follows:

Page 192

Agenda Item 11



Planned 

Strategic, operational and financial assurance work known and approved by the 
audit and governance committee.

2017/2018

Pl
an

ne
d

C
om

pl
et

e

D
ra

ft

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s

To
 

co
m

m
en

ce

PLANNED 27 9 1 9 8
Joint 25 7 1 9 8
SODC 1 1 0 0 0
VWHDC 1 1 0 0 0

Adhoc

Unplanned project work based on agreed terms of reference with the audit 
manager (i.e. implementation of new systems) and responsive work issued and 
agreed by the section 151 officer, members or senior management team (i.e. 
investigations).

2017/2018

R
eq

ue
st

ed

C
om

pl
et

e

D
ra

ft

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s

To
 

co
m

m
en

ce

ADHOC 7 4 0 3 0
Joint 3 2 0 1 0
SODC 0 0 0 0 0
VWHDC 4 2 0 2 0

Follow up 

Work undertaken to ensure that agreed recommendations have been 
implemented.  The number of follow-up audits is a rolling number, all internal 
audit reports are followed up after six months unless the area is subject to an 
annual review.

2017/2018

R
eq

ue
st

ed
/ 

be
co

m
e 

du
e

C
om

pl
et

e

D
ra

ft

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s

To
 

co
m

m
en

ce

FOLLOW-UP 14 10 0 4 0
Joint 11 8 0 3 0
SODC 2 2 0 0 0
VWHDC 1 0 0 1 0

Page 193

Agenda Item 11



Priorities for 2017/2018 quarter four (January 2018 – March 2018)

10. The priorities for quarter four are to:
 

 Complete the 2017/2018 audit plan.
 Identify and address any internal audit resource concerns once 

management restructure is completed.
 Develop draft 2018/2019 audit plan.
 Review the audit risk assessment process in line with the councils’ 

approach to risk management.

11. Remaining 2017/2018 planned audit work can be reviewed in appendix 2. 

Financial implications

12. There are no financial implications attached to this report.

Legal implications

13. None.

Risk implications

14. Identification of risk is an integral part of all audits.

SANDY BAYLEY
INTERIM INTERNAL AUDIT MANAGER

Page 194

Agenda Item 11



PLANNED AUDIT 2017/2018

System Name

As at 20 June 2017

Budgetary Control (17) 10

SODC 9.5 4 0 0 1 1 3 3 0

VWHDC 9.5 4 0 0 1 1 3 3 0

Capital Management and Accounting (21) 14

SODC 3.0

VWHDC 3.5

Car Parks (18) 20

SODC 10.0 5 0 0 3 3 2 2 0

VWHDC 10.0 5 0 0 3 3 2 2 0

Council Tax (23) 20

SODC 14.5

VWHDC 14.5

Credit Card Usage (20) 8

SODC 4.5 11 2 2 4 3 5 5 1

VWHDC 4.5 11 2 2 4 3 5 5 1

Creditor Payments (27) 20

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Data Protection (22) 16

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Discretionary Grants (19) 14

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Emergency Planning (19) 10

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

General Ledger (22) 20

SODC 0.5

VWHDC 0.5

Grounds Maintenance (18) 18

SODC 7.5 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 0

VWHDC 7.5 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 0

Housing Benefits and CTRS (22) 30

SODC 14.5 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 0

VWHDC 14.5 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 0

Housing Development (17) 20

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Information Governance (16) 20

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Internal Recharges (17) 16

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Licensing (20) 20

SODC 10.0 5 0 0 2 2 3 3 0

VWHDC 10.0 5 0 0 2 2 3 3 0

Lone Working & Officer Security (21) 14

SODC 2.5

VWHDC 2.5

NNDR (21) 20

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Payroll (29) 36

SODC 22.0

VWHDC 22.0

Petty Cash Spot Checks (17) 4

SODC 0.5

VWHDC 0.5

Pro-active Anti-Fraud Review (20) 14

SODC 1.0

VWHDC 1.0

Property Management (18) 20

SODC 10.0 5 1 1 1 1 3 3 0

VWHDC 10.0 5 1 1 1 1 3 3 0

Sundry Debtors (24) 20

SODC 8.5

VWHDC 8.5

Treasury Management (20) 14

SODC 7.0

VWHDC 7.0

Tree Management & Inspections (15) 20

SODC 0.5

VWHDC 0.5

Leader Project Assurance (18) Completed 10 10.0 2 0 0 0 0 2 2 0

Leader Project Grant Verification (12) Not Applicable 4 0.0 Function now performed by RPA

not accountable body so no longer

needed.

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

The Beacon (19) Completed 10 11.5 13 0 0 6 6 7 7 0

Full
Substantial

Satisfactory
Limited

Nil

Full
Substantial

Satisfactory
Limited

Nil

Full
Substantial

Satisfactory
Limited

Nil

25

11 10 20 20

1

2
0
4
2

45 3 3 17 16 25

1

0
VWHDC PLANNED AUDIT TOTALS - 229 137.75

0

SODC PLANNED AUDIT TOTALS 3- 233 136.25 34 3

3
0
3
2

APPENDIX 1

H
ig

h

Full

Completed

Completed

To Commence Q4

Completed

Completed

Completed

Satisfactory

Limited

In Progress

In Progress

In Progress

In Progress

Completed

In Progress

In Progress

To Commence Q4

Draft Out

To Commence Q4

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

To Commence Q4

To Commence Q4

In Progress

To Commence Q4

Full

Limited

To Commence Q4

IA PLANNED AUDIT TOTALS

0

- 462 274.0

7
4

5

Satisfactory

Limited

Limited

Satisfactory

0

T
o

ta
l 
N

o
t 

A
g

re
e
d

JOINT

M
e
d

iu
m

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
dStatus

A
u

d
it

 

A
ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n

T
o

ta
l 
D

a
y

s
 

U
s

e
d

Exception Issues

L
o

w

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

In Progress

N
o

. 
o

f 
R

e
c
sAudit Opinion

Full

Full

Satisfactory

79 24545262866

VWHDC

Satisfactory

To Commence Q4

Not applicable

SODC

Full

In Progress

Completed

Page 195

Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank



FOLLOW UP AUDITS 2016/2017

System Name Total Days 

Used

Original Audit Opinion Issued Total No. of Recs 

Agreed

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

P
a

rt
ly

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

N
o

t 
Im

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

O
n

g
o

in
g

N
e
w

 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s

HR Recruitment (2nd report) 2015/2016 1 Limited 9 2 0 4 0 3

Training and Development (2nd report) 2016/2017 6 Limited 4 0 0 1 0 3

CIL (2nd Report) 2016/2017 12 Full 4 1 0 0 0 3

Comments & Complaints 2016/2017 1 Satisfactory 5 0 2 3 0 0

Building Control 2016/2017 4 Limited 5 3 0 2 0 0

Cornerstone 2016/2017 2 Limited 5 3 2 0 0 0

None

FOLLOW UP AUDITS 2017/2018

System Name Total Days 

Used

Original Audit Opinion Issued Total No. of Recs 

Agreed

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

P
a

rt
ly

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

N
o

t 
Im

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

O
n

g
o

in
g

N
e
w

 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s

Car Parks 2017/2018 1 Satisfactory 5 5 0 0 0 0

Grounds Maintenance 2017/2018 0.5 Full 1 0 0 0 1 0

LEADER Project Assurance 2017/2018 0.5 Full 2 2 0 0 0 0

None

IA FOLLOW UP DURING 17/18 TOTALS 28.0 40 16 4 10 1 9

JOINT FOLLOW UP 17/18 TOTALS 25.5 33 11 2 10 1 9

SODC FOLLOW UP 17/18 TOTALS 2.5 7 5 2 0 0 0

VWHDC FOLLOW UP 17/18 TOTALS 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 0

SODC

JOINT

SODC

JOINT

VWHDC

VWHDC

P
age 197

A
genda Item

 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank



UNPLANNED WORK 2017/2018

CONSULTANCY

System Name Status Audit Allocation Total Days Used Requested By

5 Councils Partnership, including:

  · service readiness payroll

  · service readiness Integra

  · 5CP Governance

In Progress As required 62 to date N/A

Follow up of Review of Crowmarsh Fire March 2015 Completed As required 1.5 September 2017 Audit & Governance Committee

Potential conflict of interest Completed As required 1 Head of Legal & Democratic Services

Business rates - fraudulent transaction Completed As required 2 N/A

CONTINGENCY

System Name Status Audit Allocation Total Days Used Requested By

Investigation Templates Completed 10 9 Assurance Manager

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

West Way Botley Follow Up In Progress 4 2 Councillor

Planning - Kingston Bagpuize In progress 5 2 Head of Planning

SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT

System Name Status Audit Allocation Total Days Used Requested By

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

VWHDC

SODC

JOINT

VWHDC

JOINT

SODC

JOINT

VWHDC

SODC

P
age 199

A
genda Item

 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank



PLANNED AUDITS

PRIORITY
JOINT 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4

Budgetary Control 17

Capital Mgt & Accounting 21

Car Parks 18

Council Tax 23

Credit Card Usage 20

Creditor Payments 27

Data Protection 22

Discretionary Grants 19

Emergency Planning 19

General Ledger 22

Grounds Maintenance 18

Housing Benefits & Council Tax Reduction 22

Housing Development 17

Information Governance 16

Internal Recharges 17

Licensing 20

Lone Working and Officer Security 21

NNDR 21

Payroll 29

Petty Cash Spot Checks 17

Pro-active Anti-Fraud Review 20

Property Management 18

Sundry Debtors 24
Treasury Management 20
Tree Management and Inspections 15

SODC

LEADER Project Assurance 18

VWHDC

The Beacon 19

FOLLOW UP AUDITS

PRIORITY
JOINT 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 5 1 2 3 4 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 5
HR Recruitment 1516 (2nd report and follow up)
Training and Development 1516 (2nd report and follow up)
CIL 1617 (2nd report)
Comments and complaints 1617
Building Control 1617
Expenditure Review
Car Parks 1718
Grounds Maintenance 1718
Environmental Protection 1718

HR Recruitment 1516 (follow up of 2nd report)
Training and Development 1516 (follow up of 2nd report)
SODC
LEADER Project Assurance 1718
Cornerstone 1617
VWHDC
The Beacon

UNPLANNED AUDITS

PRIORITY
JOINT 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 5 1 2 3 4 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 5
Investigation Templates
Follow up Crowmarsh Fire Review March 2015

SODC
Potential confilct of interest

VWHDC
West Way follow up
Business rates fraudulent transaction
Planning - Kingston Bagpuize

Key
Projected Start Date
In Progress
Draft Issued
Complete
No longer applicable/ revised arrangements

A
G

C

October NovemberJuly

August OctoberSeptember

April

J
A

G
C

A
G

C
 

August

AUDIT PLAN SCHEDULE 2017/2018 (As at 16 January 2018)

April May June July

April May July

May June

A
G

C

September

February March

October November

A
G

C
A

G
C

A
G

C

A
G

C

December

January

A
G

C

Appendix 2

August September

June

December

February

MarchNovember December January February

J
A

G
C

J
A

G
C

March

J
A

G
C

January

P
age 201

A
genda Item

 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee

Report of Head of Finance
Author: Simon Hewings
Telephone:01235 422499
Textphone: 18001 01235 422499
E-mail: simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
Wards affected: All
South Cabinet member responsible: Jane Murphy
Tel: 07970 932054
E-mail: jane.murphy@southoxon.gov.uk
To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee
DATE: 29 January 2018

Vale Cabinet member responsible: Robert Sharp
Tel: 01367 710549
E-mail:robert.sharp@whitehorsedc.gov.uk

Statement of accounts 2017/18

Recommendation

To note the report.

Purpose of Report

1. To provide an update from Capita’s accountancy team on preparations for the 
2017/18 final accounts process.   

Strategic Objectives 

2. South – unqualified final accounts helps us demonstrate our strong financial 
position. 

3. Vale - unqualified final accounts helps us demonstrate that we run an efficient 
council.

Background

4. At the request of the Head of Finance Capita have prepared a paper summarising 
progress towards the earlier closedown deadlines that apply to this year’s 
statement of accounts for both councils.  The Capita Chief Accountant’s paper is 
attached as appendix 1 to this report. 

Page 203

Agenda Item 12



Financial Implications

5. There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

Legal Implications

6. Approval of the statement of accounts by the committee in accordance with 
statutory dates fulfils the requirements of the Accounts and Audit (England) 
Regulations 2015.

Risks

7. These are identified in Capita’s report.

Other Implications

8. None.

Conclusion

9. The update report from Capita summarises their progress to date in preparing for 
the earlier preparation of final accounts for both councils.

Page 204

Agenda Item 12



Appendix 1

Statement of accounts 2017/18 – update report from Capita 
accountancy
Background

1. As previously reported to the committee the statutory deadline of 30 June is being 
brought forward to 31 May this year.  For the 2017/18 accounts preparations are 
being made to learn from last year’s trial run and ensure compliance with the new 
deadline. 

2. The external auditors Ernst and Young (EY) offered an ‘Accounts Closedown’ 
workshop in December which was attended by the Capita Chief Accountant and 
the councils’ Strategic Finance Manager.  The workshop focused on the new 
timetable and EY’s approach to it.  A two-week interim audit started on 22 January 
with the intention of completing an element of year end work in advance   

3. The team have looked at areas of year end work that could be brought forward. 
Thus far capital accounting has been completed in draft and year-end depreciation 
already calculated. Spreadsheets and linked word documents for the statements 
have been prepared in advance, well ahead of last year.  Specific third party 
deliverables which effect year end close; particularly property valuations, pension 
statements and revenue outturns have been requested earlier than previously and 
any delays will be quickly followed up.  

4. It will also be critical that deadlines relying on information being received from 
council officers are met. A draft close down timetable will be circulated to council 
officers in January, requesting that they agree dates with finance and prioritise the 
completion of their deliverables. The Head of Finance has discussed the new 
reporting timetable with council officers at recent SMT meetings and emphasised 
the importance of compliance.  

5. Further detailed analysis of the year end timetable will be carried out by the Chief 
Accountant during February to identify potential additional time savings.  

6. Unlike previous years, the financial statements will be presented to the Head of 
Finance and Strategic Finance Manager as each note is completed, this will 
shorten the time required to check the full draft statements

7. The Draft close down timetable currently targets delivery of the statements of 
accounts to the Head of Finance by 16 May for approval by 23 May   

Risks

8. None identified but here will be minimal scope to accommodate one-off work 
requests during the period when the statement of accounts are being completed.

Page 205

Agenda Item 12



Appendix 1

Conclusion

9. The Finance department working with Capita Accountancy are formulating a 
timetable to achieve an early completion of the 2017/18 statements of accounts. 
Provided deadlines are met both parties believe the new timetable is achievable. 

Richard Spraggett
Chief Accountant (Capita)

Page 206

Agenda Item 12



Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee
Report of Head of Finance

Author: Rhona Bellis, Principal Accountant
Telephone: 01235 422497
Textphone: 18001 01235 422497
E-mail: rhona.bellis@southandvale.gov.uk
SODC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Jane Murphy
Telephone: 07970 932054
E-mail: jane.murphy@southoxon.gov.uk

VWHDC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Robert Sharp
Telephone: 01367 710549
E-mail: robert.sharp@whitehorsedc.gov.uk

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee; Cabinet; Council
DATE: 29 Jan 18 by Joint Audit and Governance Committee

1 Feb 18 (S) / 2 Feb 18 (V) by Cabinet 
15 Feb 18 (S) / 14 Feb 18 (V) by Council 

Treasury management mid-year monitoring report 
2017/18

Recommendations

That Joint Audit and Governance Committee:

1. notes the treasury management mid-year monitoring report 2017/18, and
2. is satisfied that the treasury activities are carried out in accordance with the 
treasury management strategy and policy.

That Cabinet:

3. considers any comments from Joint Audit and Governance Committee and 
recommends council to approve the report.

Purpose of report

1. The report fulfils the legislative requirements to ensure the adequate monitoring of the 
treasury management activities and that each council’s prudential indicators are 
reported to their respective council mid-year (ie: as at 30 September).  The report 
provides details of the treasury activities for the first six months of 2017/18 and an 
update on the current economic conditions with a view to the remainder of the year.

Page 207

Agenda Item 13

mailto:rhona.bellis@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:rhona.bellis@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:jane.murphy@southoxon.gov.uk
mailto:robert.sharp@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


Strategic objectives 

2. Managing the finances of the authority in accordance with the treasury management 
strategy will help to ensure that resources are available to deliver its services and 
meet the council’s strategic objectives.

Background

3. The council’s treasury activities are strictly regulated by legislation.  The CIPFA 
Prudential Code and CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management requires a 
monitoring report to be provided mid-year to council.  The report covers the treasury 
activity for the period 1 April 2017 to 30 September 2017.

4. The 2017/18 treasury management strategy was approved by each council in 
February 2017.  This report summarises the treasury activity and performance for the 
first six months of 2017/18 against those prudential indicators and benchmarks set for 
the year.  It also provides an opportunity to review and subsequently revise limits if 
required.  Full council is required to approve this report and any amendments to the 
Treasury Management Strategy.

5. Link Asset Services are the councils’ retained treasury advisors.  Capita Asset 
Services was sold by Capita to Link Group during the early part of the year and the 
business has been rebranded.  There are no implications for the councils in terms of 
service provision. 

Treasury activity

6. The mid-year performance of the two councils is summarised in the tables below1.  

South

Treasury 
investments 

£000

Non 
treasury 

loan £000
Sub Total 

£000

Property 
investment 

£000
Overall total 

£000
1 Average investment balance 127,151 15,000 142,151 5,075 147,226 
2 Budgeted investment income 789 311 1,100 
3 Actual investment income 1,350 312 1,662 218 1,880 
4 surplus/(deficit)  (3) - (2) 561 1 562 
5 Annualised rate of return 2.12% 4.16% 2.34% 8.59% 2.55%

Vale

Treasury 
investments 

£000

Property 
investment 

£000
Overall total 

£000
1 Average investment balance 58,185 8,455 66,640 
2 Budgeted investment income 190 
3 Actual investment income 279 287 566 
4 surplus/(deficit)  (3) - (2) 90 
5 Annualised rate of return 0.96% 6.79% 1.70%

1 For property, the balance shown is the fair value of investment properties as at 31 March 2017. 
Page 208

Agenda Item 13



7. The forecast outturn position as at September 2017, based on known investments 
and maturities and an estimate for future earnings is shown in the table below:

South Oxfordshire 
District Council

Vale of White Horse 
District Council

Annual budget as per MTFP £2,201,300 £379,160
Forecast outturn £2,604,771 £393,280
Variance against budget £403,471 £14,120
Borrowing Nil Nil

8. The Councils remain restricted regarding financial institutions meeting their 
investment criteria.  When it is possible, investments will be placed with highly rated 
institutions for a longer duration with a view to increasing the weighted average 
maturity of the portfolio, but this has meant that overall there are less suitable 
counterparties available to the councils to deposit with.

9. SODC.  The latest estimate is that income receivable on cash investments will be 
above budget by £403,471 by the end of the year. Cash balances have been higher 
than expected as a result of grant receipts relating to Didcot Garden Town and re-
profiling of the capital programme due to delays in expenditure. 

10. Officers monitor the performance of the unit trust holding on a regular basis.  When 
the value reaches £14 million, a disposal of £2 million is made.  During the first six 
months of 2017/18 the value of unit trusts has been just below the £14 million 
threshold and no disposals have been made.

11. VWHDC.  The latest estimate is that income receivable on cash investments will be 
above budget by £14,120.  This is due to higher than budgeted cash balances 
relating to grant funding from the EZ building foundations for growth that was 
received at the end of 2014/15 and has been invested pending disbursement, and the  
re-profiling of the capital programme as a result of delays in expenditure.  

12. Following the TUPE transfer of accountancy staff to Capita in August 2016, a review 
of treasury management practice has commenced.  The service is currently provided 
on a business as usual basis.  

Performance measurement

13. A list of current investments as at 30 September is shown in Appendices A1 and A2.  
All investments were with approved counterparties.  The average return on these 
investments is shown above in the table at paragraph 5.  South has performed better 
than Vale because it holds more long term loans at higher rates and equities as a 
result of its larger investment base.

14. The councils’ performance against benchmarks for the first six months of the year are 
detailed in Appendices A3 and A4.  All benchmarks have been achieved except the 
CCLA benchmark which measures performance from the investment date rather than 
performance in the year.  Performance for the year to date of 4.88% is higher that the 
short term benchmark of 4.58%.   

Treasury management limits on activity

15. Each council is required by the Prudential Code to report on the limits set each year 
in their respective Treasury Management Strategies.  The purpose of these limits is to 
ensure that the activity of the treasury functions remain within certain parameters, 

Page 209

Agenda Item 13



thereby mitigating risk and reducing the impact of an adverse movement in interest 
rates.  However, if these limits are set to be too restrictive they will impair the 
opportunities to reduce costs/improve performance.  The limits for both councils are 
shown in appendices B1 and B2.

Debt activity during 2017/18

16. During the first six months of 2017/18 there has been no need for either of the 
councils to borrow.  The s151 officer will continue to take a prudent approach to the 
councils’ debt strategies.  The prudential indicators and limits set out in appendices 
B1 and B2 provide the scope and flexibility for either of the councils to borrow in the 
short-term up to the maximum limits, if ever such a need arose within the cash flow 
management activities of the authority in order to achieve its service objectives.

Financial implications

17. Uncertainty following the referendum on EU membership in June 2016 remains.  The 
depreciation of sterling has resulted in a rise in inflation (CPI) and this is predicted to 
remain above the two per cent target for some time.  The Bank of England’s 
Monetary Policy Committee increased interest rates by 0.25 per cent in November 
2017 and has hinted that interest rates could rise further in 2018. Rates are not likely 
to reach pre-2008 levels for some considerable time (if at all).

Legal implications

18. There are no significant legal implications as a result of the recommendations in this    
report.  Compliance with the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the 
Public Services and the CLG Local Government Investment Guidance provides 
assurance that the council’s investments are, and will continue to be, within its legal 
powers.

Conclusion

19. This report provides details of the treasury management activities for the period 1 
April 2017 to 30 September 2017 and the mid-year prudential indicators to each 
respective council. 

20. Treasury activities at both councils have operated within the agreed parameters set 
out in their respective approved treasury management strategies. 

21. This report also provides the monitoring information for joint audit and governance 
committee to fulfil its role of scrutinising treasury management activity at each 
council.

Background papers

 CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services Code of Practice and Cross 
Sectoral Guidance Notes (revised 2011)

 CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (2011 edition)
 Various committee reports, principally:-

Treasury Management Investment Strategy 2017/18
SODC – council 16 February 2017

Page 210

Agenda Item 13



VWHDC – council 15 February 2017

Appendices

A1 – SODC List of investments as at 30 September 2017
A2 – VWHDC List of investments as at 30 September 2017
A3 – SODC Performance against benchmark
A4 – VWHDC Performance against benchmark
B1 – SODC Prudential Indicators
B2 – VWHDC Prudential Indicators
C1 – Note on Prudential Indicators

Page 211

Agenda Item 13



Appendix A1

A1 – 1

South Oxfordshire District Council

Investments as at 30 September 2017

Counterparty
Deposit 

type
Investment 

date
Maturity 

date

Investment 
duration in 

days Principal Rate
National Counties Building Society Fixed 16/12/2016 16/10/2017 304 1,500,000 0.69%
Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed 21/12/2016 20/12/2017 364 2,000,000 0.78%
Progressive Building Society Fixed 23/12/2016 23/10/2017 304 1,000,000 0.70%
Progressive Building Society Fixed 03/01/2017 03/11/2017 304 2,000,000 0.66%
Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed 08/02/2017 07/02/2018 364 2,000,000 0.88%
National Counties Building Society Fixed 15/02/2017 15/12/2017 303 1,500,000 0.70%
Principality Building Society Fixed 13/03/2017 13/03/2018 365 2,000,000 0.77%
Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed 15/03/2017 14/03/2018 364 3,000,000 0.80%
Close Brothers Fixed 30/03/2017 29/03/2018 364 1,000,000 0.80%
Progressive Building Society Fixed 03/04/2017 03/04/2018 365 3,500,000 0.75%
Progressive Building Society Fixed 03/04/2017 29/03/2018 360 1,000,000 0.75%
Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed 03/04/2017 03/04/2018 365 2,000,000 0.92%
National Counties Building Society Fixed 03/04/2017 03/04/2018 365 2,500,000 0.77%
Skipton Building Society Fixed 03/04/2017 03/04/2018 365 2,000,000 0.75%
Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed 04/04/2017 15/03/2018 345 2,000,000 0.75%
Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed 12/04/2017 11/04/2018 364 1,000,000 0.75%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed 27/04/2017 27/04/2018 365 2,000,000 0.78%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed 02/05/2017 02/05/2018 365 2,000,000 0.77%
National Counties Building Society Fixed 04/05/2017 04/05/2018 365 1,000,000 0.77%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed 05/05/2017 04/05/2018 364 2,000,000 0.77%
Close Brothers Fixed 08/05/2017 09/04/2018 336 2,000,000 0.80%
National Counties Building Society Fixed 15/05/2017 15/02/2018 276 2,000,000 0.66%
Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed 15/05/2017 15/02/2018 276 2,000,000 0.66%
National Counties Building Society Fixed 23/05/2017 22/05/2018 364 1,500,000 0.80%
Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed 23/05/2017 22/05/2018 364 1,500,000 0.78%
Principality Building Society Fixed 30/05/2017 29/05/2018 364 2,000,000 0.78%
Nottingham Building Society Fixed 06/06/2017 15/02/2018 254 2,000,000 0.60%
Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed 06/06/2017 15/03/2018 282 2,000,000 0.66%
Principality Building Society Fixed 12/06/2017 11/06/2018 364 3,000,000 0.77%
Nottingham Building Society Fixed 12/06/2017 11/06/2018 364 1,000,000 0.76%
Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed 26/06/2017 25/06/2018 364 2,000,000 0.78%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed 29/06/2017 28/06/2018 364 1,500,000 0.78%
Principality Building Society Fixed 03/07/2017 02/07/2018 364 4,000,000 0.77%
Principality Building Society Fixed 10/07/2017 09/07/2018 364 2,000,000 0.75%
Nottingham Building Society Fixed 11/07/2017 10/07/2018 364 2,000,000 0.81%
Progressive Building Society Fixed 17/07/2017 16/07/2018 364 2,500,000 0.78%
Skipton Building Society Fixed 19/07/2017 18/07/2018 364 2,000,000 0.77%
Nottingham Building Society Fixed 19/07/2017 16/10/2017 89 3,000,000 0.35%
Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed 24/07/2017 23/07/2018 364 2,000,000 0.91%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed 30/08/2017 30/08/2018 365 2,000,000 0.80%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed 31/08/2017 30/08/2018 364 2,000,000 0.80%
Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed 28/09/2017 27/09/2018 364 2,000,000 0.97%
Santander Call * 417,756 0.15%
Royal Bank of Scotland Call * 2,329 0.15%
Royal Bank of Scotland Call * 95,101 0.15%
Goldman Sachs MMF * 5,060,000 0.17%
Blackrock MMF * 690,000 0.13%

Total short term cash 
investments (<1 yr duration)

89,265,186

Kingston upon Hull City Council Fixed 19/08/2013 19/08/2020 2557 3,500,000 2.70%
Kingston upon Hull City Council Fixed 19/08/2013 19/08/2020 2557 1,500,000 2.70%
Kingston upon Hull City Council Fixed 15/01/2014 15/01/2021 2557 2,000,000 2.50%
Royal Bank of Scotland Fixed 20/01/2015 22/01/2018 1098 2,000,000 1.50%
Royal Bank of Scotland Fixed 16/02/2015 18/02/2019 1463 2,000,000 1.20%
Close Brothers Fixed 26/11/2015 27/11/2017 732 3,000,000 1.60%
Royal Bank of Scotland Fixed 08/04/2016 08/04/2019 1095 3,000,000 1.31%
Bury MBC Fixed 18/07/2016 19/07/2021 1827 5,000,000 1.50%
Lloyds Bank Fixed 10/03/2017 13/03/2018 368 2,000,000 0.90%
Close Brothers Fixed 03/04/2017 03/04/2019 730 2,000,000 1.10%

Total long-term cash 
investments (>1 yr duration)

26,000,000

CCLA Property 6,591,099 Variable
Legal & General Equities Unit Trust 13,851,988 Variable
Total Investments 135,708,273
*  Rates are variable.  Returns shown represent prevailing rates at end Q2 2017.
Above figures exclude balance outstanding from Kaupthing Singer and Friedlander and SOHA loan

Page 212

Agenda Item 13



Appendix A2

A2 – 1

Vale of White Horse District Council

Investments as at 30 September 2017

Counterparty
Deposit 

type
Investment 

date
Maturity 

date

Total 
investment 
duration in 

days Principal Rate
Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed 31/10/2016 30/10/2017 364 2,000,000 0.90%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed 08/12/2016 06/12/2017 363 1,000,000 0.80%
Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed 23/03/2017 19/12/2017 271 1,500,000 0.80%
National Counties Building Society Fixed 29/03/2017 15/01/2018 292 2,000,000 0.70%
Progressive Building Society Fixed 04/05/2017 15/02/2018 287 2,000,000 0.67%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed 12/05/2017 15/11/2017 187 2,000,000 0.57%
Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed 17/05/2017 19/03/2018 306 1,000,000 0.69%
National Counties Building Society Fixed 22/05/2017 19/02/2018 273 1,000,000 0.68%
Principality Building Society Fixed 02/06/2017 27/11/2017 178 1,000,000 0.49%
Places for People Homes (HA) Fixed 19/06/2017 18/06/2018 364 2,000,000 1.25%
Santander UK Fixed 15/06/2017 15/12/2017 183 3,000,000 0.70%
Cumberland Building Society Fixed 26/06/2017 04/10/2017 100 1,000,000 0.37%
Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed 30/06/2017 29/06/2018 364 2,000,000 0.94%
Skipton Building Society Fixed 28/06/2017 27/06/2018 364 5,000,000 0.77%
Nottingham Building Society Fixed 28/06/2017 04/01/2018 190 2,000,000 0.51%
Principality Building Society Fixed 05/07/2017 19/03/2018 257 2,000,000 0.60%
Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed 19/07/2017 15/03/2018 239 2,000,000 0.62%
Close Brothers Ltd Fixed 29/09/2017 28/09/2018 364 2,000,000 0.90%
Cumberland Building Society Fixed 31/07/2017 30/10/2017 91 2,000,000 0.36%
Nottingham Building Society Fixed 01/08/2017 15/02/2018 198 1,500,000 0.54%
Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed 19/09/2017 18/09/2018 364 2,000,000 0.99%
LGIM MMF * 7,000,000 0.19%
Goldman Sachs MMF * 3,200,000 0.13%
Total short term cash 
investments (<1 yr duration)

50,200,000

Kingston Upon Hull City Council Fixed 19/08/2013 19/08/2020 2,557 2,000,000 2.70%
Kingston Upon Hull City Council Fixed 15/01/2014 15/01/2021 2,557 2,000,000 2.50%
Close Brothers Fixed 16/11/2015 16/11/2017 731 2,000,000 1.60%
Places for People Homes (HA) Fixed 15/06/2016 15/06/2018 730 2,000,000 1.70%
Total long-term cash 
investments (>1 yr duration)

8,000,000

CCLA Property 2,636,676 variable

Total Investments 60,836,676

*  Rates are variable.  Returns shown represent prevailing rates at end Q2 2017.

Page 213

Agenda Item 13



Appendix A3

A3 – 1

South Oxfordshire District Council

Investment returns achieved against benchmark

Benchmark 
Return Actual Return

Growth 
(Below)/above 
Benchmark Benchmarks

Bank & Building Society deposits - internally 
managed 0.18% 2.12% 1.94% 3 Month LIBID
Equities 1.50% 5.12% 3.62% FTSE All Shares Index

 All benchmarks managed by the treasury team were met in the first six months of 
the year.  

CCLA

Annualised total return performance
Performance to 31 March 2017 1 year 3 years 5 years
The local authorities property fund 3.07% 10.55% 9.81%
Benchmark - IPD property index 4.58% 10.69% 8.81%

 The CCLA investment is a long term holding.  The above table shows the 
performance of the fund as a whole and the longer term performance should be 
used as a guide to returns achievable in the medium term.

 South invested £5 million into the fund and in the first six months of 2017/18, 
achieved a return of 4.88 per cent calculated as a ratio of income over the market 
value held as at 30 September 2017.  This is not the same basis upon which the 
performance of the fund above is calculated. 

Page 214

Agenda Item 13



Appendix A4

A4 - 1

Vale of White Horse District Council

Investment returns achieved against benchmark
Benchmark 

return
Actual return Growth 

(below)/above 
benchmark

Benchmarks

% % %
Internally managed - Bank & Building 
Society deposits

0.18% 0.96% 0.78% 3 month LIBID

 All benchmarks managed by the treasury team were met in the first six 
months of the year.  

CCLA

Annualised total return performance
Performance to 31 March 2017 1 year 3 years 5 years
The local authorities property fund 3.07% 10.55% 9.81%
Benchmark - IPD property index 4.58% 10.69% 8.81%

 The CCLA investment is a long term holding.  The above table shows 
the performance of the fund as a whole and the longer term 
performance should be used as a guide to returns achievable in the 
medium term.

 Vale invested £2 million into the fund and in the first six months of 
2017/18, achieved a return of 4.88 per cent calculated as a ratio of 
income over the market value held as at 30 September 2017.  This is 
not the same basis upon which the performance of the fund above is 
calculated.

Page 215

Agenda Item 13



Appendix B1

B1 - 1

South Oxfordshire District Council

Prudential indicators as at 30th September 2017
2017/18 Actual  as at

Original Estimate 30-Sep
Debt £m £m
Authorised limit for external debt
Borrow ing 30 0
Other long term liabilities 0 0

30 0
Operational boundary for external debt
Borrow ing 25 0
Other long term liabilities 0 0

25 0
Interest rate exposures
Maximum fixed rate borrowing 100% 0
Maximum variable rate borrowing 100% 0

Investments
Interest rate exposures
Limits on fixed interest rates 100% 80%
Limits on variable interest rates 50 6

Principal sums invested > 364 days
Upper limit for principal sums invested >364 days 70 26

Page 216

Agenda Item 13



Appendix B2

B2 - 1

Vale of White Horse District Council

Prudential indicators as at 30th September 2017
2017/18 Actual  as at

Original estimate 30-Sep
£m £m

Authorised limit for external debt
Borrowing 30 0
Other long term liabilities 5 0

35 0
Operational boundary for external debt
Borrowing 25 0
Other long term liabilities 0 0

25 0
Interest rate exposures
Maximum fixed rate borrowing 100% 0
Maximum variable rate borrowing 100% 0

Investments
Interest rate exposures
Limits on fixed interest rates 100% 79%
Limits on variable interest rates 50 10

Principal sums invested > 364 days
Upper limit for principal sums invested >364 days 40 8

Page 217

Agenda Item 13



Appendix C1

C1 - 1

Prudential indicators – explanatory note

Debt

There are two limits on external debt: the ‘Operational Boundary’ and the ‘Authorised 
Limit’.   Both are consistent with the current commitments, existing plans and the 
proposals in the budget report for capital expenditure and financing, and with 
approved treasury management policy statement and practices.  They are both based 
on estimates of most likely, but not worst case scenario.  

The key difference is that the Authorised Limit cannot be breached without prior 
approval of the Council.  It therefore includes more headroom to take account of 
eventualities such as delays in generating capital receipts, forward borrowing to take 
advantage of attractive interest rates, use of borrowing in place of operational leasing, 
“invest to save” projects, occasional short term borrowing to cover temporary revenue 
cash flow shortfalls as well as an assessment of risks involved in managing cash 
flows.  

The Operational Boundary is a more realistic indicator of the likely position.

Interest rate exposures

The maximum proportion of interest on borrowing which is subject to fixed/variable 
rate of interest.

Investments

Interest rate exposure

The purpose of these indicators is to set ranges that will limit exposure to interest rate 
movement. The indicator required by the Treasury Management Code considers the 
net position of borrowing and investment and is based on principal sums outstanding.

Principal sums invested

This indicator sets a limit on the level of investments that can be made for more than 
364 days.

Page 218

Agenda Item 13



Report to:
Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee 
Cabinet
Council
Report of Head of Finance
Author: Rhona Bellis
Tel: 01235 422497
E-mail: Rhona.bellis@southandvale.gov.uk
Cabinet Member responsible: Jane Murphy
Tel: 07970 932054
E-mail: jane.murphy@southoxon.gov.uk 
To: Joint Audit & Governance Committee                             29 January 2018 
To: Cabinet                                                                            1 February 2018
To: Council                                                                          15 February 2018

Treasury management strategy 
2018/19 

Recommendations:

The joint audit and governance committee recommends to Cabinet and Council:

1. To approve the treasury management strategy set out in appendix A to this report;

2. To approve the prudential indicators and treasury limits for the period 2018/19 to 
2020/21 as set out in table 2, appendix A;

3. To approve the annual investment strategy set out in appendix A (paragraphs 18 to 
58) and the lending criteria detailed in table 5.

That Cabinet:

Considers any comments from committee and recommends Council to approve the 
report. 

Purpose of report

1. This report presents the council’s Treasury Management Strategy (TMS) for 
2018/19.  This sets out how the council’s treasury service will support capital 

Page 219

Agenda Item 14



investment decisions, and how the treasury management operates day to day.  It 
sets out the limitations on treasury management activity governed by the prudential 
indicators, within which the council’s treasury function must operate.  The strategy 
is included as appendix A to the report.  This report includes the three elements 
required by legislation as follows:

 The prudential indicators required by the CIPFA Prudential Code for 
Capital Finance in Local Authorities;

 The annual investment strategy.  This sets out the council’s criteria for 
selecting counterparties and limiting exposure to the risk of loss on its 
investments.  This strategy is in accordance with the DCLG investment 
guidance and forms part of the treasury management strategy (appendix 
A, paragraphs 18-58);

 A statutory duty to approve a minimum revenue provision policy 
statement (appendix A, paragraphs 50-54).

It is a requirement of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code 2011 that this report 
is approved by full Council on an annual basis.

Strategic objectives

2. Managing the finances of the authority in accordance with the treasury 
management strategy will help to ensure that resources are available to deliver its 
services and meet the council’s strategic objectives.

Background

3. ‘Treasury management’ is the planning of the council’s cash flows, its banking, 
money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks 
associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent 
with those risks.

4. The funding of the council’s capital expenditure is also a function of treasury 
management.  The capital programme provides a guide to the funding needs of the 
council and the long term cash flow plans to ensure that the council can meet its 
capital spending obligations.

5. Treasury investments are effectively what the council does with its cash resources 
before it is spent on the provision of services and the funding of the capital 
programme.  All expenditure of a capital nature is managed through the council’s 
capital programme and is not covered by this report.  The council’s property 
investment policy no longer forms part of this report.

6. The treasury management and annual investment strategy set out the council’s 
policies for managing investments and confirms the council gives priority to the 
security and liquidity of those investments.  It also includes the prudential indicators 
for the next three years; these demonstrate that the council’s capital investment 
plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable.

7. The council’s treasury management strategy 2018/19 is attached in appendix A.  
Whilst every attempt has been made to minimise the technical content of this 
report, it is, by its very nature and due to the need for compliance with associated 

Page 220

Agenda Item 14



guidance, technical in parts.   A glossary of terms in appendix F should aid 
understanding of some technical terms used in the report.

8. CIPFA is currently conducting a review of the “Prudential Code” and the “Treasury 
Management Code of Practice”. This review is particularly focused on ‘non-treasury’ 
investments, especially the purchase of investment property and other commercial 
activities that aim to generate income; but may require external borrowing (or the 
use of existing cash balances) to raise the cash to finance such activities. 

9. The finalised codes are not expected until January 2018 and therefore the treasury 
management strategy set out in appendix A to this report, has been prepared in 
accordance with the current codes of practice. 

10. To ensure the council’s treasury management strategy is compliant with the new 
CIPFA Codes, a revised treasury management strategy will produced during 2018 if 
required.  This will be subject to the same process of approvals as the current 
strategy. 

Recommended changes to the treasury management strategy
11.Council approved the 2017/18 treasury management strategy on 16 February 

2017.  The proposed strategy for 2018/19 includes the changes detailed below, 
which cabinet is asked to recommend to council:

Investment type addition

Adding another investment type will allow the council wider choice of investment in 
the future as the pool of low risk counterparties reduces.  There are no plans 
currently to invest in this vehicle.

 To add Non-UCITS Retail Schemes (NURS) to the strategy with a limit of £5 
million

Maturity period adjustment

This change is proposed to reflect more closely the risk of these investments in 
the period over which investments can be made.

 To change the maximum maturity period from 1 year to 2 years for institutions 
with a minimum rating of F1/A-

 To change the maximum maturity period from 2 years to 1 year for institutions 
with a minimum rating of F1/A

Maximum ratio of total investment adjustment

Over the last year, the council’s treasury balances have exceeded the historical 
levels upon which the treasury limits were based.  This situation is expected to 
continue into the future and to ensure that the council’s treasury limits now reflect 
the organisations needs the following changes are proposed: 

 To increase the maximum investment total with building societies with assets 
over £1,000 million to 30 per cent

 To increase the maximum investment total with building societies with assets 
over £3,000 million to 40 per cent

Page 221

Agenda Item 14



 To increase the maximum investment total with building societies with assets 
over £5,000 million to 50 per cent

Financial implications and risk assessment
12. This report and all associated policies and strategies set out the parameters the 

council must work within.  It is important that the council follows the approved 
treasury management strategy which is designed to help protect the council’s 
finances by managing its risk exposure.

13. In the last few years investment income has fallen due to lower interest rates. In the 
medium term interest rates are expected to remain low.  The Bank of England’s 
Monetary Policy Committee increased interest rates by 0.25 per cent in November 
2017 and has hinted that rates could rise further in 2018. Any rate rises are 
expected to be slow and gradual given the continued uncertainty in the economy.  

14. The table below gives an estimate of the investment income achievable for the next 
five years.

Table 1: Medium term investment income forecast
2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Forecast as at December 2017 2,940 2,955 2,882 2,732 2,518

The 2018/19 budget setting report and medium term financial plan will take into 
account the latest projections of anticipated investment income.

Legal implications

15. There are no significant legal implications as a result of the recommendations in 
this report.  Compliance with the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management 
in the Public Services and the CLG Local Government Investment Guidance 
provides assurance that the council’s investments are, and will continue to be, 
within its legal powers. 

16. The council must approve any amendment to the treasury management strategy 
and annual investment strategy in accordance with the Local Government Act 2003 
(the Act), the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the Public 
Services and the CLG Local Government Investment Guidance under Section 15(1) 
(a) Local Government Act 2003 and CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance.

Conclusion

17. This report provides details of the treasury management strategy and the annual 
investment strategy for 2018/19 which are appended to this report, together with the 
prudential indicators for approval to council.  These documents provide the 
parameters within which officers will operate the council’s treasury management 
function.

Page 222

Agenda Item 14



Background papers

 CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services Code of Practice and Cross 
Sectoral Guidance Notes (revised 2011)

 CLG Local Government Investment Guidance under Section 15(1)(a) Local 
Government Act 2003 and CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance.

 Treasury Management Investment Strategy 2017/18 (cabinet 1 February 2017, 
council 16 February 2017)

Appendices 

Appendix A Treasury Management Strategy 2018/19
Appendix B Economic conditions and prospects for interest rates
Appendix C Risk and performance benchmarking
Appendix D Explanation of prudential indicators
Appendix E TMP1
Appendix F Glossary of terms

Page 223

Agenda Item 14



Appendix A
Treasury Management Strategy 2018/19 

Introduction
1. The Local Government Act 2003 and supporting regulations require the council to 

‘have regard to’ the CIPFA Prudential Code and to set Prudential Indicators for the 
next three years to ensure that the council’s capital investment plans are affordable, 
prudent and sustainable.

2. The Act requires the council to set out its treasury strategy for borrowing and to 
prepare an Annual Investment Strategy (as required by Investment Guidance issued 
subsequent to the Act).  This sets out the council’s policies for managing its 
investments and for giving priority to the security and liquidity of those investments.

3. The strategy in respect of the following aspects of the treasury management function 
is based on treasury officers’ views on interest rates, supplemented with market 
forecasts provided by the council’s treasury advisor, Link Asset Services.  The 
strategy covers:
 Prudential and treasury indicators in force that will limit the treasury risk and 

activities of the council;
 Current treasury position
 Borrowing strategy
 Policy on borrowing in advance of need;
 Investment strategy;
 Counterparty selection and limits;
 Policy on use of external service providers;
 Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) statement;
 Treasury management scheme of delegation and Section 151 role.

4. It is a statutory requirement under Section 32 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992, for the council to produce a balanced budget.  In particular, Section 32 
requires a local authority to calculate its budget requirement for each year to include 
the revenue costs that flow from capital financing decisions.  This means that 
increases in capital expenditure must be limited to a level where any increases in 
charges to revenue from:
 Increases in interest charges caused by increased borrowing to finance 

additional capital expenditure, and
 Any increases in running costs from new capital projects are identified and 

limited to a level which is affordable.
A key requirement of this report is to explain the risks, and the management of those 
risks, associated with providing the treasury service.  Legislation requires that as a 
minimum two further treasury reports are provided: a mid-year monitoring report and an 
outturn report after the year-end that reports on actual activity for the year.

Page 224

Agenda Item 14



Appendix A
Treasury Limits for 2018/19 to 2020/21

5. It is a statutory duty, under Section 3 of the Act and supporting regulations for the 
council to determine and keep under review how much it can afford to borrow.  The 
amount so determined is called the “Affordable Borrowing Limit”. The Authorised 
Limit is the legislative limit specified in the Act.

6. The council must have regard to the Prudential Code when setting the Authorised 
Limit, which essentially requires it to ensure that total capital expenditure remains 
within sustainable limits and in particular, that the impact upon its future council tax is 
‘acceptable’.

7. The Authorised Limit is set on a rolling basis, for the forthcoming financial year and 
two successive financial years.

8. The following indicators set the parameters within which we manage the overall 
capital investment and treasury management functions.  There are specific treasury 
activity limits, which aim to contain the activity of the treasury function in order to 
manage risk and reduce the impact of an adverse movement in interest rates.  
However if these are set to be too restrictive they will impair the opportunities to 
reduce costs/improve performance.  The limits are set out in table 2 below.

Cabinet is asked to recommend council to approve the limits:

Table 2: Prudential Indicators 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
approved

£m £m £m £m

Debt
Authorised limit for external debt
Borrowing 30 30 30 30
Other long term liabilities 0 0 0 0

30 30 30 30
Operational boundary for external debt
Borrowing 25 25 25 25
Other long term liabilities 0 0 0 0

25 25 25 25
Interest rate exposures
Maximum fixed rate borrowing 100% 100% 100% 100%
Maximum variable rate borrowing 100% 100% 100% 100%

Investments £m £m £m £m
Interest rate exposures
Limits on fixed interest rates 100% 100% 100% 100%
Limits on variable interest rates 50 50 50 50
Prinicipal sums invested > 364 days
Upper limit for principal sums invested > 364 days 70 70 70 70

Current position
9. The maturity structure of the council’s investments at 31 October 2017 was as 

follows:

Page 225

Agenda Item 14



Appendix A
Table 3: Maturity structure of investments

Classification 
of investment 
at deal date

% holding Classification 
as at 31/10/17

% holding

£'000 £'000

Call 1,342 1% 1,342 1%
Money market funds 17,690 13% 17,690 12%
Less than 6 months 0 0% 46,500 32%
6 months to 1 year 81,500 58% 40,000 28%
1 - 2 years 7,000 5% 7,000 5%
2 - 3 years 5,000 4% 5,000 3%
3 - 7 years 12,000 9% 7,000 5%
CCLA - property fund 5,000 4% 6,351 4%
Equities 10,000 7% 14,108 10%

139,532 100% 144,991 100%

Note: £145 million does not represent uncommitted resource the council has at its disposal.  This 
amount includes council tax receipts held prior to forwarding to Oxfordshire County Council and the 
Police and Crime Commissioner for the Thames Valley, business rate receipts prior to payment to the 
government and committed capital and revenue balances.  Details of the council’s uncommitted 
balances are provided in the annual budget and council tax setting report.

The figure for total investments shown above excludes the £15 million 20-year loan to SOHA 
made in 2013/14 and the balance outstanding with Kaupthing Singer & Friedlander (KSF).

10.The council holds as above, 86 per cent of its investments in the form of cash 
deposits, 73 per cent is invested for fixed terms with a fixed investment return and 13 
per cent on call accounts, with the remainder held in non-cash deposits.  Typically 
the council restricts lending activity to UK institutions and the highest rated 
counterparties.

11.The council’s considerations for investment will remain security, liquidity and yield – 
in that order.  Within this framework a possible optimum portfolio distribution of cash 
investments could be considered as follows:

Optimum portfolio distribution

50%

30%

7%
7%
6%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100% Certificates of deposit and
pooled bond funds
Enhanced cash funds

Call accounts and money
market funds
Long-term (+365 day) fixed
term cash deposits
Short-term fixed term cash
deposits

Note: This represents officer interpretation of a diversified portfolio and from time to time actual 
holdings will vary from this significantly.  

Page 226

Agenda Item 14



Appendix A
Investment performance for the year to 31 October 2017.

12.The council’s budgeted investment return for 2017/18 is £2.2 million, and the actual 
interest earned to date is shown as follows:

Table 4: Investment interest earned to date and outturn estimate

Annual Actual Annual Forecast
Investment type Budget to date Forecast Variation

2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18
£000 £000 £000 £000

Position at end October 2017 2,201 1,859 2,621 420

Total interest 2,201 1,859 2,621 420

Interest Earned

            
Borrowing Strategy 2018/19 

13.The annual treasury management strategy has to set out details of the council’s 
borrowing requirement, any maturing debt which will need to be re-financed, and the 
effect this will have on the treasury position over the next three years.  This council 
has no external debt and in general, the council will borrow for one of two purposes:

 to support cash flow in the short-term; 
 to fund capital investment over the medium to long term.

Any borrowing undertaken will be within the scope of the boundaries given in the 
prudential indicators shown in table 2. Which allow the council to borrow up to a 
maximum of £30 million, if such a need arose.  This also allows short-term borrowing 
for the cash flow management activities of the authority. 

14.The existing capital programme can be financed from internal resources.  Additional 
expenditure committed in the future can be financed from internal resources (either 
by use of reserves or internal borrowing) or externally (through prudential borrowing).  
Any decision on borrowing will be taken by the Head of Finance based on the 
optimum cost to the council.

15.Any borrowing for capital financing purposes will be assessed by the head of finance 
to be prudent, sustainable and affordable.

16.This strategy allows the head of finance to determine the most suitable repayment 
terms of any borrowing to demonstrate affordability and sustainability in the medium 
term financial plan if required.  As a general rule, the term of any borrowing will not 
be longer than the expected life of the capital asset being created.

Policy on borrowing in advance of need

17.The council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs, purely in order to 
profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed.  Any decision to borrow in 
advance will be within approved Capital Financing Requirement estimates, and will 
be considered carefully to ensure value for money can be demonstrated and that the 
council can ensure the security of such funds.  In determining if any borrowing will be 
undertaken in advance of need, the council will:

Page 227

Agenda Item 14



Appendix A

 Consider the impact of borrowing in advance on investment cash balances and 
the exposure to counterparty risk.  Any risk associated with any borrowing in 
advance of activity will be subject to prior appraisal and subsequent reporting 
through the mid-year or annual reporting process.

 Consider the optimum point to borrow in advance of need to obtain the most 
beneficial rates on any loan raised to minimise the cost of borrowing over the 
duration of the loan.

Annual investment strategy 

18.The primary aim of the council’s investment strategy is to maintain the security and 
liquidity of its investments, yield or return on the investment will be a secondary 
consideration, subject to prudent security and liquidity.  The council will ensure:

 It has sufficient liquidity in its investments to cover cash flow.  For this purpose it 
has set out parameters for determining the maximum periods for which funds 
may prudently be committed.  

 It maintains a policy covering the categories of investment types it will invest in, 
criteria for choosing investment counterparties with adequate security, and 
monitoring their security.

19.The strategy aims to provide a high degree of flexibility to take appropriate lending 
decisions, with a view to producing a portfolio with an even spread of maturity 
periods. This aim is to provide a more even and predictable investment return in the 
medium term. 

20.The council’s head of finance will ensure a counterparty list (a list of named 
institutions) is maintained in compliance with the recommended credit rating criteria 
(table 5) and will revise the criteria and submit any changes to the credit rating 
criteria to council for approval as necessary. 

Investment types

21.The types of investment that the council can use are summarised below. These are 
split under the headings of specified and non-specified in accordance with the 
statutory guidance.  

Specified investment instruments (maximum period 1 year)

22.These are sterling investments of not more than one year maturity, or those where 
the council has the right to be repaid within 12 months if it wishes.  These would 
include sterling investments with:

 UK government Debt Management Agency Deposit Facility (DMADF)
 UK government – treasury stock (Gilts) with less than one year to maturity
 Supranational bonds of less than one year’s duration
 Deposits with UK local authorities
 Pooled investment vehicles such as Money Market Funds (MMF) (AAA rated)
 Deposits with banks and building societies (minimum F1/A- rated)

Page 228

Agenda Item 14



Appendix A
 Certificates of deposits issued by banks and building societies (minimum rating as 

above)

Non-specified investment instruments 

23.These are any other type of investment (i.e. investments not defined as specified, 
above).  Examples of non-specified investments include any sterling investments 
with:

 Supranational bonds of 1 to 10 years maturity
 UK treasury stock (Gilts) with a maturity of 1 to 10 years
 Unrated building societies (minimum asset value £1 billion)
 Bank and building society cash deposits up to 5 years (minimum F1/A-)
 Deposits with UK local authorities up to 25 years
 Corporate bonds
 Pooled property, pooled bond funds and UK pooled equity funds
 Non-UCITS Retail Schemes (NURS)

Other non-specified investment instruments

24.Other non-specified investment instruments include: 

 Fixed term deposits with variable rate and variable maturities 
 Investment  in Housing Associations

Approach to investing

25.The council currently holds approximately £128 million core cash balances which are 
available to invest for more than one year.  This is expected to reduce over the 
medium term as the approved capital expenditure is incurred and not replaced by 
capital receipts.  In addition the council has funds which are available on a temporary 
basis to invest. These are held pending payment over to another body such as 
precept payments and council tax.  The amount can vary between £5 million and £15 
million throughout the year and should only be invested short term (under one year).  
Investments will be made with reference to known cash flow requirements (liquidity).  

26.  While rates remain historically low the council will aim to keep investments relatively 
short term, but will continue to look for opportunities to fix lending in the medium term 
with highly rated institutions when possible for core cash balances.  The aim is to 
increase the weighted average maturity of the portfolio in order to reduce maturity 
risk.

27.Officers will continue to implement an operational strategy which provides tight 
controls on the investments placed.  Where possible, opportunities to spread the 
investment risk over different types of instruments will be considered.

28.Should market conditions deteriorate suddenly to the extent that the council is unable 
to place money with institutions with the necessary credit rating, it will make use of 
the UK Government deposit account (DMADF). 

29.The council has the authority to lend to other local authorities at market rates.  
Current investments include £7 million with Kingston Upon Hull City Council and £5 
million placed with Bury Metropolitan Borough Council.  Whilst investments with other 

Page 229

Agenda Item 14



Appendix A
local authorities are considered to be supported by central government, officers will 
consider the financial viability and sustainability of the individual local authority before 
any funds are advanced. 

30.Further investment in property funds will be looked at in more detail for consideration.  
In 2013/14 the council invested £5 million in the Churches Charities and Local 
Authorities pooled property investment fund (CCLA).  

31.Money market funds are mainly used for liquidity; they also provide security and 
spread portfolio risk.  Officers will always monitor the council’s exposure to these 
funds in order to manage our security risk.

32.Currently the council does not make use of an external fund manager.  Whilst there 
are presently no plans for this situation to change, this will continue to be kept under 
review.

 
33.Bond funds can be used to diversify the portfolio, whilst maintaining an element of 

liquidity and security. These will be considered and reviewed as an investment 
possibility to spread portfolio risk.

34.One option to offer diversification in the council’s investment portfolio would be to 
make use of enhanced cash funds.  Possible use of such funds would be intended 
for longer term investments than with traditional money market funds (i.e. for possible 
investment durations of 3 – 6 months).  Investments placed with enhanced cash 
funds are callable and so offer the option to be withdrawn before maturity, although 
this is likely to have an adverse impact on the return on the investment.

35.Unlike money market funds, enhanced cash funds have a variable net asset value 
(VNAV).  This means the assets are ‘marked to market’ (re-valued to current market 
value) on a daily basis and the fund unit price adjusted accordingly.  Under this 
calculation basis the unit price fluctuates and could, therefore, be higher or lower 
than the original investment when it is redeemed.  Any use of enhanced cash funds 
would be restricted to the high quality counterparty credit criteria as set out in Table 5 
below.

36.The council does not currently make use of certificates of deposit.  Consideration will 
be given to their use to assist diversification of the investment portfolio.  Certificates 
of deposit have the same level of ranking and security as ordinary fixed term 
deposits but have the option of being traded before maturity.  Certificates of deposit 
are bought and sold on the stock market and their price can go up or down prior to 
their redemption date.  If held to maturity the investment will return their issue value.  
The council would only normally look to enter into such investments on a held to 
maturity basis.

Counterparty selection

37.Treasury management risk is the risk of loss of capital to the council.  To minimise 
this risk, the council uses credit rating information when considering who to lend to.  
Link Asset Services provides the council with credit rating updates from all three 
ratings agencies – Standard & Poor’s, Fitch and Moodys.

38.The council will not use the approach suggested by CIPFA of using the lowest rating 
from all three rating agencies to determine the creditworthy counterparties.  This is 

Page 230

Agenda Item 14



Appendix A
because adopting this approach could leave the council with too few counterparties 
for the strategy to be workable.  Instead, counterparty investment limits will be set by 
reference to all of the assigned ratings.

39.Where counterparties fail to meet the minimum required criteria (Table 5 below) they 
will be omitted from the counterparty list.  Any rating changes and rating watches 
(notification of a rating change) are provided to officers almost immediately after they 
occur and this information is considered before any deal is entered into.  Extreme 
market movements may result in a downgrade of an institution or removal from the 
council’s lending list.

40.Additional requirements under the CIPFA Treasury Management Code require the 
council to supplement the credit rating data with operational market information such 
as credit default swaps (CDS), negative watches and outlooks, which are considered 
when assessing the security of counterparties.  This additional information is used so 
that the council does not rely solely on the current credit ratings of counterparties.

41.Where it is felt the council would benefit from utilising government guarantees 
provided by countries with an AAA rating, the council may lend to institutions covered 
by such guarantees.  Any decision to lend in this way will be subject to consultation 
with the agreement of the cabinet member responsible for finance. 

Country and sector considerations

42.The council has determined that it will only use approved counterparties outside the 
UK from countries with a minimum sovereign credit rating of AAA from Fitch Ratings.

Counterparty limits

43. In the normal course of the council’s cash flow operations it is expected that both 
specified and non-specified investments will be used for the control of liquidity as 
both categories allow for short term investments.  The use of longer term instruments 
(greater than one year from inception to repayment) will fall in the non-specified 
investment category.  These instruments will be used where the council’s liquidity 
requirements are safeguarded.  The council will lend to institutions that meet the 
following criteria:

Page 231

Agenda Item 14



Appendix A

Counterparty
Limit

Counterparty £m
Bank - part nationalised UK UK Sovereign £20m 4 years 100%
Building societies - assets > £1,000m n/a £10m 1 year 30%
Building societies - assets > £3,000m n/a £12m 1 year 40%
Building societies - assets > £5,000m n/a £15m 1 year 50%
Corporate bonds F1+/A+ £5m variable 10%
Enhanced cash funds (VNAV) AAA £20m variable 50%
Non-UCITS Retail Scheme (NURS) n/a £5m variable 15%
Housing associations F1+/A+ £15m variable 15%
Institutions with a minimum rating F1+/AA- £15m 4 years 25%
Institutions with a minimum rating F1+/A+ £15m 3 years 25%
Institutions with a minimum rating F1/A- £15m 2 years 30%
Institutions with a minimum rating F1/A £15m 1 year 50%
Local Authorities / parish councils n/a £15m 25 years 50%
Managed bond fund F1/A- £15m 1 year 40%
Money Market Fund (CNAV) AAA £20m liquid 100%
Pooled bond fund F1+/A+ £5m variable 10%
Pooled property fund n/a £10m variable 15%
Property related investments n/a £30m variable 80%
Supranationals AAA £10m 10 years 40%
UK equities n/a £10m variable 20%
UK government - gilts UK Sovereign £15m 15 years 10%
UK government - treasury bills UK Sovereign £15m 15 years 10%
UK Govt & DMADF UK Sovereign no limit n/a 100%

Table 5: Counterparty limits
Minimum Fitch 

Rating ( or 
equivalent)

Max. maturity 
period

Maximum 
% of total 

investment
s

 

44.The criteria for choosing counterparties provides a sound approach to investment.  
Whilst councillors are asked to approve the criteria in table 5, under exceptional 
market conditions the head of finance may temporarily restrict further investment 
activity to those counterparties considered of higher credit quality than the minimum 
criteria set out for approval.  

Fund managers
45.The council does not currently employ any external fund managers.  However in the 

event of such an appointment, appointees will comply with this and subsequent 
treasury strategies.  This strategy empowers the Section 151 officer to appoint such 
an external manager to manage a proportion of the council’s investment portfolio if 
this is advantageous.  Situations in which this might be advantageous include 
benchmarking the performance of the treasury team;  benefiting from the often 
extensive credit risk and economic modelling resources of external fund managers 
and resources necessary to hold liquid instruments for trading. 

Page 232

Agenda Item 14



Appendix A
Risk and performance benchmarks

46.A requirement of the Code is that security and liquidity benchmarks are considered 
and approved. This is in addition to yield benchmarks which are used to assess 
performance.  The benchmarks are guidelines (not limits) so may be breached 
depending on the movement in interest rates and counterparty criteria.  Their 
purpose is to allow officers to monitor the current trend position and amend the 
operational strategy depending on any changes.  Any breach of the benchmarks will 
be reported, with an explanation in the mid-year or annual report to audit and 
corporate governance committee.  Detailed information for the assessment of risk is 
shown in appendix C. 

47.Performance indicators are set to assess the adequacy of the treasury function over 
the year.  These are distinct historic performance indicators, as opposed to the 
predominantly forward looking prudential indicators.  The indicators used to assess 
the performance of the treasury function are:

Table 6: investment benchmarks

Investment category Benchmark

Bank & building society 3 Month LIBID
deposits - non managed
Equities FTSE all shares index
Property related investments IPD balanced Property Unit Trust Index

Performance against these indicators will be reported in both the annual mid-year and 
year-end treasury reports.

Policy on the use of treasury management advisers  
48.The council has a joint contract for treasury management advisors with Vale of White 

Horse District Council.  Link Asset Services (was Capita Asset Services) provides a 
range of services, which include:

 technical support on treasury matters, capital finance issues, statutory reports;
 economic forecasts and interest rate analysis;
 credit ratings/market information service involving the three main credit rating 

agencies;
 strategic advice including a review of the investment and borrowing strategies and 

policy documents.
49.The council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions 

remains with the organisation at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not 
placed upon our external service providers.  It also recognises that there is value in 
employing external providers of treasury management services in order to acquire 
access to specialist skills, resources and up to date market information.

Page 233

Agenda Item 14



Appendix A
Minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy statement 2018/19

50.MRP is the amount out of revenues set aside each year as a provision for debt i.e. 
the provision in respect of capital expenditure financed by borrowing.  

51.The council is required by regulation to approve an annual MRP policy before the 
start of the year to which it relates.  Any in-year changes must also be submitted to 
the council for approval.

52.Currently, the council’s MRP liability is nil.  This will remain the case unless new 
capital expenditure is financed by external or internal borrowing.

53.The council has no outstanding capital liability and therefore the MRP for 2018/19 is 
nil.  This will remain the case unless new capital expenditure is financed by 
borrowing.

54.The council’s current capital programme can be financed from internal resources.  
However, new capital growth ideas may require external borrowing.  If borrowing is 
undertaken then the council will be required by statute to set aside funds in the 
annual revenue budget to amortise the principal element of any borrowing – this is 
the MRP.  There will also be a requirement to set aside revenue budget for the 
interest payments on any borrowing raised.  Loans will generally be taken over the 
life of the assets being financed and amortised accordingly.  The Head of Finance 
will determine the most appropriate repayment method, term of borrowing and 
duration of borrowing.  As a general illustration, Table 7 below gives an example of 
the annual revenue costs associated with borrowing an amount of £2.5 million over a 
50 year period, based on the current district tax base of 56,163 Band D equivalents:

Table 7: Example MRP and interest calculation

Loan amount £2,500,000
Loan duration 50 years
PWLB interest rate 2.45 per cent
2018/19 Taxbase 56,163

£ £ per band D
MRP element 50,000 0.89
Annual interest cost 61,250 1.09
Total 111,250 1.98

Councillor and officer training
55.The requirement for increased councillor consideration of treasury management 

matters and the need to ensure officers dealing with treasury management are 
trained and kept up to date requires a suitable training process for councillors and 
officers.  In compliance with the current CIPFA Code, the council has provided 
treasury management training to councillors in January 2017.  Further training will be 
provided as soon as practical during 2018/19 as expected changes in the CIPFA 
code become available. Other training is available on request.

Page 234

Agenda Item 14



Appendix A

Treasury management scheme of delegation and the role of the section 151 officer
56.The treasury management scheme of delegation and the role of the Section 151 

officer is as follows:

I. Council
 Receiving and approval of reports on treasury management policies, practices 

and activities;
 Approval of annual strategy.

II. Joint audit and governance Committee / Cabinet
 Approval of amendments to the organisations adopted clauses, treasury 

management policy statements and treasury management practices;
 Receiving and reviewing monitoring reports and acting on recommendations;
 Ensuring effective scrutiny of the treasury management function.

III. Section 151 Officer / Head of Finance
 Recommending clauses, treasury management policies/practices for approval, 

review and monitoring compliance;
 Submitting regular treasury management information reports;
 Submitting budgets and budget variations;
 Reviewing the performance of the treasury management function;
 Ensuring adequacy of treasury management resources and skills and the 

effective division of responsibilities within the treasury management function;
 Ensuring the adequacy of internal audit and liaising with external audit;
 Approving the selection of external service providers and agreeing terms of 

appointment.

Summary

57.Prior to the beginning of each financial year the council must approve the treasury 
management strategy.  The strategy sets the parameters within which officers can 
manage the council’s cash flows and invest any surplus funds.

58.This strategy provides a commentary on the current financial climate and sets out the 
council’s lending strategy in response to this.

Page 235

Agenda Item 14



Appendix B

Economic conditions and interest rate 
forecasts
1. In order to put the investment strategy into context it is necessary to consider the 

strength of the UK economy, external factors in the financial markets and their impact 
on interest rate forecasts.

UK economy

2. Since the second quarter of 2013 the UK has reported rising levels of GDP.  However, 
following the result of the EU referendum, growth has become volatile.  Indicators 
suggest we will still see growth thanks to low unemployment and household spending, 
but the rate of growth will be slower than previously forecast.

3.  Consumer Price Inflation is expected to peak very soon at 3.2 per cent.  Forward 
indications are that rates of inflation will fall once the devaluation effect of sterling starts 
to fall out of the 12 month statistics.

4. Uncertainty over Brexit is weighing heavy on economic data.  Little agreement over 
trade terms from 2019 is creating a lack of confidence with UK firms and is holding 
back investment.

5. Bank rate rose by 0.25 per cent in November 2017 to 0.50 per cent.  Forward guidance 
from the Bank of England states that they expect rates to rise twice more in the next 
three years, to reach 1.00 per cent by 2020.

Eurozone economy

6. Growth has slowed during quarter three of 2017 in the Eurozone, however growth 
remains at an annualised rate of 3 per cent.  Consumer confidence is rising, especially 
in Germany.  The Euro has slipped in value against the dollar due to expectations that 
there will be an interest rate rise in the US.  Rates in Europe are not expected to 
change.  

Link Asset Services forward view

7. Economic forecasting continues to be difficult given the number of external influences 
affecting the UK.  Key areas of risk include:

 Geopolitical risks, especially North Korea, but also in Europe and the Middle 
East, which could lead to increasing safe haven flows;

 UK economic growth and inflation;
 Rising protectionism under President Trump;

 A resurgence of the Eurozone sovereign debt crisis;
 Weak capitalization of some European banks; 
 A sharp Chinese downturn and its impact on emerging market countries.

Page 236

Agenda Item 14



Appendix B
Prospects for interest rates

8. The bank base rate is forecast to remain unchanged at 0.50 per cent, rising in Q4 in 
2018.  Link Asset Service’s central view for bank rate forecasts is shown below:

Dec-17 Mar-18 Jun-18 Sep-18 Dec-18 Mar-19 Jun-19 Sep-19 Dec-19 Mar-20
Bank of England base rate 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 1.00 1.00
PWLB rates

5 year borrowing 1.50 1.60 1.60 1.70 1.80 1.80 1.90 1.90 2.00 2.10
10 year borrowing 2.10 2.20 2.30 2.40 2.40 2.50 2.60 2.60 2.70 2.70
25 year borrowing 2.80 2.90 3.00 3.00 3.10 3.10 3.20 3.20 3.30 3.40
50 year borrowing 2.50 2.60 2.70 2.80 2.90 2.90 3.00 3.00 3.10 3.20

Page 237

Agenda Item 14



Appendix C

Benchmarking and Monitoring Security, 
Liquidity and Yield in the Investment 
Service.  
1. These benchmarks are targets and so could be exceeded from time to time.  Any 

variation will be reported, along with supporting reasons, in the Annual Treasury 
Report.

2. Yield.  Benchmarks are used to assess the performance of investments. The local 
measures of yield are as shown in Appendix A to this report.

 
3. Liquidity.  Liquidity is defined as the council “having adequate, though not excessive, 

cash resources, borrowing arrangements, overdrafts or standby facilities to enable it at 
all times to have the level of funds available to it which are necessary for the 
achievement of its business/service objectives” (CIPFA Treasury Management Code of 
Practice).  

4. In respect of this area the, the council shall seek to: 

 maintain a minimal balance held in the council’s main bank account at the 
close of each working day.  Transfers to the councils call accounts, MMF and 
investments will be arranged in order to achieve this, while maintaining 
access to adequate working capital at short notice.

 use the authorised bank overdraft facility or short term borrowing where there 
is clear business case for doing so, to cover working capital requirements at 
short notice 

5. Security of the investments.  In the context of benchmarking, assessing security is 
very much more a subjective area to assess.  Security is currently evidenced by the 
application of minimum credit quality criteria to investment counterparties, primarily 
through the use of credit ratings supplied by the three main credit rating agencies 
(Fitch, Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s).  Whilst this approach embodies security 
considerations, benchmarking levels of risk is more problematic.  One method to 
benchmark security risk is to assess the historic level of default against the minimum 
criteria used in the Council’s investment strategy.  The table beneath shows average 
defaults for differing periods of investment grade products for each Fitch long term 
rating category over the last 20-30 years.

Average defaults for differing periods of investment
Long 

term rating 1 year 2 years 3 years 4 years 5 years
AA 0.01% 0.02% 0.08% 0.16% 0.23%
A 0.07% 0.19% 0.36% 0.55% 0.78%
BBB 0.15% 0.46% 0.82% 1.26% 1.73%

Page 238

Agenda Item 14



Appendix C
6. The council’s minimum long term rating criteria is currently “A-” meaning the average 

expectation of default for a two year investment in a counterparty with an “A” long term 
rating would be 0.19 per cent of the total investment (e.g. for a £1 million investment 
the average loss would be £1,900).  This is only an average - any specific 
counterparty loss could potentially be higher or lower. These figures act as a proxy 
benchmark for risk across the portfolio.

Page 239

Agenda Item 14



Appendix D  
Explanation of Prudential Indicators

Prudential borrowing permits local government organisations to borrow to fund capital 
spending plans provided they could demonstrate their affordability.  Prudential indicators 
are the means to demonstrate affordability.

Authorised limit for external debt – this is the maximum limit for external borrowing.  
This is the statutory limit determined under section 3(1) of the Local Government Act 
2003.  This limit is set to allow sufficient headroom for day to day operational management 
of cash flows.

Operational boundary for external debt – this is set as the more likely amount that may 
be required for day to day cash flow.  

Upper limit for fixed and variable interest rate exposure – these limits allow the council 
flexibility in its investment and borrowing options.

Upper limit for total principal sums invested for over 364 days – the amount it is 
considered can be prudently invested for periods in excess of a year.

Page 240

Agenda Item 14



Appendix E
Treasury Management Practice (TMP) 1 – credit and counterparty risk management

The CLG issued Investment Guidance in 2010, and this forms the structure of the 
council’s policy below.  

The key aim of the guidance is to maintain the current requirement for councils to invest 
prudently, and that priority is given to security and liquidity before yield.  In order to 
facilitate this objective the guidance requires this council to have regard to the CIPFA 
publication Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice and Cross-
Sectoral Guidance Notes.  In accordance with the code, the head of finance has produced 
its treasury management practices (TMPs).  This part, TMP1(1), covering investment 
counterparty policy requires approval each year.

The key requirements of both the Code and the guidance are to set an annual investment 
strategy, as part of its annual treasury strategy for the following year, covering the 
identification and approval of the following:

 the strategy guidelines for decision making on investments, particularly non-
specified investments.

 the principles to be used to determine the maximum periods for which funds 
can be committed.

 specified investments the council will use.  These are high security (i.e. have a 
high credit rating, although this is defined by the council, and no guidelines are 
given), and high liquidity investments in sterling and with a maturity of no more 
than a year.

 non-specified investments, clarifying the greater risk implications, identifying 
the general types of investment that may be used and a limit to the overall 
amount of various categories that can be held at any time.

The investment policy proposed for the council is:

Strategy guidelines – The main strategy guidelines are contained in the body of the 
treasury strategy statement.

Specified investments – These investments are sterling investments of not more than 
one year maturity, or those which could be for a longer period but where the council has 
the right to be repaid within 12 months if it wishes.  These are considered low risk assets 
where the possibility of loss of principal or investment income is small.  These would 
include sterling investments with:

 UK government Debt Management Agency Deposit Facility (DMADF)
 UK government – treasury stock (Gilts) with less than one year to maturity
 Supranational bonds of less than one year’s duration
 Deposits with UK local authorities
 Pooled investment vehicles such as Money Market Funds (MMF) (AAA rated)
 Deposits with banks and building societies (minimum F1/A-)
 Certificates of deposits issued by banks and building societies (minimum rating 

as above)

Page 241

Agenda Item 14



Appendix E
Within these bodies, and in accordance with the Code, the council has set additional 
criteria to set the time and amount of monies which will be invested in these bodies.  
These criteria are as stated in table 5 to this report.

Non-specified investments

These are any other type of investment (i.e. not defined or specified above).  The 
identification and rationale supporting the selection of these other investments and the 
maximum limits to be applied are as set out in table 5.

Page 242

Agenda Item 14



Appendix F
GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Authorised Limit The maximum amount of external debt at any one time in the 
financial year.

Basis Point (BP) 1/100th of 1%, i.e. 0.01%

Base Rate Minimum lending rate of a bank or financial institution in the 
UK.

Benchmark A measure against which the investment policy or performance 
of a fund manager can be compared.

Bill of Exchange A financial instrument financing trade.

Callable Deposit A deposit placed with a bank or building society at a set rate for 
a set amount of time.  However, the borrower has the right to 
repay the funds on pre agreed dates, before maturity.  This 
decision is based on how market rates have moved since the 
deal was agreed.  If rates have fallen the likelihood of the 
deposit being repaid rises, as cheaper money can be found by 
the borrower.

Cash Fund 
Management

Fund management is the management of an investment 
portfolio of cash on behalf of a private client or an institution, 
the receipts and distribution of dividends and interest, and all 
other administrative work in connection with the portfolio.

Certificate of 
Deposit (CD)

Evidence of a deposit with a specified bank or building society 
repayable on a fixed date.  They are negotiable instruments 
and have a secondary market; therefore the holder of a CD is 
able to sell it to a third party before the maturity of the CD.

Commercial 
Paper

Short-term obligations with maturities ranging from 2 to 270 
days issued by banks, corporations and other borrowers.  Such 
instruments are unsecured and usually discounted, although 
some may be interest bearing.

Corporate Bond Strictly speaking, corporate bonds are those issued by 
companies.  However, the term is used to cover all bonds other 
than those issued by governments in their own currencies and 
includes issues by companies, supranational organisations and 
government agencies.

Counterparty Another (or the other) party to an agreement or other market 
contract (e.g. lender/borrower/writer of a swap/etc.)

Page 243

Agenda Item 14



Appendix F
CDS Credit Default Swap – a swap designed to transfer the credit 

exposure of fixed income products between parties.  The buyer 
of a credit swap receives credit protection, whereas the seller of 
the swap guarantees the credit worthiness of the product.  By 
doing this, the risk of default is transferred from the holder of 
the fixed income security to the seller of the swap.

CFR Capital Financing Requirement.

CIPFA Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy.

CLG Department for Communities and Local Government.

Derivative A contract whose value is based on the performance of an 
underlying financial asset, index or other investment, e.g. an 
option is a derivative because its value changes in relation to 
the performance of an underlying stock.

DMADF Deposit Account offered by the Debt Management Office, 
guaranteed by the UK government.

ECB European Central Bank – sets the central interest rates in the 
EMU area.  The ECB determines the targets itself for its 
interest rate setting policy; this is the keep inflation within a 
band of 0 to 2 per cent.  It does not accept that monetary policy 
is to be used to manage fluctuations in unemployment and 
growth caused by the business cycle.

Enhanced Cash 
Funds

A pooled investment fund.  Longer dated investment than a 
MMF and, unlike a MMF, enhanced cash funds have variable 
asset value.  Assets are marked to market on a daily basis and 
the unit prices vary accordingly.  Investments can be withdrawn 
on a notice basis (the length of which depends on the fund) 
although such funds would typically be used for investments of 
3 to 6 month duration.

Equity A share in a company with limited liability.  It generally enables 
the holder to share in the profitability of the company through 
dividend payments and capital gain.

Forward Deal The act of agreeing today to deposit funds with an institution for 
an agreed time limit, on an agreed future date, at an agreed 
rate.

Forward 
Deposits

Same as forward dealing (above).

Fiscal Policy The government policy on taxation and welfare payments.

GDP Gross Domestic Product.

Page 244

Agenda Item 14



Appendix F
Gilt Registered British government securities giving the investor an 

absolute commitment from the government to honour the debt 
that those securities represent.

Mark to Market 
Accounting

Accounting of the basis of the “fair value” of an asset or liability, 
based on the current market price.  As a result, values will 
change with market conditions.

Minimum 
Revenue 
Provision

This is a prudent sum set aside each year to offset the principal 
repayment of any loan to smooth the impact on the local 
taxpayer.

Money Market 
Fund

A well rated, highly diversified pooled investment vehicle whose 
assets mainly comprise of short-term instruments.  It is very 
similar to a unit trust, however a MMF relies on loans to 
companies rather than share holdings.

Monetary Policy 
Committee 
(MPC)

Government body that sets the bank rate (commonly referred to 
as being base rate).  Their primary target is to keep inflation 
within plus or minus 1 per cent of a central target of 2.5 per 
cent in two years’ time from the date of the monthly meeting of 
the committee.  Their secondary target is to support the 
government in maintaining high and stable levels of growth and 
employment.

Non-UCITS 
Retail Scheme 
(NURS)

Undertakings for collective investments are funds authorised to 
be sold in the UK that are required to meet standards set by the 
UK services regulator.  An example is property funds.

Operational 
Boundary

The most likely, prudent but not worst case scenario of external 
debt at any one time.

Other Bond 
Funds

Pooled funds investing in a wide range of bonds.

PWLB Public Works Loan Board.

QE Quantitative Easing.

Retail Price 
Index

Measurement of the monthly change in the average level of 
prices at the retail level weighted by the average expenditure 
pattern of the average person.

Sovereign Issues 
(Ex UK Gilts)

Bonds issued or guaranteed by nation states, but excluding UK 
government bonds.

Supranational 
Bonds

Bonds issued by supranational bodies, e.g. European 
Investment Bank.  The bonds – also known as Multilateral 
Development Bank bonds – are generally AAA rated and 
behave similarly to gilts, but pay a higher yield (“spread”) given 
their relative illiquidity when compared with gilts.

Page 245

Agenda Item 14



Appendix F
Treasury Bill Treasury bills are short-term debt instruments issued by the UK 

or other governments.  They provide a return to the investor by 
virtue of being issued at a discount to their final redemption 
value.

Page 246

Agenda Item 14



Report to:

Joint Audit & Governance Committee
Cabinet
Council

Report of Head of Finance
Author: Rhona Bellis
Telephone:  01235 422497
E-mail: Rhona.bellis@southandvale.gov.uk
Wards affected:  all

Cabinet member responsible: Councillor Robert Sharp
Tel:  01367 710549
E-mail:  Robert.sharp@whitehorsedc.gov.uk
To: JOINT AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE on  29  January 2018

CABINET on                   2 February 2018
                COUNCIL on                                                                        14 February 2018

Treasury management and investment strategy 
2018/19 

Recommendations

The joint audit and governance committee recommends to cabinet and council:

1. To approve the treasury management strategy set out in appendix A to this report;

2. To approve the prudential indicators and treasury limits for the period 2018/19 to 
2020/21 as set out in table 2, appendix A;

3. To approve the annual investment strategy set out in appendix A (paragraphs 18-
59) and the lending criteria detailed in table 5.

That cabinet:

Considers any comments from committee and recommends council to approve the 
report.

Page 247

Agenda Item 15



Purpose of report

1. This report presents the council’s Treasury Management Strategy (TMS) for 2018/19.  
This sets out how the council’s treasury service will support capital investment 
decisions, and how the treasury management operates day to day.  It sets out the 
limitations on treasury management activity governed by the prudential indicators, 
within which the council’s treasury function must operate.  The strategy is included as 
appendix A to the report.  This report includes the three elements required by 
legislation as follows:

 The prudential indicators required by the CIPFA Prudential Code for 
Capital Finance in Local Authorities;

 The annual investment strategy.  This sets out the council’s criteria for 
selecting counterparties and limiting exposure to the risk of loss on its 
investments. This strategy is in accordance with the DCLG investment 
guidance and forms part of the treasury management strategy. (appendix A, 
paragraphs 18-59);

 
 A statutory duty to approve a minimum revenue provision policy statement 

(Appendix A, paragraphs 51-55). 

It is a requirement of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code 2011 that this report is 
approved by full Council on an annual basis.

Strategic objectives 
2. Managing the finances of the authority in accordance with the treasury management 

strategy will help to ensure that resources are available to deliver its services and 
meet the council’s strategic objectives.

Background
3. ‘Treasury management’ is the planning of the council’s cash flows, its banking, 

money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks 
associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent 
with those risks.

4. The funding of the council’s capital expenditure is also a function of treasury 
management.  The capital programme provides a guide to the funding needs of the 
council and the long term cash flow plans to ensure that the council can meet its 
capital spending obligations.

5. Treasury investments are effectively what the council does with its cash resources 
before it is spent on the provision of services and the funding of the capital 
programme.  All expenditure of a capital nature is managed through the council’s 
capital programme and is not covered by this report. The council’s property 
investment policy no longer forms part of this report.

6. The treasury management and annual investment strategy set out the council’s 
policies for managing investments and confirms the council gives priority to the 

Page 248

Agenda Item 15



security and liquidity of those investments.  It also includes the prudential indicators 
for the next three years; these demonstrate that the council’s capital investment 
plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable.

7. The council’s treasury management strategy 2018/19 is attached in appendix A.  
Whilst every attempt has been made to minimise the technical content of this report, 
it is, by its very nature and due to the need for compliance with associated guidance, 
technical in parts.   A glossary of terms in appendix F should aid understanding of 
some of the technical terms used in the report.

8. CIPFA is currently conducting a review of the “Prudential Code” and the “Treasury 
Management Code of Practice”. This review is particularly focused on ‘non-treasury’ 
investments, especially the purchase of investment property and other commercial 
activities that aim to generate income; but may require external borrowing (or the use 
of existing cash balances) to raise the cash to finance such activities. 

9. The finalised codes are not expected until January 2018 and therefore the treasury 
management strategy set out in appendix A to this report, has been prepared in 
accordance with the current codes of practice. 

10.To ensure the council’s treasury management strategy is compliant with the new 
CIPFA Codes, a revised treasury management strategy will produced during 2018 if 
required.  This will be subject to the same process of approvals as the current strategy. 

Recommended changes to the treasury management strategy
11.Council approved the 2017/18 treasury management strategy on 15 February 2017.  

The proposed strategy for 2018/19 includes the changes detailed below, which cabinet 
is asked to recommend to council:
Counterparty limits
Over the last year, the council’s treasury balances have exceeded the historical levels 
upon which the treasury limits were based.  As a result temporary increases in treasury 
limits were required to be sought, through delegated powers to allow the council to 
continue to manage its treasury function effectively.  This situation is expected to 
continue into the future and to ensure that the council’s treasury limits now reflect the 
organisations needs the following changes are proposed: 

 To raise the investment limit with building societies with assets over £1 billion to £4 
million from £3 million.

 To raise the investment limit with building societies with assets over £3 billion to £5 
million from £3.5 million.

 To raise the investment limit with building societies with assets over £5 billion to £7 
million from £5 million.

 To raise the investment limit with institutions with a minimum F1 rating to £10 million 
from £7.5 million.

Investment type addition
Adding another investment type will allow the council wider choice of investment in the 
future as the pool of low risk counterparties reduces.  There are no plans currently to 
invest in this vehicle.  

 To add Non-UCITS Retail Schemes (NURS) to the strategy with a limit of £3 million.

Page 249

Agenda Item 15



Financial implications and risk assessment
12. This report and all associated policies and strategies set out clearly the parameters 

the council must work within.  It is important that the council follows the approved 
treasury management strategy which is designed to help protect the council’s 
finances by managing its risk exposure.

13. In the last few years investment income has fallen due to lower interest rates. In the 
medium term interest rates are expected to remain low.  The Bank of England’s 
Monetary Policy Committee increased interest rates by 0.25 per cent in November 
2017 and has hinted that rates could rise further in 2018.  Any rate rises are 
expected to be slow and gradual given the continued uncertainty in the economy

14. The table below gives an estimate of the investment income achievable for the next 
five years.

Table 1: Medium term investment income forecast
2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Forecast as at December 2017 450 469 452 412 372

The 2018/19 budget setting report and medium term financial plan will take into 
account the latest projections of anticipated investment income.

Legal implications

15. There are no significant legal implications as a result of the recommendations in this 
report.  Compliance with the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in 
the Public Services, the CLG Local Government Investment Guidance provides 
assurance that the council’s investments are, and will continue to be, within its legal 
powers. 

16. The council must approve any amendment to the treasury management strategy and 
annual investment strategy in accordance with the Local Government Act 2003 ( the 
Act), the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the Public Services 
and the CLG Local Government Investment Guidance under Section 15(1) (a) Local 
Government Act 2003 and CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance.

Conclusion

17. This report provides details of the proposed changes to the treasury management 
strategy and the annual investment strategy for 2018/19 which are appended to this 
report, together with the prudential indicators for approval to council.  These 
documents provide the parameters within which the council’s treasury management 
function will operate.

Background papers

 CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services Code of Practice and 
Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes (revised 2011)

Page 250

Agenda Item 15



 CLG Local Government Investment Guidance under Section 15(1) (a) Local 
Government Act 2003 and CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance.

 Treasury Management Investment Strategy 2017/18 (cabinet 3 February 
2017, council 15 February 2017)

Appendices

Appendix A Treasury Management Strategy 2018/19
Appendix B       Economic conditions and prospects for interest rates
Appendix C Risk and performance benchmarking
Appendix D Explanation of prudential indicators
Appendix E TMP1 extract
Appendix F Glossary of terms

Page 251

Agenda Item 15



Appendix A

6

Treasury Management Strategy 2018/19

Introduction
1. The Local Government Act 2003 and supporting regulations require the council to 

‘have regard to’ the CIPFA Prudential Code and to set Prudential Indicators for the next 
three years to ensure that the council’s capital investment plans are affordable, prudent 
and sustainable.

2. The Act requires the council to set out its treasury strategy for borrowing and to 
prepare an Annual Investment Strategy (as required by Investment Guidance issued 
subsequent to the Act).  This sets out the council’s policies for managing its 
investments and for giving priority to the security and liquidity of those investments.

3. The strategy in respect of the following aspects of the treasury management function is 
based on treasury officers’ views on interest rates, supplemented with market forecasts 
provided by the council’s treasury advisor, Link Asset Services.  The strategy covers:

 Prudential and treasury indicators in force that will limit the treasury risk and 
activities of the council;

 Current treasury position
 Prospects for interest rates;
 Borrowing strategy
 Policy on borrowing in advance of need;
 Investment strategy;
 Counterparty selection and limits;
 Policy on use of external service providers;
 Minimum revenue provision (MRP) statement;
 Treasury management scheme of delegation and Section 151 role.

4. It is a statutory requirement under Section 32 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992, for the council to produce a balanced budget.  In particular, Section 32 requires a 
local authority to calculate its budget requirement for each year to include the revenue 
costs that flow from capital financing decisions.  This means that increases in capital 
expenditure must be limited to a level where any increases in charges to revenue are 
from:

 Increases in interest charges caused by increased borrowing to finance 
additional capital expenditure, and

 Any increases in running costs from new capital projects are identified and 
limited to a level which is affordable. 

A key requirement of this report is to explain the risks, and the management of those 
risks, associated with providing the treasury service.  Legislation requires that as a 
minimum two further treasury reports are provided: a mid-year monitoring report and 
an outturn report after the year-end that reports on actual activity for the year.

Treasury Limits for 2018/19 to 2020/21
5. It is a statutory duty, under Section 3 of the Act and supporting regulations for the 

council to determine and keep under review how much it can afford to borrow.  The 

Page 252

Agenda Item 15



Appendix A

7

amount so determined is called the “Affordable Borrowing Limit”. The Authorised Limit 
is the legislative limit specified in the Act.

6. The council must have regard to the Prudential Code when setting the Authorised 
Limit, which essentially requires it to ensure that total capital expenditure remains 
within sustainable limits and in particular, that the impact upon its future council tax is 
‘acceptable’.

7. The Authorised Limit is set on a rolling basis, for the forthcoming financial year and two 
successive financial years.

8. The following indicators set the parameters within which we manage the overall capital 
investment and treasury management functions.  There are specific treasury activity 
limits, which aim to contain the activity of the treasury function in order to manage risk 
and reduce the impact of an adverse movement in interest rates.  However if these are 
set to be too restrictive they will impair the opportunities to reduce costs/improve 
performance.  The limits are set out in table 2 below.

Cabinet is asked to recommend council to approve the limits:

Table 2: Prudential indicators
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Debt £m £m £m £m
Authorised limit for external debt
Borrowing 30 30 30 30
Other long term liabilities 5 5 5 5

35 35 35 35
Operational boundary for external debt
Borrowing 25 25 25 25
Other long term liabilities 5 5 5 5

30 30 30 30
Interest rate exposures
Maximum fixed rate borrowing 100% 100% 100% 100%
Maximum variable rate borrowing 100% 100% 100% 100%

Investments £m £m £m £m
Interest rate exposures
Limits on fixed interest rates 100% 100% 100% 100%
Limits on variable interest rates 50 50 50 50

Principal sums invested > 364 days
Upper limit for principal sums invested >364 
days 40 40 40 40

Current position
9. The maturity structure of the council’s investments at 31 October 2017 was as follows:

Page 253

Agenda Item 15



Appendix A

8

Classification 
of investment 
at deal date

Classification 
as at 
31/10/2017

£'000 £'000
Call 0 0% 0 0%
Money market fund 5,840 10% 5,840 10%
Less than 6 months 3,000 5% 25,000 44%
6 months to 1 year 37,000 66% 17,000 30%
1 year + (loans to other local authorities) 8,000 14% 6,000 11%
CCLA - property fund 2,000 4% 2,541 5%0%
Total investments 55,840 56,381

Table 3: Maturity structure of investments:

10. The council currently holds all of its investments in the form of either cash deposits or a 
managed property fund (£2 million with CCLA), the majority of which have been placed 
for fixed terms with a fixed investment return.  

11. The council's considerations for investment will remain security, liquidity and yield – in 
that order.  Within this framework an possible portfolio distribution of cash investments 
could be considered as follows:

Optimum portfolio distribution

40%

30%

10%
10%
10%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100% Certificates of deposit and
pooled bond funds
Enhanced cash funds

Call accounts and money
market funds
Long-term (+365 day) fixed
term cash deposits
Short-term fixed term cash
deposits

This represents officer interpretations of a diversified portfolio and from time to time actual holdings will 
vary from this significantly.  

Investment performance for the year to 31 October 2017.

12. The council’s budgeted investment return for 2017/18 is £0.471 million, and the actual 
interest received to date is shown as follows:

Page 254

Agenda Item 15



Appendix A

9

Table 4: Investment interest earned to date and outturn estimate

Annual Actual Annual Forecast
Investment type Budget to date Forecast Variation

2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18
£000 £000 £000 £000

Position at end December 2017 379 400 564 185

Total interest 379 400 564 185

Interest Earned

Borrowing Strategy 2018/19 
13. The annual treasury management strategy has to set out details of the council’s 

borrowing requirement, any maturing debt which will need to be re-financed, and the 
effect this will have on the treasury position over the next three years.  This council 
currently has no external debt and in general, the council will borrow for one of two 
purposes:

 to support cash flow in the short-term; 
 To fund capital investment over the medium to long term.

Any borrowing undertaken will be within the scope of the boundaries given in the 
prudential indicators shown in Table 2, which allow for the council to borrow up to a 
maximum of £30 million, if such a need arose.  This also allows short-term borrowing 
for the cash flow management activities of the authority.   

14. The existing capital programme can be financed primarily from internal resources.  
either by use of reserves or internal borrowing or externally (through prudential 
borrowing).  Any decision on borrowing will be taken by the Head of Finance based on 
the optimum cost to the council.

15. Any borrowing for capital financing purposes will be assessed by the Head of Finance 
to be prudent, sustainable and affordable

16. This strategy allows the Head of Finance to determine the most suitable repayment 
terms of any borrowing to demonstrate affordability and sustainability in the medium 
term financial plan if required.  As a general rule, the term of any borrowing will not be 
longer than the expected life of the capital asset being created.

Policy on borrowing in advance of need

17. The council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs, purely in order to 
profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed.  Any decision to borrow in 
advance will be within approved Capital Financing Requirement estimates, and will be 
considered carefully to ensure value for money can be demonstrated and that the 
council can ensure the security of such funds.  In determining if any borrowing will be 
undertaken in advance of need, the council will:

 consider the impact of borrowing in advance on investment cash balances and 
the exposure to counterparty risk.  Any risk associated with any borrowing in 

Page 255

Agenda Item 15



Appendix A

10

advance of activity will be subject to prior appraisal and subsequent reporting 
through the mid-year or annual reporting process.

 consider the optimum point to borrow in advance of need to obtain the most 
beneficial rates on any loan raised to minimise the cost of borrowing over the 
duration of the loan.

Annual investment strategy 

18. The primary aim of the council’s investment strategy is to maintain the security and 
liquidity of its investments; yield or return on the investment will be a secondary 
consideration, subject to prudent security and liquidity.  The council will ensure:

 It has sufficient liquidity in its investments to cover cash flow.  For this purpose it 
has set out parameters for determining the maximum periods for which funds may 
prudently be committed.  

 It maintains a policy covering the categories of investment types it will invest in, 
criteria for choosing investment counterparties with adequate security, and 
monitoring their security.

19. The strategy aims to provide a high degree of flexibility to take appropriate lending 
decisions, with a view to producing a portfolio with an even spread of maturity periods.  
This aim is to provide a more even and predictable investment return in the medium 
term. 

20. The council’s Head of Finance will ensure a counterparty list (a list of named 
institutions) is maintained in compliance with the recommended credit rating criteria 
(table 5) and will revise the criteria and submit any changes to the credit rating criteria 
to council for approval as necessary. 

Investment types

21. The types of investment that the council can use are summarised below. These are 
split under the headings of ‘specified’ and ‘non-specified’ in accordance with the 
statutory guidance. 

Specified investment instruments

22. These are sterling investments of not more than one year maturity, or those where the 
council has the right to be repaid within 12 months if it wishes.  These would include 
sterling investments with:

 UK government Debt Management Agency Deposit Facility (DMADF)
 UK government – treasury stock (Gilts) with less than one year to maturity
 Supranational bonds of less than one year’s duration
 Deposits with UK local authorities
 Pooled investment vehicles such as Money Market Funds (MMF) (AAA rated)
 Deposits with banks and building societies (minimum F1/A- rated)
 Certificates of deposits issued by banks and building societies (minimum 

rating as above)

Page 256

Agenda Item 15



Appendix A

11

Non-specified investment instruments 

23. These are any other type of investment (i.e. investments not defined as specified, 
above).  Examples of non-specified investments include any sterling investments with:

 Supranational bonds of 1 to 10 years to maturity
 UK treasury stock (Gilts) with a maturity of 1 to 10 years
 Unrated building societies (minimum asset value £1 billion)
 Bank and building society cash deposits up to 5 years (minimum F1/A- rated)
 Deposits with UK local authorities up to 25 years to maturity
 Corporate bonds
 Pooled property, pooled bond funds and UK pooled equity funds
 Non-UCITS Retail Schemes (NURS)

Other Non-specified investment instruments

24. Other non-specified investment instruments include:

 Fixed term deposits with variable rate and variable maturities

Approach to investing

25. The council holds approximately £14 million core cash balances which are available to 
invest for more than one year.  This is expected to reduce over the medium term as the 
approved capital expenditure is incurred and not replenished by capital receipts.  In 
addition the council has funds that are available on a temporary basis to invest. These 
are held pending payment over to another body such as precept payments and council 
tax.  The amount can vary between £5 million and £15 million throughout the year and 
should only be invested short term (under one year).  Investments will be made with 
reference to known cash flow requirements (liquidity).  

26. While rates remain historically low the council will aim to keep investments relatively 
short term, but will continue to look for opportunities to fix lending in the medium term 
with highly rated institutions when possible for core cash balances.  The aim is to 
increase the weighted average maturity of the portfolio in order to reduce maturity risk.   

27. Officers will continue to implement an operational strategy which provides tight controls 
on the investments placed.  Where possible, opportunities to spread the investment 
risk over different types of instruments will be considered.  

28. Should market conditions deteriorate suddenly to the extent that the council is unable 
to place money with institutions with the necessary credit rating, it will make use of the 
UK Government deposit account (DMADF). 

29. The council has the authority to lend to other local authorities at market rates.  Current 
investments include £4 million of lending to Kingston upon Hull City Council, which 
matures in 2020/21.  Whilst investments with other local authorities are considered to 
be supported by central government, officers will consider the financial viability and 
sustainability of the individual local authority before any funds are advanced. 

Page 257

Agenda Item 15



Appendix A

12

30. Further investment in property funds will be looked at in more detail for consideration.  
In 2013/14 the council invested £2 million in the Churches Charities and Local 
Authorities pooled property investment fund (CCLA).  

31. Money market funds are mainly used for liquidity; they also provide security and spread 
portfolio risk.  Officers will always monitor the council’s exposure to these funds in 
order to manage our security risk. 

32. Currently the council does not make use of an external fund manager.  Whilst there are 
presently no plans for this situation to change, this will continue to be kept under 
review.

33. Bond funds can be used to diversify the portfolio, whilst maintaining an element of 
liquidity and security.  These will be considered and reviewed as an investment 
possibility to spread portfolio risk.

34. One option to offer diversification in the council’s investment portfolio would be to make 
use of enhanced cash funds.  Possible use of such funds would be intended for longer 
term investments than with traditional money market funds (i.e. for possible investment 
durations of three – six months).  Investments placed with enhanced cash funds are 
callable and so offer the option to be withdrawn before maturity, although this is likely 
to have an adverse impact on the return on the investment.

35. Unlike money market funds, enhanced cash funds have a variable net asset value 
(VNAV).  This means the assets are ‘marked to market’ (re-valued to current market 
value) on a daily basis and the fund unit price adjusted accordingly.  Under this 
calculation basis the unit price fluctuates and could, therefore, be higher or lower than 
the original investment when it is redeemed.  Any use of enhanced cash funds would 
be restricted to the high quality counterparty credit criteria as set out in Table 5 below. 

36. The council does not currently make use of certificates of deposit.  Consideration will 
be given to their use to assist diversification of the investment portfolio.  Certificates of 
deposit have the same level of ranking and security as ordinary fixed term deposits but 
have the option of being traded before maturity.  Certificates of deposit are bought and 
sold on the stock market and their price can go up or down prior to their redemption 
date.  If held to maturity the investment will return their issue value.  The council would 
only normally look to enter into such investments on a held to maturity basis.

Counterparty selection

37. Treasury management risk is the risk of loss of capital to the council.  To minimise this 
risk, the council uses credit rating information when considering who to lend to.  Link 
Asset Services provide the council with credit rating updates from all three ratings 
agencies – Standard & Poors, Fitch and Moodys.

38. The council will not use the approach suggested by CIPFA of using the lowest rating 
from all three rating agencies in evaluating investment opportunity.  This is because 
adopting this approach could leave the council with too few counterparties for the 
strategy to be workable.  Instead, counterparty investment limits will be set by 
reference to all of the assigned ratings.

Page 258

Agenda Item 15



Appendix A

13

39. Where counterparties fail to meet the minimum required criteria (Table 5 below) they 
will be omitted from the counterparty list.  Any rating changes and rating watches 
(notification of a rating change) are provided to officers almost immediately after they 
occur and this information is considered before any deal is entered into.  Extreme 
market movements may result in a downgrade of an institution or removal from the 
council’s lending list.

40. Additional requirements under the CIPFA Treasury Management Code require the 
council to supplement the credit rating data with operational market information such 
as credit default swaps (CDS), negative watches and outlooks, which are considered 
when assessing the security of counterparties.  This additional information is used so 
that the council does not rely solely on the current credit ratings of counterparties.

41. Where it is felt the council would benefit from utilising government guarantees provided 
by countries with an AAA rating, the council may lend to institutions covered by such 
guarantees.  Any decision to lend in this way will be subject to consultation with the 
agreement of the cabinet member responsible for finance. 

Country and sector considerations

42. The council has determined that it will only use approved counterparties outside the UK 
from countries with a minimum sovereign credit rating of AAA from Fitch Ratings.

Counterparty limits

43. In the normal course of the council’s cash flow operations it is expected that both 
specified and non-specified investments will be used for the control of liquidity as both 
categories allow for short term investments.  The use of longer term instruments 
(greater than one year from inception to repayment) will fall in the non-specified 
investment category.  These instruments will be used where the council’s liquidity 
requirements are safeguarded.  The council will lend to institutions that meet the 
following criteria:

Page 259

Agenda Item 15



Appendix A

14

Counterparty
Limit

Counterparty £m
Banks - house bank n/a £5.0m 3 months 20%
Bank - part nationalised UK UK Sovereign £15.0m 3 years 100%
Building societies - assets > £1,000m n/a £4.0m 12 months 50%
Building societies - assets > £3,000m n/a £5.0m 12 months 60%
Building societies - assets > £5,000m n/a £7.0m 12 months 70%
Institutions with a minimum rating F1/A- £10.0m 2 years 80%
Local Authorities / parish councils n/a £20.0m 25 years 20%
Money Market Fund (CNAV) AAA £20.0m liquid 100%
Pooled property fund - CCLA n/a £3.0m variable 10%
Corporate bonds AA- £5.0m variable 40%
Enhanced cash funds (VNAV) AAA/V1 £15.0m variable 50%
Institutions with a minimum rating F1+/AA- £10.0m 5 years 100%
Institutions with a minimum rating F2/BBB £5.0m 1 year 70%
Non-UCITS Retail Scheme (NURS) n/a £3.0m variable 10%
Managed bond fund n/a £5.0m 1 year 40%
Share capital/Equities n/a £3.0m variable 20%
Supranationals AAA £10.0m 10 years 50%
UK government - gilts UK Sovereign no limit 25 years 20%
UK government - treasury bills UK Sovereign no limit 12 months 50%
UK Govt & DMADF UK Sovereign no limit 6 months 100%

Table 5: Counterparty limits
Minimum Fitch 

Rating ( or 
equivalent)

Max. maturity 
period

Maximum 
% of total 

investment
s

44. The criteria for choosing counterparties provides a sound approach to investment. 
Whilst councillors are asked to approve the criteria in table 5, under exceptional market 
conditions the head of finance may temporarily restrict further investment activity to 
those counterparties considered of higher credit quality than the minimum criteria set 
out for approval.   

Fund managers
45. The council does not currently employ any external fund managers.  However in the 

event of such an appointment, appointees will comply with this and subsequent 
treasury strategies.  This strategy empowers the Section 151 officer to appoint such an 
external manager to manage a proportion of the council’s investment portfolio if this is 
advantageous.  Situations in which this might be advantageous include benchmarking 
the performance of the treasury team;  benefiting from the often extensive credit risk 
and economic modelling resources of external fund managers and resources 
necessary to hold liquid instruments for trading.

Risk and performance benchmarks

46. A requirement of the Code is that security and liquidity benchmarks are considered and 
approved. This is in addition to yield benchmarks which are used to assess 
performance.  The benchmarks are guidelines (not limits) so may be breached 
depending on the movement in interest rates and counterparty criteria.  Their purpose 
is to allow officers to monitor the current trend position and amend the operational 
strategy depending on any changes.  Any breach of the benchmarks will be reported, 
with an explanation in the mid-year or annual report to audit and corporate governance 
committee.  Detailed information for the assessment of risk is shown in appendix C. 

Page 260

Agenda Item 15



Appendix A

15

47. Performance indicators are set to assess the adequacy of the treasury function over 
the year.  These are distinct historic performance indicators, as opposed to the 
predominantly forward looking prudential indicators.  The indicators used to assess the 
performance of the treasury function are:

 Cash investments - 3 month LIBID rate.
 Property related investments – IPD Balance Property Unit Trust Index.

48. The results of these indicators will be reported in both the annual mid-year and year-
end treasury reports.

Policy on the use of treasury management advisors  
49. The council has a joint contract for treasury management advisors with South 

Oxfordshire District Council.  Link Asset Services (was Capita Asset Services) provides 
a range of services which include:

 technical support on treasury matters, capital finance issues, statutory reports;
 economic forecasts and interest rate analysis;
 credit ratings / market information service involving the three main credit rating 

agencies;
 strategic advice including a review of the investment and borrowing strategies 

and policy documents.
50. The council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions remains 

with the organisation at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not placed upon 
our external service providers.  It also recognises that there is value in employing 
external providers of treasury management services in order to acquire access to 
specialist skills, resources and up to date market information.  

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) policy statement 2018/19
51. MRP is the amount out of revenues set aside each year as a provision for debt i.e. the 

provision in respect of capital expenditure financed by borrowing.  

52. The council is required by regulation to approve an annual MRP policy before the start 
of the year to which it relates.  Any in-year changes must also be submitted to the 
council for approval.

53. A variety of options are provided to councils for the calculation of MRP.  The council 
has chosen the “asset life method” as being most appropriate.  Using this method MRP 
will be based on the estimated life of the asset, in accordance with the regulations (this 
option must be applied for any expenditure capitalised under a Capitalisation 
Direction).  Repayments included in annual PFI or finance leases are applied as MRP. 

54. Currently, the council’s MRP liability is nil.  This will remain the case unless capital 
expenditure is financed by external or internal borrowing.  

55. The council’s current capital programme will primarily be financed from internal 
resources.  If borrowing is undertaken then the council will be required by statute to set 
aside funds in the annual revenue budget to amortise the principal element of any 
borrowing – this is the MRP.  There will also be a requirement to set aside revenue 

Page 261

Agenda Item 15



Appendix A

16

budget for the interest payments on any borrowing raised.  Loans will generally be 
taken over the life of the assets being financed and amortised accordingly.  The Head 
of Finance will determine the most appropriate repayment method, term of borrowing 
and duration of borrowing.  As a general illustration, Table 6 below gives an example of 
the annual revenue costs associated with borrowing an amount of £2.5 million over a 
50 year period, based on the current district tax base of 50,452 Band D equivalents:
 
Table 6: Example MRP and interest calculation

Loan amount £2,500,000
Loan duration 50 years
PWLB interest rate 2.45 per cent
2018/19 Taxbase 50,452

£ £ per band D
MRP element 50,000 0.99
Annual interest cost 61,250 1.21
Total 111,250 2.21

Councillor and officer training
56. The requirement for increased councillor consideration of treasury management 

matters and the need to ensure officers dealing with treasury management are trained 
and kept up to date requires a suitable training process for councillors and officers.  In 
compliance with the current CIPFA Code, the council provided treasury management 
training to councillors in January 2017.  Further training will be provided as soon as 
practical during 2018/19 as expected changes in the CIPFA code become available. 
Other training is available on request.   

Treasury management scheme of delegation and the role of the Section 151 officer
57. The treasury management scheme of delegation and the role of the Section 151 officer 

is as follows:
  

I. Council
 Receiving and approval of reports on treasury management policies, 

practices, outturn and activities;
 Approval of annual strategy

II. Joint Audit and Governance Committee / Cabinet
 Approval of amendments to the organisations, adopted clauses, treasury 

management policy statements and treasury management practices;
 Receiving and reviewing monitoring reports and acting on recommendations;
 Ensuring effective scrutiny of the treasury management function

III. Section 151 Officer / Head of Finance
 Recommending clauses, treasury management policies/practices for approval, 

review and monitoring compliance;
 Submitting regular treasury management information reports;
 Submitting budgets and budget variations;
 Reviewing the performance of the treasury management function;
 Ensuring adequacy of treasury management resources and skills and the 

effective division of responsibilities within the treasury management function;

Page 262

Agenda Item 15



Appendix A

17

 Ensuring the adequacy of internal audit and liaising with external audit;
 Approving the selection of external service providers and agreeing terms of 

appointment.

Summary

58. Prior to the beginning of each financial year the council must approve the treasury 
management strategy.  The strategy sets the parameters within which officers can 
manage the council’s cash flows and invest any surplus funds.

59. This strategy provides a commentary on the current financial climate and sets out the 
council’s lending strategy in response to this.

Page 263

Agenda Item 15



Appendix B

18

Economic conditions and interest rate forecasts

1. In order to put the investment strategy into context it is necessary to consider the 
strength of the UK economy, external factors in the financial markets and their impact 
on interest rate forecasts. 

UK economy

2. Since the second quarter of 2013 the UK has reported rising levels of GDP.  However, 
following the result of the EU referendum, growth has become volatile.  Indicators 
suggest we will still see growth thanks to low unemployment and household spending, 
but the rate of growth will be slower than previously forecast. 

3. Consumer Price Inflation is expected to peak very soon at 3.2 per cent.  Forward 
indications are that rates of inflation will fall once the devaluation effect of sterling starts 
to fall out of the 12 month statistics.

4. Uncertainty over Brexit is weighing heavy on economic data.  Little agreement over 
trade terms from 2019 is creating a lack of confidence with UK firms and is holding 
back investment.

5. Bank rate rose by 0.25 per cent in November 2017 to 0.50 per cent.  Forward guidance 
from the Bank of England states that they expect rates to rise twice more in the next 
three years, to reach 1.00 per cent by 2020.

Eurozone economy

6. Growth has slowed during quarter three of 2017 in the Eurozone, however growth 
remains at an annualised rate of 3 per cent.  Consumer confidence is rising, especially 
in Germany.  The Euro has slipped in value against the dollar due to expectations that 
there will be an interest rate rise in the US.  Rates in Europe are not expected to 
change.

Link Asset Services forward view

7. Economic forecasting continues to be difficult given the number of external influences 
affecting the UK.  Key areas of risk include:

 Geopolitical risks, especially North Korea, but also in Europe and the Middle 
East, which could lead to increasing safe haven flows;

 UK economic growth and inflation;
 Rising protectionism under President Trump;

 A resurgence of the Eurozone sovereign debt crisis;
 Weak capitalization of some European banks; 
 A sharp Chinese downturn and its impact on emerging market countries.

8. The view of Link Asset Services is that the overall balance of risks to economic 
recovery in the UK is currently to the downside.  Risks to increases in bank rate are 
on the upside and depend on how strong growth turns out, how quickly inflation 
pressures rise and how quickly the Brexit negotiations move forward positively. 

Page 264

Agenda Item 15



Appendix B

19

Prospects for interest rates

1. The bank base rate is forecast to remain unchanged at 0.50 per cent, rising in Q4 in 
2018. Link Asset Service’s central view for bank rate forecasts is shown below:

Dec-17 Mar-18 Jun-18 Sep-18 Dec-18 Mar-19 Jun-19 Sep-19 Dec-19 Mar-20
Bank of England base rate 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 1.00 1.00
PWLB rates

5 year borrowing 1.50 1.60 1.60 1.70 1.80 1.80 1.90 1.90 2.00 2.10
10 year borrowing 2.10 2.20 2.30 2.40 2.40 2.50 2.60 2.60 2.70 2.70
25 year borrowing 2.80 2.90 3.00 3.00 3.10 3.10 3.20 3.20 3.30 3.40
50 year borrowing 2.50 2.60 2.70 2.80 2.90 2.90 3.00 3.00 3.10 3.20

Page 265

Agenda Item 15



Appendix C

20

Benchmarking and Monitoring Security, Liquidity and Yield in the Investment Service.  

1. These benchmarks are targets and so may be exceeded from time to time.  Any 
variation will be reported, along with supporting reasons, in the Annual Treasury 
Report.

2. Yield.  The local benchmark currently used to assess the performance of cash 
investments is the level of returns contrasted against the London Interbank Bid (LIBID) 
three month rate.  This is the interest rate a bank would be willing to pay to borrow from 
another bank for three months.
Property related investments are benchmarked against the IPD Balanced Property Unit 
Trust Index.

3. Liquidity.  Liquidity is defined as the council “having adequate, though not excessive, 
cash resources, borrowing arrangements, overdrafts or standby facilities to enable it at 
all times to have the level of funds available to it which are necessary for the 
achievement of its business/service objectives” (CIPFA Treasury Management Code of 
Practice).  

4. In respect of this area, the council shall seek to: 
 maintain a minimal balance held in the council’s main bank account at the 

close of each working day.  Transfers to the councils call accounts, MMF and 
investments will be arranged in order to achieve this, while maintaining access 
to adequate working capital at short notice.

 use the authorised bank overdraft facility or short term borrowing where there 
is clear business case for doing so, to cover working capital requirements at 
short notice 

5. Security of the investments.  In the context of benchmarking, assessing security is 
very much more a subjective area to assess.  Security is currently evidenced by the 
application of minimum credit quality criteria to investment counterparties, primarily 
through the use of credit ratings supplied by the three main credit rating agencies 
(Fitch, Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s).  Whilst this approach embodies security 
considerations, benchmarking levels of risk is more problematic.  One method to 
benchmark security risk is to assess the historic level of default against the minimum 
criteria used in the Council’s investment strategy.  The table beneath shows average 
defaults for differing periods of investment grade products for each Fitch long term 
rating category over the last 20-30 years.

Average defaults for differing periods of investment
Long 

term rating 1 year 2 years 3 years 4 years 5 years
AA 0.01% 0.02% 0.08% 0.16% 0.23%
A 0.07% 0.19% 0.36% 0.55% 0.78%
BBB 0.15% 0.46% 0.82% 1.26% 1.73%

6. The council’s minimum long term (i.e. plus 365 day duration) rating criteria is currently 
“A-”.  For comparison, the average expectation of default for a two year investment in 
a counterparty with an “A” long term rating would be 0.19 per cent of the total 
investment (e.g. for a £1m investment the average loss would be £1,900).  This is an 
average - any specific counterparty loss is likely to be higher. These figures act as a 
proxy benchmark for risk across the portfolio.   

Page 266

Agenda Item 15



Appendix D 

21

Explanation of Prudential Indicators

Prudential borrowing permits local government organisations to borrow to fund capital 
spending plans provided they could demonstrate their affordability.  Prudential indicators 
are the means to demonstrate affordability.

Authorised limit for external debt – this is the maximum limit for external borrowing.  
This is the statutory limit determined under section 3(1) of the Local Government Act 
2003.  This limit is set to allow sufficient headroom for day to day operational management 
of cash flows.

Operational boundary for external debt – this is set as the more likely amount that may 
be required for day to day cash flow.  

Upper limit for fixed and variable interest rate exposure – these limits allow the 
council flexibility in its investment and borrowing options.

Upper limit for total principal sums invested for over 364 days – the amount it is 
considered can be prudently invested for periods in excess of a year.

Page 267

Agenda Item 15



Appendix E 

22

Treasury Management Practice (TMP) 1 – credit and counterparty risk management

The CLG issued Investment Guidance in 2010, and this forms the structure of the 
council’s policy below.  

The key aim of the guidance is to maintain the current requirement for councils to invest 
prudently, and that priority is given to security and liquidity before yield.  In order to 
facilitate this objective the guidance requires this council to have regard to the CIPFA 
publication Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice and Cross-
Sectoral Guidance Notes.  In accordance with the code, the head of finance has produced 
its treasury management practices (TMPs).  This part, TMP1(1), covering investment 
counterparty policy requires approval each year.

The key requirements of both the Code and the guidance are to set an annual investment 
strategy, as part of its annual treasury strategy for the following year, covering the 
identification and approval of the following:

 the strategy guidelines for decision making on investments, particularly non-
specified investments.

 the principles to be used to determine the maximum periods for which funds 
can be committed.

 specified investments the council will use.  These are high security (i.e. have a 
high credit rating, although this is defined by the council, and no guidelines are 
given), and high liquidity investments in sterling and with a maturity of no more 
than a year.

 non-specified investments, clarifying the greater risk implications, identifying 
the general types of investment that may be used and a limit to the overall 
amount of various categories that can be held at any time.

The investment policy proposed for the council is:

Strategy guidelines – The main strategy guidelines are contained in the body of the 
treasury strategy statement.

Specified investments – These investments are sterling investments of not more than 
one year maturity, or those which could be for a longer period but where the council has 
the right to be repaid within 12 months if it wishes.  These are considered low risk assets 
where the possibility of loss of principal or investment income is small.  These would 
include sterling investments with:

 UK government Debt Management Agency Deposit Facility (DMADF)
 UK government – treasury stock (Gilts) with less than one year to maturity
 Supranational bonds of less than one year’s duration
 Deposits with UK local authorities
 Pooled investment vehicles such as Money Market Funds (MMF) (AAA rated)
 Deposits with banks and building societies (minimum F1/A- rated)
 Certificates of deposits issued by banks and building societies (minimum rating 

as above)

Within these bodies, and in accordance with the Code, the council has set additional 
criteria to set the time and amount of monies which will be invested in these bodies.  
These criteria are as stated in Table 5 to this report.

Page 268

Agenda Item 15



Appendix E 

23

Non-specified investments

These are any other type of investment (i.e. not defined or specified above).  The 
identification and rationale supporting the selection of these other investments and the 
maximum limits to be applied are as set out in Table 5.

Page 269

Agenda Item 15



Appendix F 

24

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Authorised Limit The maximum amount of external debt at any one time in the 
financial year.

Basis Point (BP) 1/100th of 1%, i.e. 0.01%
Base Rate Minimum lending rate of a bank or financial institution in the UK.
Benchmark A measure against which the investment policy or performance of a 

fund manager can be compared.
Bill of Exchange A financial instrument financing trade.
Callable Deposit A deposit placed with a bank or building society at a set rate for a 

set amount of time.  However, the borrower has the right to repay 
the funds on pre agreed dates, before maturity.  This decision is 
based on how market rates have moved since the deal was agreed.  
If rates have fallen the likelihood of the deposit being repaid rises, 
as cheaper money can be found by the borrower.

Cash Fund 
Management

Fund management is the management of an investment portfolio of 
cash on behalf of a private client or an institution, the receipts and 
distribution of dividends and interest, and all other administrative 
work in connection with the portfolio.

Certificate of 
Deposit (CD)

Evidence of a deposit with a specified bank or building society 
repayable on a fixed date.  They are negotiable instruments and 
have a secondary market; therefore the holder of a CD is able to 
sell it to a third party before the maturity of the CD.

Commercial 
Paper

Short-term obligations with maturities ranging from 2 to 270 days 
issued by banks, corporations and other borrowers.  Such 
instruments are unsecured and usually discounted, although some 
may be interest bearing.

Corporate Bond Strictly speaking, corporate bonds are those issued by companies.  
However, the term is used to cover all bonds other than those 
issued by governments in their own currencies and includes issues 
by companies, supranational organisations and government 
agencies.

Counterparty Another (or the other) party to an agreement or other market 
contract (e.g. lender/borrower/writer of a swap/etc.)

CDS Credit Default Swap – a swap designed to transfer the credit 
exposure of fixed income products between parties.  The buyer of a 
credit swap receives credit protection, whereas the seller of the 
swap guarantees the credit worthiness of the product.  By doing 
this, the risk of default is transferred from the holder of the fixed 
income security to the seller of the swap.

CFR Capital Financing Requirement.
CIPFA Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy.
CLG Department for Communities and Local Government.
Derivative A contract whose value is based on the performance of an 

underlying financial asset, index or other investment, e.g. an option 
is a derivative because its value changes in relation to the 
performance of an underlying stock.

DMADF Deposit Account offered by the Debt Management Office, 
guaranteed by the UK government.

Page 270

Agenda Item 15



Appendix F 

25

ECB European Central Bank – sets the central interest rates in the EMU 
area.  The ECB determines the targets itself for its interest rate 
setting policy; this is the keep inflation within a band of 0 to 2 per 
cent.  It does not accept that monetary policy is to be used to 
manage fluctuations in unemployment and growth caused by the 
business cycle.

Enhanced Cash 
Funds

A pooled investment fund.  Longer dated investment than a MMF 
and, unlike a MMF, enhanced cash funds have variable asset 
value.  Assets are marked to market on a daily basis and the unit 
prices vary accordingly.  Investments can be withdrawn on a notice 
basis (the length of which depends on the fund) although such 
funds would typically be used for investments of 3 to 6 month 
duration.

Equity A share in a company with limited liability.  It generally enables the 
holder to share in the profitability of the company through dividend 
payments and capital gain.

Forward Deal The act of agreeing today to deposit funds with an institution for an 
agreed time limit, on an agreed future date, at an agreed rate.

Forward Deposits Same as forward dealing (above).
Fiscal Policy The government policy on taxation and welfare payments.
GDP Gross Domestic Product.
Gilt Registered British government securities giving the investor an 

absolute commitment from the government to honour the debt that 
those securities represent.

Mark to Market 
Accounting

Accounting on the basis of the “fair value” of an asset or liability, 
based on the current market price.  As a result, values will change 
with market conditions.  

Minimum 
Revenue 
Provision

This is a prudent sum set aside each year to offset the principal 
repayment of any loan to smooth the impact on the local taxpayer. 

Money Market 
Fund

A well rated, highly diversified pooled investment vehicle whose 
assets mainly comprise of short-term instruments.  It is very similar 
to a unit trust, however a MMF relies on loans to companies rather 
than share holdings.  

Monetary Policy 
Committee (MPC)

Government body that sets the bank rate (commonly referred to as 
being base rate).  Their primary target is to keep inflation within 
plus or minus 1 per cent of a central target of 2.5 per cent in two 
years time from the date of the monthly meeting of the committee.  
Their secondary target is to support the government in maintaining 
high and stable levels of growth and employment.

Non-UCITS Retail 
Scheme (NURS) – 

Undertakings for collective investments are funds authorised to be 
sold in the UK that are required to meet standards set by the UK 
services regulator.  An example is property funds.

Operational 
Boundary

The most likely, prudent but not worst case scenario of external 
debt at any one time.

Other Bond 
Funds

Pooled funds investing in a wide range of bonds.

PWLB Public Works Loan Board.
QE Quantitative Easing.

Page 271

Agenda Item 15



Appendix F 

26

Retail Price Index Measurement of the monthly change in the average level of prices 
at the retail level weighted by the average expenditure pattern of 
the average person.

Sovereign Issues 
(Ex UK Gilts)

Bonds issued or guaranteed by nation states, but excluding UK 
government bonds.

Supranational 
Bonds

Bonds issued by supranational bodies, e.g. European Investment 
Bank.  The bonds – also known as Multilateral Development Bank 
bonds – are generally AAA rated and behave similarly to gilts, but 
pay a higher yield (“spread”) given their relative illiquidity when 
compared with gilts.

Treasury Bill Treasury bills are short-term debt instruments issued by the UK or 
other governments.  They provide a return to the investor by virtue 
of being issued at a discount to their final redemption value.

Page 272

Agenda Item 15



Audit and governance
work programme

containing Audit and Governance Committee work to 
be undertaken 

1 FEBRUARY 2018 - 30 MARCH 2018

      

The audit and governance work programme belongs to the councils’ Joint Audit and Governance Committee and sets out a schedule of work 
for the period shown above.  It is a rolling plan, subject to change at each Committee meeting; however, the councils may allocate additional 
work.  

Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes
Internal audit activity 
report –fourth quarter 
2017/18

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 26 
March 2018

Sandy Bayley 
Email: 
sandy.bayley@s
outhandvale.gov.
uk

The council audits its 
services through the 
internal audit service in 
line with the approved 
internal audit plan 
2017/18.

To summarise the 
outcomes of recent 
internal audit activity 
for the committee to 
consider.  The 
committee is asked to 
review the report and 
main issues arising, 
and seek assurance 
that action has been or 
will be taken where 
necessary.

This is a recurring 
agenda item, and is 
updated at each 
meeting.  

P
age 273

A
genda Item

 16

mailto:sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk


Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes

South and Vale Audit and Governance Work Programme

Internal audit 
management report - 
fourth quarter 
2017/18

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 26 
March 2018

Sandy Bayley 
Email: 
sandy.bayley@s
outhandvale.gov.
uk

The committee monitors 
the effectiveness of 
internal audit each 
quarter against the 
approved audit plan

To report on 
management issues, 
summarise the second 
quarter progress of the 
internal audit team 
against the 2017/18 
audit plan, and 
summarise the 
priorities and planned 
audit work for quarter 
three

This is a recurring 
agenda item, and is 
updated at each 
meeting.  

Code of Conduct – 
annual report

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 26 
March 2018

Margaret Reed, 
Email: 
margaret.reed@s
outhandvale.gov.
uk

The Committee has 
responsibility for having 
an overview of the 
standards of conduct 
framework for 
councillors, any co-
opted members and 
parish councillors.

To review complaints 
received under code of 
conduct.

Internal audit plan 
2017/18

Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 
26 March 2018

Sandy Bayley 
Email: 
sandy.bayley@s
outhandvale.gov.
uk

The council audits its 
services through the 
internal audit service.

To approve the internal 
audit plan for 2017/18

Review of statement 
of accounting 
policies 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 26 
March 2018

Richard 
Spraggett
richard.spraggett
@southandvale.g
ov.uk

To audit and review the 
policies and principles 
used when compiling 
the 2017/18 accounts. P

age 274

A
genda Item

 16

mailto:sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:margaret.reed@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:margaret.reed@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:margaret.reed@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk

	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 External auditor's annual letters 2016/17
	Vale Annual Audit Letter

	7 External auditor's report on the certification of claims and returns 2016/17
	Certification of claims and returns annual report 2016-17
	South Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District Council
	Scope of work
	Summary
	Contents
	EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory
	Ernst & Young LLP
	© Ernst & Young LLP. Published in the UK.All Rights Reserved.
	The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales with registered number OC300001 and is a member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited.
	Ernst & Young LLP, 1 More London Place, London, SE1 2AF.
	ey.com

	8 South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils' Audit Planning Report 2017/18
	9 Risk management framework
	SODC Corporate risk register  SMT gross risk ratings 10 Jan 2018
	VoWH Corporate risk register  SMT gross risk ratings 10 Jan 2018

	10 Internal audit activity report quarter three 2017/2018
	IA Activity Report App 2 Recs database Jan 2018

	11 Internal audit management report quarter three 2017/2018
	IA Management Report App 1a Progress Against Audit Plan 2017-2018
	IA Management Report App 1b Follow up Audits
	IA Management Report App 1c Unplanned Audits
	IA Management Report App 2 Audit Plan Schedule 2017-2018

	12 Statement of accounts 2017/18
	13 Treasury management mid-year monitoring report 2017/18
	14 South Oxfordshire District Council treasury management mid-year monitoring report 2017/18
	15 Vale of White Horse District Council treasury management mid-year monitoring report 2017/18
	16 Work programme



